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Entering the next phase of growth
pEELD > BOT —BRERE

Following the conclusion of a multi-year strategic overhaul,

Digital China has moved to a ‘Customer-Focused, service-oriented’ structure.
As a market leader, we are dedicated to maintain the sector

as we step into our next phase of growth.

KBBENS L BMNBREZKELUBKREE  BEMAEF - ARKREHEEESE -
BEFROREEEETSNALLN - SRED T —HRHER -
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Company Profile XAFEN

2

Digital China Holdings Limited (“Digital China” or “the Company”; Stock
Code: 00861.HK) is a leading information technology company in China.
Headquartered in Beijing, Digital China has regional centers in 19 major
cities in China. Digital China has been focusing on transforming itself into
the most comprehensive IT Solution Provider for all the customers across
China, and thus currently Digital China focuses on three major business
segments: Distribution of IT products; Distribution of Systems products;
Systems Integration and IT Services. Digital China has been providing
overall IT services to the major account customers within major industries,
covering IT consultancy services, application development services,
system integration services and IT outsourcing services. Digital China
also distributes a vast range of IT products including PCs, servers, storage
products, peripherals, networking products, mobile office equipment,
wireless access equipment and software such as system management
software, storage software, middleware, database software, through a
network of over 9,000 resellers and agents across the country.

The Company has maintained its leading position in various vertical
industries. Featured products include self-developed and proprietary
core-business application packages such as Sm@rtBanking, Sm@rtBoss
and CTAIS that are customized for specific industry needs, ranging from
banking, and telecommunications to the government and public sectors.
Digital China has also managed to secure the Number 1 position in IT
product distribution for many years. Digital China spun off from the
Legend group and got independently listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited on 1 June 2001.
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Financial Highlights Bi##E %

FY2007/2008 FY2006/2007 FY2005/2006 FY2004/2005 FY2003/2004
CERHCEENRE —TTN-TTEME —TTR/-TTAME —TTN/-_FTREE —TT-/—TTMHE
HKSm B EET HKSm B¥EE T HK$m ¥ & ET HK$m E¥ & E T HK$m E# & ET

For the Year REER
Revenue WA 35,244 25,418 19,865 15,457 14,277
Profit from mEEF 651 415 375 222* 61*
Operating Activities
Net profit from Ordinary MR 401 208 252 186* 20*
Activities Attributable ES
to Shareholders T
Earnings per Share BREF 43.72 23.92 29.19 21.64* 2.38*
(HK cents) (74l
Dividends per Share BRERE 14.55 8.28 10.00 8.53 _
(HK cents) (74
At Year-end REER
Total Assets BEE 9,314 6,885 5,827 4,887 4,038
Shareholders’ Funds BEREL 2,626 1,961 1,787 1,579 1,365
Financial Ratio BiIS L&
Return on Equity (%) RRE & B 15.28 10.63 14.10 11.80* 1.49*
(BHt)
Interest Cover (times) FSBELE () 3.13 2.83 3.91 4.59* 1.30*
Current Ratio (times) BN (%) 1.56 1.44 1.25 1.40 1.68
Total Interest Bearing M S EBE 0.60 0.63 0.68 0.68 0.74
Debts to Shareholders’ BRES
Funds Ratio (times) Lt ()
*figures restated2(F 7> LA &3
Revenue Profit from Operating Activities Net Profit from Ordinary Activities
A LRAUSHF Attributable to Shareholders
REERFEM B EEE 2 &R F5E
HK$m HK$m HK$m
BEEET BEEET BEEET
40,000 750 450
32,000 600 360
24,000 450 270
16,000 I 300 180
8000 _ . 150 90
0 0 0
FY03/04 FY04/05 FY05/06 FY06/07 FY07/08 FY03/04 FY04/05 FY05/06 FY06/07 FY07/08 FY03/04 FY04/05 FY05/06 FY06/07 FY07/08
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Significant Events
KRE[OE
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Keeping abreast of market trends ;f-‘»/”
EiFIiE - 2EEMIGERBD

We are well positioned to take advantage of opportunities in the
market and nimble enough to optimize our business structure to
maximize shareholder value.

BMLEES  LEEETERE BEELEXESES
RBRRAERKEHE -
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Significant Events KX=E[EfE

2

April

On 29 April 2007, Digital China won the IBM Outstanding Global Partner
Award for the second year in a row as the sole recipient of the prime
honour for IBM's partners in Asia Pacific, underpinning the Group’s
prominent status among suppliers.

Digital China BB Limited marked its incorporation with the launch of
SaaSBB.com, China’s first online software servicing (SAAS model, namely
“Software As A Service”) platform.

May

On 29 May 2007, the DC Distribution Credit Card was issued by Digital
China in association with China Everbright Bank, a major innovation for
the credit system of the distribution sector that promised mutual benefits
for Digital China, the issuing bank as well as the sales channels.

July

On 16 July 2007, Digital China completed the first full BPO project for
banking cards in China with the launch of the “Yellow River Card” of the
Rural Commercial Bank of Ningxia. It marked Digital China’s diversification
to in the operational and management aspects of the banking sector in a
major boost of value for customers, as compared to the previous role of
merely developing banking IT systems.
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Significant Events AZE[ElfE
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August

On 8 August 2007, Digital China Financial Software Ltd. signed a deal
with Shenzhen Agricultural and Commercial Bank to implement a
new-generation core business system for the bank with advanced
features based on international software.

Xian Digital China Limited Xinjiang branch office opened on 15 August
2007 as the 18th regional business platform of the Group to further
enhance the Group’s regional management and nationwide coverage.

October

Shenyang Digital China Limited Harbin branch was opened on 12 October
2007 as the 19th regional business platform of the Group.

In October 2007, the share restructuring of Digital China was successfully
completed.

November

The “Innovative Technologies Week"” was held at Beijing during 12 to 16
November 2007, during which Digital China showcased some of its best
industry-specific solutions in combination with the empirical platform of
the innovation centre. Digital China’s profile as a customer-oriented IT
services provider was significantly enhanced with a panorama of Digital
China’s full range of IT deliverables for its diverse clientele.

Digital China Financial Software Ltd. launched ModelB@nk 2.0, the first
SOA-based integrated banking solution in the industry, as well as (& &k
HIEEA) (Financial Data Model), the first publication in China dedicated
to the subject.

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 07/08
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January

The ten best-performing staff team, covering sales, technical supporting
and logistics supporting functions, were rewarded at the annual corporate
culture activity days.

March

On 25 March 2008, Digital China entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement with the Bank of Beijing on technological cooperation and
corporate financial service solutions, whereby the Bank of Beijing would
provide Digital China with an integrated financial service solution
featuring supply chain financing, institutional financial management and
Internet banking, while Digital China will provide technical support to the
Bank of Beijing in areas such as front office system software development,
hardware product selection, applications, IT consultation services, systems
integration, project management and ATM operations.

/

Significant Events KX=E[EfE
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Significant Events XZE[EFE

Industry Awards and Honors Received

National Informatization Evaluation Center
Top 500 Enterprises in PRC Informatization

National Informatization Evaluation Center
Best Decision-making Support(Bl)Application Award

Organizing Committee, Brand China
Brand China Gold Award — Top 10 IT Brand in China for the Year

Department of Planning and Statistics under the State Administration of Taxation
China’s Top 100 Taxpayers 2006

Computer World
Innovative PRC IT Enterprises 2007

China E-Commerce Association, people.com.cn, 139shop.com
Most Influential Innovators of PRC Mobile Phone Industry 1997-2007

Segment Awards

Distribution Business

Computer Partner World
Top Distributor and Top Solutions Provider in Top 500 PRC Computer Companies
by 2007 Annual Conference of PRC Computer Companies

China Information Industry Trade Association, Smart Partner
Top 10 Distributors of Excellence 2007

IDC
Top PRC Distributor

Motorola
Best Value-added Distributor 2007

DOPOD
Best Contributions Awards 2007

Nokia
Best Innovation Award 2007

“The Happy Consumer”, Hunan TV
Best Cooperation Award

AMD
AMD Global Progress Award

Philips
Philips Best Partner Asia Pacific

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 07/08
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Systems Business
IBM Sales

IBM
Awarded “IBM Best Distributor 2006"” in January 2007
Awarded ” STG pSeries Top Growth Distributor 2006 in January 2007

Received “Storage Products — Best Contribution Award 2006” in January 2007
Awarded “IBM Software — Best Value-added Distributor 2006" in January 2007

Awarded “IBM Best Partner 2006, Central China” in January 2007

Awarded “IBM Outstanding Global Partner” in April 2007, the highest honour for
IBM Asia Pacific

Received the “Special Achievement Award 2007" in January 2008

Awarded “IBM Software — Best Value-added Distributor” in January 2008

SUN Sales

SUN

Best Distributor FY07

Received the “SUN MICROSYSTEMS GREATER CHINA FYO7 Best YoY Growth
Award” in July 2007

Basic Network

Cisco

Became exclusive distribution partner in China for Cisco medium/low-end storage
exchange products in March 2007

Received the “TOP INNOVATOR" award at the Cisco World Summit 2007 held in
Las Vegas in April 2007

DC-dj team and bjbjbj team from Digital China System Technology Limited were
champions and 1st runners-up respectively in the China Region and Asia Pacific
Dealers Contests of Cisco Tech Mastermind 2007 held in May 2007, which were
decided in the extra round following the conclusion of the preliminaries on 16 May

Communications, Network Applications and Solutions
Avaya

Avaya Gold Partnership Certification 2007

“Legend Call Centre Project” Significant Project Award 2008
Avaya Gold Partnership Certification 2008

Significant Events KX=E[EfE
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRS

We have every reason to believe...on the back of the solid
groundwork laid during the financial year 2007, the strategic
shift of Digital China Group to a more customer/service-oriented
approach is set to create greater shareholders’ value.

REHN—F  BMARE. . BRELIMETEENRSE
MEZER  NBREEEGQEFS - BORBOE
BEL-FEARRAEEANEER -
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Chairman’s Statement FFEHE

The 2007/08 financial year was a year of strategic significance for Digital
China. During the year, the Board is very glad to see that Digital China has
not only delivered satisfactory results to the shareholders, it also reported
sound progress in its strategic shift of business focus, thanks to the
concerted efforts of our staff under the leadership of the management
team, against the backdrop of a surging PRC economy in 2007. For the
2007/08 financial year, total revenue of Digital China Group grew 38.65%
year-on-year to HK$35,244 million. The Group’s overall profitability was
significantly enhanced with a 92.45% growth compared to last financial
year. Return on shareholders’ equity grew to 15.28%, representing a
43.74% improvement.

The 2007/08 financial year also saw Digital China completing the most
significant capital restructuring since its incorporation. Following the
transferring of shareholdings to new investors by Legend Holdings
Limited during the financial year under review, Digital China now enjoys
the benefits of a more balanced shareholding structure and improved
corporate governance standards. Meanwhile, the introduction of the new
investors, who are both with international backgrounds and with hands-
on experience in China, is set to channel in new sources and add values
for the future development of Digital China.

In retrospect of Digital China’s business development in the past three
years, the Board of Directors has pleasure in reporting vigorous growth
of the Company during the period: a 128% growth in sales revenue
compared to HK$15,457 million for the 2004/05 financial year three
years ago, representing a CAGR of 31.62% for the three-year period. The
management of Digital China has defined the 2007 financial year as the
commencement year for the new strategy, upon which a term strategic
blueprint has been more clearly mapped out for the period running up to
2011, namely, a comprehensive strategic shift to the customer-focused
and service-oriented approach, the building of a customer base with
an extensive coverage of the PRC market, a strong focus on customer
requirements from different market segments and the implementation
of a comprehensive strategic setup in the Service business encompassing
areas from products to services, from the design of system architecture to
solution development and from consultancy to IT outsourcing, for which
market leadership has been attained. These innovative strategic initiatives
have resulted in significant improvements in the Group’s profitability. For
the 2007/08 financial year, profit attributable to shareholders of the parent
amounted to HK$401 million, representing a 92.45% growth compared
to HK$208 million reported for last financial year. Basic earnings per share
grew 82.78% to 43.72 HK cents.

The major headway made by the Services business represented another
strategically significant breakthrough achieved by Digital China in the
financial year under review. Following years of positive buildup, our
Services business achieved the target of profitability in segment results
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for the financial year under review. Since its incorporation by spinning
off from the Legend group in 2000, under the leadership of the Board
of Directors, and with the collaborated efforts of the management team
and the staff, Digital China has developed itself into a leading distributor
of IT products and a leading supplier of IT integration services in China.
According to an analysis report provided by IDC in April 2008, the Group
topped the list of domestic IT service providers and was a firm leader in
each of the government and banking sub-sectors. The effective cultivation
of core capabilities in three key areas, namely software development in
R&D bases, application software standardization, products support and IT
outsourcing and maintenance services (PSOM), has played an extremely
important role in the attainment of overall profitability for the Services
business.

The financial year under review was also underpinned by incessant efforts
in corporate governance on the part of the Board of Directors:

Under the new corporate governance structure, which is more balanced
and evenly distributed, the Company has persistently implemented the
three-tier governance structure comprising the shareholders, the Board of
Directors and the management in strict accordance with the requirements
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and rendered full support to the
management in the formulation and implementation of strategies;

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has contributed huge,
meticulous efforts to make further improvements in terms of operational
compliance, truthfulness of financial information and management
transparency;

In terms of management incentives, a dedicated remuneration committee
has been set up under the newly elected Board of Directors and specific
management KPIs (key performance indicators) have been formulated.
Meanwhile, the Board of Directors is also actively considering the
installation of a flexible incentive regime that would improve its strategic
advantage in terms of talents, with a view to maintaining competitiveness
in the market.

Aside from outstanding business results, Digital China has also kick-
started some key management initiatives and made sound progress in the
following key areas:

Efforts in overall risk control system building and process management of
the Group has yielded positive results to ensure operational stability and

efficiency enhancement amid strong business growth.

In addition to a turnaround to profitability, the IT services business has
also made significant headway in giving further effect to the management

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 07/08
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// Chairman’s Statement EE#RE

of major account customers, such that the improvement in customer
management capabilities has been matched by a substantial increase
in the overall value of contracts signed up with customers from various
industries to lay solid foundations for future growth in profitability.

There has been a notable increase in turnover following effective efforts
to expand our customer base in the Distribution business. Meanwhile, the
new “SELL-OUT” marketing model targeted at end-channels has been
well received with positive response from channel partners, paving the
way for further enforcement of the model in the forthcoming financial
year.

Turnover from services for the financial year under review has increased
significantly as vigorous efforts have been made to adjust our Systems
business forastrongerfocus on providing value-added services, contributing
to further value enhancement for this business sub-segment.

We have every reason to believe that the business development of the
Company will only fare towards the better in the forthcoming year, given
the extensive experiences and resources in investment operations brought
by new Directors, our sound governance structure and our management’s
proven ability in identifying and capturing business opportunities. On the
back of the solid groundwork laid during the financial year 2007, the
strategic shift of Digital China Group to a more customer/service-oriented
approach is set to create greater shareholders’ value.

At the same time, the Board of Directors is well aware that achieving
the targets set for the 2008 financial year could be a very challenging
task in the wake of the austerity policies and measures implemented by
the Government. Nevertheless, we have every confidence that, under the
forward-looking and strategic leadership of the Group’s management
team, Digital China will continue to create value for investors and
shareholders on the back of the diligent efforts of all employees, and will
grow further as a celebrated brand name. Last but not least, may | express
sincere gratitude to all shareholders, investors and staff of Digital China
for their longstanding support through the years.

,2;7
Guo Wei 2%

Chairman /&

Hong Kong, 25 June 2008
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We strive for breakthroughs with our extensive experience and
provide reliable and efficient services to our customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 EHf51Ed

1. The Group posted enormous growth as it accomplished all targets
set for the year ended 31 March 2008 in excellent results. The year
under review marked a watershed where the Group built on the
foundations of past achievements to open up new frontiers with
the implementation of new strategies. There was improvement in
the Group’s overall profitability and significant progress in effective
control over operational risks as the Group advanced the general
strategy of focusing on customers and services, heralding the second
five-year plan with solid groundwork.

1.1 Substantial turnover growth further reinforcing

prestigious market position

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group recorded turnover of
approximately HK$35,244 million, an increase of 38.65% as compared to
HK$25,418 million for last financial year. For the third year in a row since
the 2005/06 financial year, the Group had registered growth exceeding
20%, which was well above the average industry growth rate. It was
also strongest growth in overall turnover recorded by the Group since its
listing.

1.2 Strong overall results underpinned by phenomenal
profit growth

The Group’s profit attributable to the equity holders of the parent (profit
attributable to shareholders) for the financial year under review amounted
to approximately HK$401 million, a 92.45% increase as compared to
HK$208 million for last financial year. Return on shareholders’ equity was
15.28%, improving by 43.74% as compared to last financial year. Basic
earnings per share grew 82.78% to 43.72 HK cents.
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1.3 Major breakthrough in results for the Services
business after years of development and buildup

All of the Group’s business segments reported rapid growth and continued
dominance in their respective industries. According to an analysis report
provided by IDC in April 2008, the Group topped the list of domestic IT
service providers and held pole positions in the government and banking
sub-sectors. Following years of positive buildup, the Group’s Services
business achieved overall profitability for the financial year under review to
contribute gain of approximately HK$47 million according to the segment
results. The effective cultivation of core capabilities in three key areas,
namely service base development, software commercialization, products
support and IT outsourcing and maintenance services (PSOM), has played
an extremely important role in the attainment of overall profitability for
the Services business.

1.4 Notable improvement on profitability in the first
year of a strategic switch to focuses on customers
and services

The Group has completed a business setup to match the most common
clientele and services in China. Operations of each of our three major
businesses have been structured according to five types of clientele and
services: namely CONSUMER, SOHO (small office and home office), SMB
(small and medium businesses), Enterprise and Major Accounts. Innovative
products, solutions and services focused on customers’ requirements
contributed to notable improvements on profitability. For the year ended
31 March 2008, the overall adjusted gross profit margin of the Group
was 7.96% after taking into account the effect of Renminbi appreciation
on the purchasing costs, up 0.26 percentage points from 7.70% for last
financial year.
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1.5 Risk control system and process management
ensuring sound operating cash flow and cash cycle
amid fast turnover growth

The Group maintained stable operating cash flow for the year ended 31
March 2008, despite the government’s policy to tighten monetary policy.
Net cash inflow from operating activities was approximately HK$77 million.
The cash turnover days for the financial year under review was 25.02 days,
which was 2.41 days less compared to last financial year. Turnover days
of trade receivables and inventory were also shortened by 4.66 days and
1.50 days, respectively.

2.1 Distribution business

The Group’s Distribution business continued to outperform the market in
rapid growth during the financial year

For the year ended 31 March 2008, turnover of the Group’s Distribution
business amounted to HK$20,889 million, representing a 41.83% growth
compared to last financial year. Adjusted profit margin for the Distribution
business increased to 4.99% versus 4.94% for last financial year, after
taking into account the effect of exchange gains on the purchasing costs,
as the Group sought to steer a balanced course between business growth
and stable profitability.

2.1.1 Customer development efforts in the SMB, SOHO and CONSUMER
markets rewarded by strong turnover growth in all categories

The Group’s Distribution business conducted detailed analysis of
customers’ needs in the SMB (small and medium businesses), SOHO (small
office and home office) and CONSUMER markets and launched a series of
solutions through a dedicated solutions center on the back of the variety
of products under its distribution. The efforts in customer development
resulted in rapid growth in turnover for the Group's major business
sectors. Turnover from notebooks, consumer IT products, PC servers and
accessories reported growth of 65.04%, 37.66%, 31.76% and 65.54%,
respectively, as compared to last financial year.
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2.1.2 Active implementation of the new “SELL-OUT” marketing model
met with positive response from sales channels

As a key point of promoting business transformation, the Group’s
Distribution business during the financial year under review was
underpinned by the adoption of the “SELL-OUT" marketing model calling
for close monitoring of channel sales as well as knowledge of end-channels
and user requirements, with a view to customizing product supplies,
solutions and marketing strategies that meet users’ requirements and
upgrading supply chain efficiency. The “SELL-OUT” model was vigorously
promoted by the Group’s Distribution business during the financial year
under review through new marketing training at the channel end, the
establishment of experimental platforms and the launch of the E-partner
system (ex-warehouse reporting on channel sales) on 1 June 2007. Positive
response was received from the channels.

2.2 Systems business
Business scale and profitability of the Group’s Systems business enhanced

on the back of pro-active expansionary policy, redefined customer base
and customer-specific business setup

For the year ended 31 March 2008, turnover of the Group’s Systems
business increased by 32.38% to HK$9,732 million, as compared to last
financial year. Adjusted gross profit margin after reversing the effect of
exchange gains on the purchasing costs was 11.15%, which was notably
higher than 10.53% reported for last financial year.

2.2.1 Significant business growth backed by vigorous customer
development

The Group’s Systems business actively developed its enterprise-level
customer base and reported substantial growth in its customer-end
business during the financial year under review with the offering of over
100 enterprise-specific solutions. Efforts to develop regional customers
were rewarded by year-on-year increase in turnover of 141.60%, 116.90%
and 77.61%, respectively, as compared to last financial year, from regional
customers in North China, East China and South China. All in all, the
dominance in the market for enterprise-level customers has been further
reinforced.

2.2.2 Redefining services to enhance servicing capabilities

The Group continued to advance its servicing capabilities during the
financial year under review by setting up solution centers to provide
product and application solutions specific to enterprise-level customers.
The services business under the Group’s Systems business delivered sound
results for the financial year under review, as evidenced by a 68.39%
growth in turnover compared to last financial year.
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2.3 Services business

The Group’s Services business reported significant growth in business
scale and turnaround to profit for the year

For the year ended 31 March 2008, turnover of the Group's Services
business amounted to HK$4,623 million, representing a 38.45% growth
compared to last financial year. Adjusted gross profit margin of the
Services business was 14.65% taking into account exchange gains, which
was 0.96 percentage points higher compared to 13.69% for last financial
year.

As shown in the segment results for the year ended 31 March 2008, the
Group’s Services business reported gain of HK$47 million in a historical
turnaround to positive bottom line, as compared to retained loss of
approximately HK$24 million for last financial year.

2.3.1 Strategic shift to focus on customer needs resulted in increased
business with large enterprises and stronger customer servicing
capabilities

The Group's Services business reported substantial growth in contracts

signed with customers in major industries for the year ended 31 March

2008, outpacing the average growth rates for the respective industries by

considerable margins. In particular, the aggregate contract value for the

finance sector increased by more than 86.67% over last financial year, as
significant inroads in securing regional banks and insurance companies
as new customers were achieved in addition to the rapid expansion of
our traditional customer base. The aggregate contract value for the
telecommunications sector increased by 29.27% over last financial year
on the back of ongoing positive relationships with traditional customers
coupled with major progress in developing businesses with China Unicom,

China Telecom and China Netcom. The contract value for the government

sector increased by 49.30% over last financial year as our major customer-

end business maintained a leading edge in the market.
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2.3.2 Upgraded capabilities in software solutions contributing strongly to
growth in contract value and profitability

The Group'’s capabilities in software application solutions under its Services
business were significantly enhanced for the year ended 31 March 2008,
as evidenced by substantial growth in contract value for projects relating
to major software. A number of customers including state-owned, foreign
and commercial banks signed up for our ModelB@nk 2.0 financial system
solution during the year. China Mobile and China Telecom renewed
contracts for the Group’s BOSS 3.0 service operations support system
after improvements had been made to add sophistication to the Group'’s
telecommunications service support system solutions. In the government
sector, we continued to dominate the market with application solutions in
major segments such as taxation, commodities reserves and utilities.

2.3.3 R&D bases contributing to stronger software development
capabilities, cost reductions and efficiency enhancements

There were continued improvements to the software development
servicing capabilities of the research and development (R&D) bases
in Xi'an and Chengdu under the Group’s Services business. The Xi'an
software development base secured CMMI4 (Capability Maturity Model
Integration) certification during the year, as a quality management system
with centralized standards enabled the base to develop a variety of solution
products by enhancing its software R&D capabilities. With solid software
R&D and implementation capabilities, the R&D bases were developing an
active client interface as it undertook core projects for state-owned and
commercial banks. Some of these banking projects have already been
commissioned.

2.3.4 Rapid business expansion and effective system building for PSOM

For the year ended 31 March 2008, revenue from PSOM services under
the Group’s Services business increased by 40% to approximately
HK$354 million as compared to last financial year, coupled with strong
improvements in profit. The Group’s efforts to develop a PSOM system
were met with steady progress and notable results.
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Management Outlook

While the Group delivered excellent results in the 2007/08 financial
year with growth and breakthrough in service redefinition, customers,
geographical presence and product development, the 2008/09 financial
year is expected to be as much challenging as it is rewarding for the Group.
While the general economic environment will be subject to a number
of uncertainties, the Group will find core drivers to business growth in
its market leadership in the principal businesses attained through years
of buildup, in particular the headways made in terms of customer
development, product commercialization, cost control and consultation
services by its IT Services business which has started to contribute profit.
For this reason, the management believes that as the Group continues
to maintain its dominance in various sectors, it is well-positioned to
realize the targets in turnover and profit growth for the 2008/09 financial
year through focused and dedicated efforts in the strategic shift to the
customer-and service-oriented approaches and further refined cost control
initiatives.

The management is of the view that China will continue to see steady
economic growth in the next three to five years, during which the demand
for IT products and services is expected to grow in tandem, providing a key
prerequisite to as well as opportunity for the Group’s business growth. As
such, the Group intends to enhance its profitability and investment return
for greater shareholders’ value by advancing its development through
ongoing strategic moves, optimization of business structures and overall
business value.

Capital Expenditure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group mainly finances its operations with internally generated cash
flows, bank loans and banking facilities.

The Group had total assets of HK$9,314 million at 31 March 2008 which
were financed by total liabilities of HK$6,670 million, minority interests of
HK$18 million and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent of
HK$2,626 million. The Group’s current ratio at 31 March 2008 was 1.56
as compared to 1.44 at 31 March 2007.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, capital expenditure of HK$98
million was incurred for the acquisition of office equipment and IT
infrastructure facilities.
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The aggregate borrowings as a ratio of equity attributable to equity holders
of the parent was 0.60 at 31 March 2008 as compared to 0.63 at 31 March
2007. The computation of the said ratio was based on the total amount
of interest-bearing borrowings and bond payable of HK$1,574 million (31
March 2007: HK$1,237 million) and equity attributable to equity holders
of the parent of HK$2,626 million (31 March 2007: HK$1,961 million).
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At 31 March 2008, the denomination of the interest-bearing borrowings
and bond payable of the Group was shown as follows:

Denominated in

— ==

Denominated in

NEFE=A=+—RH  "EBENHEZEK
REMNEZOEREMDT

United States dollar Renminbi Total
HET BUARY
RIEFREN RIEREN &t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
BT T EBETT BETT
Current mE
Interest-bearing bank Bt SERITERR -
borrowings, unsecured R 311,433 55,396 366,829
Interest-bearing bank Bt SERITEER -
borrowing, secured B - 33,237 33,237
311,433 88,633 400,066
Non-current IERE
Interest-bearing bank M EERITERK -
borrowings, unsecured Eis - 952,803 952,803
Bond payable JEfHES - 221,582 221,582
- 1,174,385 1,174,385
Total 5T 311,433 1,263,018 1,574,451

The Group’s current borrowings of approximately HK$33 million extended
by financial institutions to a subsidiary of the Group, Beijing Si-Tech
Information Technology Co., Ltd. (“STQ"), were secured by the Group’s
property situated in the Mainland China with a value of approximately
HK$19 million at 31 March 2008 and 14,061,976 issued shares of STQ
in favour of Beijing Zhongguancun Sci-Tech Guaranty Co. Ltd. (the
“Pledgee”), an independent third party, for securing a guarantee issued
by such Pledgee on behalf of STQ. The Group’s current bank borrowings
and non-current bank borrowings of approximately HK$55 million and
HK$953 million respectively represented the term loans and are repayable
from Year 2008 to 2014.
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In December 2007, Digital China (China) Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and three independent third parties entered
into an agreement with the underwriters to issue a bond to institutional
and public investors in the Mainland China with an aggregate principal
amount of RMB305 million. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group issued
a RMB200 million (equivalent to approximately HK$222 million) bond (the
“Bond”) for financing the development of IT services business. The Bond
carries interest at a rate of 6.68% per annum, which is payable semi-
annually and will mature in December 2010. For the purpose of the Bond,
Beijing Zhongguancun Sci-tech Guaranty Co., Ltd. (“ZGC Guaranty”), an
independent third party, has unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken
joint and several guarantee liabilities in full (the “Guarantee Liabilities”)
in favour of Digital China (China) Limited. Concurrently, the China
Development Bank has authorised its business department to undertake
general guarantee liability in respect of the Guarantee Liabilities of ZGC
Guaranty, and Digital China Software Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has undertaken joint and several liabilities in respect of
the Guarantee Liabilities of ZGC Guaranty.

The Group's total available credit facilities at 31 March 2008 amounted to
HK$9,232 million, of which HK$1,119 million were in term loan facilities,
HK$6,145 million were in trade lines and HK$ 1,968 million were in short-
term and revolving money market facilities. At 31 March 2008, the facility
drawn down was HK$1,008 million in term loan facilities, HK$1,469
million in trade lines and HK$345 million in short-term and revolving
money market facilities.

Under the normal course of business, the Group has issued performance
bonds to some customers for potential claims of non-performance in order
to satisfy the specific requirements of these customers. As no material
claims had been made by the customers under such performance bonds
in the past, the management considers that the possibility of realisation
of any actual material liabilities arising from such performance bonds is
remote.

Human Resources

At 31 March 2008, the Group had approximately 7,700 (31 March 2007:
approximately 6,700) full-time employees. The majority of these employees
work in the PRC. The Group offers remuneration packages in line with
industry practice. Employees’ remuneration includes basic salaries and
bonuses. With the increase in the total number of staff to cope with its
business requirements, the Group has recorded a 37.29% increase in staff
costs to approximately HK$1,205 million for the year ended 31 March
2008 as compared with an approximate sum of approximately HK$878
million for the last financial year. In order to attract and retain a high caliber
of capable and motivated workforce, the Company offers share options
to staff based on the individual performance and the achievements of the
Company’s targets. The Group is committed to providing its staff with
various in-house and external training and development programs.
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Mr. GUO Wei, aged 45, is the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, and
responsible for the strategic development and
management of the Group. Mr. Guo has been
the Vice Chairman, the President and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group since February
2001 and was appointed as the Chairman of
the Board of the Company in December 2007.
Mr. Guo obtained a Master's degree from the
Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of
Science (formerly known as Graduate School
of the University of Science and Technology of
China) in 1988. He joined the Legend group in
1988 and was once an Executive Director and
Senior Vice President. Mr. Guo was awarded
such major prizes included China’'s Top Ten
Outstanding Youths (2002), SRREEHBFFRK
R##{L48 (Practical and Outstanding Youth of
Achievement) (2002) by the China Association
for Science and Technology, China’s Top Ten
Outstanding Youths in Technology Innovation
(1998), Future Economic Leader of China (2003),
and the First Annual China Young Entrepreneurs
Creative Management Golden Honour (2005).

He is currently a standing committee member
of the 11th National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference,
a standing committee member of the All
China Youth Federation, Vice President of the
Chinese Young Entrepreneurs Association, and
Vice President of Chinese Young Technology
Professional Association. He has over 20 years
of experience in business strategy development
and business management.
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Mr. LIN Yang, aged 41, is the President and Executive Vice President of
the Group and responsible for the overall business management of the
Group. Mr. Lin graduated in 1988 with a Bachelor’s degree in Computing
Communications from the Xidian University and in 2005 with a Master
degree in Business Administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business. He joined the Legend group in 1990 and has over 17 years of
management experience in distribution business. Mr. Lin was appointed
as the President of the Company in April 2008.
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Non-Executive Directors
FHITES

Mr. Andrew Y. YAN, aged 50, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company
in December 2007. Mr. Yan received his Bachelor Degree in Engineering from the Nanjing
Aeronautic Institute in the PRC in 1982, a Master degree in Sociology from Beijing University
in 1986 and a second Master degree from Princeton University in International Political
Economy in 1989. Mr. Yan is currently the Managing Partner of SAIF Partners (“SAIF”). Prior
to joining SAIF, he was the Managing Director of the Emerging Markets Partnership from
1995 to 1999 and its Head of the Hong Kong office from 1999 to 2001. From 1994 to
1995, he worked at Sprint International Corporation as the Director of Strategic Planning
and Business Development for the Asia Pacific Region. Mr. Yan was voted by the China
Venture Capital Association as “The Venture Investor of the Year” in both 2004 and 2007
and he was also selected as one of the “Fifty Finest Private Equity Investors in the World” by
the Private Equity International in 2007. Under Mr. Yan's leadership, SAIF was voted as “VC
firm of the Year” in 2004 and 2007 and it was also named as “The Best Performing Fund in
Asia” by Private Equity International in 2005 and 2006.

Currently, Mr. Yan is the Independent Non-Executive Director of China Oilfield Services
Limited, China Resources Land Limited, Fosun International Limited and Stone Group
Holdings Limited (all 4 companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited).
Mr. Yan is also a Director of Acorn International Inc., Giant Interactive Group Inc., China
Digital TV Holdings Co., Ltd. (all listed on The New York Stock Exchange) and Eternal
Asia Supply Chain Management Ltd. (listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). He was
previously a Director of Shanda Interactive Entertainment Ltd. (listed on the NASDAQ, USA)
and an Independent Director of Eastern Communications Co., Ltd. (listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange) during the period from January 2003 to January 2005 and June 2003 to
February 2006 respectively.
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Mr. TANG Xudong, aged 46, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company
in December 2007. Mr. Tang graduated from Central University for Nationalities in 1986 and

/ got an EMBA degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business, senior engineer in
2005. He joined Legend Holdings Limited in 1990, and used to serve as General Manager of
Department of Justice, General Manager of Human Resources Department, and Vice Head
of the Corporate Planning Office of the group and is currently the Vice President of Legend
Holdings Limited and director of Raycom Real Estate Development Co. Ltd. and APLL-ZhiQin
Co. Ltd. Mr. Tang have over 10 years experience in corporate headquarter administration,
business development, investment management, human resources management and legal
affairs. Mr. Tang set up the Department of Legal Affairs in Legend Holdings Limited which has
prominent achievements on legal risk management and litigation affairs. He is also the vice
president of Beijing Intellectual Property Research Council.

Since 2001, Legend Holdings Limited started new business in investment, with an overall
business scope in IT, venture capital, buyout investment and real estate. As Vice President
of Legend Holdings Limited, Mr. Tang was in charge of the management of investment
in subsidiaries and corporate administration. Mr. Tang was previously a director of Beijing
Centergate Technologies (Holding) Co., Ltd. (listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange)
during the period from June 2002 to December 2005.
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Mr. CHEN Derek Zhiyong, aged 32, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the
Company in December 2007. Mr. Chen graduated with a Bachelor of Science Degree
in Electrical Engineering from University of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign and obtained a
Master of Business Administration from Columbia Business School. He joined SAIF Partners
Il L.P. in March 2004 and is currently a Principal. Prior to joining SAIF Partners Il L.P., Mr.
Chen worked with CITIC Frontier China Research Limited as an Investment Analyst, Equity
Research Associate with Thomas Weisel Partners, San Francisco (listed on the NASDAQ,
USA) and worked with Cisco Systems, Inc. and Procter & Gamble.
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Independent
Non-Executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. LUO Hong, aged 35, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in
December 2007. Mr. Luo holds a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering and a Master’s
degree in Technology Management of Economics and Management School from Tsinghua
University, and a Master of Business Administration from Harvard Business School. Mr. Luo
has been with Hony Capital Limited since 2004 and is currently the Managing Director of
Hony Capital Limited. Prior to joining Hony Capital Limited, Mr. Luo was the Vice General
Manager of Legend Capital Limited and General Manager of the Strategic Investment
Department of Lenovo Group Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited).
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Mr. HU Zhao Guang, aged 69, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Hu graduated from Tsinghua University in 1964 and also completed a management
course in Sweden. Mr. Hu has over 36 years of experience in economics, finance and
corporate management and was wide recognised for his work in these areas. Mr. Hu joined
the Company in September 2004. He was previously the chairman of Beijing Enterprises
Holdings Limited and its parent company, Beijing Holdings Limited and an independent
non-executive director of China Overseas Land & Investment Limited. From February 1993
to January 1998, Mr. Hu served as a Vice Mayor of the Beijing Municipal Government.
From 1988 to 1993, Mr. Hu served as the director of Beijing New Technology Development
Zone and chief executive of Beijing Haidian District Government.
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Professor WU Jinglian, aged 78, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Professor Wu joined the Company in April 2001. He is a senior research fellow
at the Development Research Center of the State Council and a professor at the Graduate
School of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences and China Europe International Business
School. Professor Wu graduated from Fudan University. He was previously an Executive
Director at the Development Research Center of the State Council and a Deputy Director
of the Programming Office for Economic Reform of the State Council. Professor Wu was
also a visiting fellow at Yale University, a fellow at St. Antony’s College of Oxford University,
a chair professor at the Stanford University and a visiting fellow at the Massachusetts
Institute of Technology. Professor Wu is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of
China Unicom Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong whose shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis, aged 43, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and has over 20
years of experience in auditing, taxation, management and financial advisory. He joined
the Company in August 2006. Previously, Mr. Wong worked for KPMG, an international
accounting firm for 6 years and the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited for 2
years. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong, an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and a member of the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. Mr. Wong holds
a master degree in management conferred by Guangzhou Jinan University, the People’s
Republic of China. Mr. Wong has the appropriate professional qualifications, accounting
and related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Wong is also currently Independent Non-Executive Director and either chairman or
member of the Audit/Remuneration Committee of China Oriental Group Company Limited
and Wai Kee Holdings Limited, the shares of these two companies are listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and is an independent non-executive
director of Lightscape Technologies Inc, a company with its shares listed and traded in
the OTC Bulletin Board of the United States of America. He was once an independent
non-executive director of Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Sys Solutions Holdings Limited), a company listed on the growth enterprise market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the independent non-executive director
of Yardway Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Wong is a Director of Union Alpha C.P.A. Limited, a professional accounting firm, and
a founding director and member of Francis M C Wong Charitable Foundation Limited, a
charitable institution.
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Mr. KWAN Ming Heung, Peter, age 51, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Kwan graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce in Accounting Management
Information Systems from the University of British Columbia, Canada, 1980. Mr. Kwan is a
Chartered Accountant and is a member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.
Mr. Kwan joined the Company in August 2006. In addition to his public practice with
PricewaterhouseCoopers in Vancouver, Canada, he has over 17 years of experience in IT
related industries. He has held senior finance and management positions in Asia Pacific and
has worked in Canada, Hong Kong, Australia and Singapore. Mr. Kwan is a Director of MM
PowerPlus Busway (HK) Limited, an electrical products manufacturing company owned
by himself and his partner. He was previously a director of Avaya Global Connect Limited
(India listed) during the period from January 2004 to April 2005.
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Mr. HE Jun, aged 47, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and is responsible for
the overall management of the corporate finance, risk control and capital operation of
the Group. Mr. He graduated in 1984 with a degree in Engineering from North China
University of Technology. He also achieved an MBA in Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business in 2006. Mr. He joined the Legend group in 1998 and was mainly responsible for
the management and financial work to the group. He has extensive experience in financial
management, finance, investment and risk control.

HERLE W+t AREEFEVHITE  AEAKEERBNME - KERBRZEHRE
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Mr. MAO Xiangqian, aged 43, is a Senior Vice President of the Group and responsible for
the operation management of the general information technology products distribution
business of the Group. Mr. Mao graduated in 1988 with a Master’s degree in Mechanical
Manufacturing Engineering from Tianjin University. He joined the Legend group in 1989
and was mainly responsible for the management of regional headquarters and distribution
business. Mr. Mao has over 20 years of operation management experience in distribution
business.
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Mr. YAN Guorong, aged 34, is a Senior Vice President of the Group. Mr. Yan graduated
from Renmin University of China with a Bachelor’s degree in Economics and obtained an
EMBA degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business. He joined the Legend
group in 1996 and has been responsible for the day-to-day operation and management
of the company’s network and value-added business. From 2005 onwards, Mr. Yan has
assumed duties of strategic planning, operational management and regional management
of the system technology arm of Digital China (China) Limited (&N (FRE) R
7)) . He has nearly 11 years of experience in distribution and sales management of IT
networking products.
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Mr. CHEN Yong, aged 41, is a Senior Vice President of the Group and responsible for the
operational management of the Group’s IT services business. Mr. Chen graduated in 1993
with a Master’'s degree in Computer Application from Beijing University of Technology. He
joined the Legend group in 1993 and was mainly responsible for the management of high-
end systems products and IT services business. He has over 15 years of experience in the
operational management of high-end systems products business.
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Mr. WONG Chi Keung, aged 41, is the Company Secretary of the Company. He is also
the Qualified Accountant of the Company. Mr. Wong graduated from the University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Social Sciences and is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong is a qualified accountant and has over
18 years of experience in financial management and corporate administration. He is mainly
responsible for the financial reporting and listing issues of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERTE
The Group is committed to promote the highest standards of corporate

governance so as to enhance its transparency, accountability and corporate
value to the shareholders.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles,
code provisions and certain recommended best practices as set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2008, except for certain deviations
from the code provisions in respect of A.2.1, A4.1, A4.2 and B.1.1,
details of which are explained in the respective sections of this report.

Moreover, the Company publishes quarterly financial results of the Group
by way of announcement which exceeds the code provisions set out in
the Code. However, the Company does not publish and distribute report
for quarterly financial results of the Group as the Board is of the view
that publication of quarterly financial reports does not bring significant
benefits to shareholders, but at the cost of their own.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct of the Company for Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry with the Directors,
all of the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2008.

Board of Directors

Composition

As at 31 March 2008, the Board comprised ten Directors, including two
Executive Directors, four Non-executive Directors and four Independent
Non-executive Directors. To the best knowledge of the Company, the
Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out under the heading

“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 24 to 33 of this annual
report.
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Board of Directors (cont'd)
Role and function

The Board takes responsibility for the formulation of the overall strategy
and the leadership and control of the Group such as the Group’s long
term objectives and strategies, the approval of the Group’s corporate and
capital structure, financial reporting and controls, internal controls and risk
management, material contracts, communication with the shareholders,
the Board membership and other appointments, remuneration of
Directors and other senior management, delegation of authority to Board
committees and corporate governance matters.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Board held four regular
meetings at approximately quarterly intervals and three additional
meetings where the Directors attended either in person or by other means
of electronic communication. The individual attendance records of each
Directors at the Board meetings held during the year ended 31 March
2008 are set out below:

Directors

=

Corporate Governance Report
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Number of meetings attended/
held during the tenure of

the respective Directors
BRESNEEHBNLE

SRNEERETRE

Executive Directors

GUO Wei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)*
LIN Yang (President)*

LI Qin (retired on 19 December 2007)

ZENG Maochao (retired on 19 December 2007)
HUA Zhinian (resigned on 19 December 2007)

Non-executive Directors

Andrew Y. YAN (appointed on 19 December 2007)
TANG Xudong (appointed on 19 December 2007)

CHEN Derek Zhiyong (appointed on 19 December 2007)
LUO Hong (appointed on 19 December 2007)

William O. GRABE (resigned on 17 December 2007)

Independent Non-executive Directors
HU Zhao Guang

WU lJinglian

WONG Man Chung, Francis

KWAN Ming Heung, Peter

HITEE

DR (EEFEENTE) * 77
Wie (8E) * 717
28 (RZFEFLF AT NHRK) 4/4
BXE (RZEFLEF A+ HRIK) 4/4
FEWF (R=FFLF+ AT LHEF) 3/4
HPITEE

Mk (R=ZFELFF=AFNHAEES) 3/3
BBR (R=ZFFLF+A+NAEZE) 3/3
CHEN Derek Zhiyong (R=FZFLF+=-A+NHEZ(E) 3/3
BE (R=TF+LF1 A1 /LHEZ() 3/3
William O. GRABE (RZ=FZF+F+=H 1+ HEHE) 0/3
BIIHITEE

HARA & 7/7
RERE 6/7
IR 717
KWAN Ming Heung, Peter 717

* Mr. GUO Wei was appointed as Chairman of the Board on 19 December 2007. *
The Company announced on 27 February 2008, Mr. LIN Yang was appointed
and Mr. GUO ceased to act as President of the Company with effect from 1 April
2008. Since then, Mr. GUO Wei acted as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

of the Company.
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Board of Directors (cont'd)
Appointments and re-election

The Board is empowered under the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
Laws") to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Qualified candidates will be proposed to
the Board for consideration and the selection criteria are mainly based on
the assessment of their professional qualifications, experience and their
possible contribution to the Group. In December 2007, Mr. Andrew Y.
YAN, Mr. TANG Xudong, Mr. CHEN Derek Zhiyong and Mr. LUO Hong
were appointed as Non-executive Directors with unanimous approval by
Directors.

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

All of the Non-executive Directors of the Company were not appointed
for any specific term. Since all Directors (save for Chairman or Managing
Director) are subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting in accordance with the Bye-Laws and shall be eligible for re-
election. The Board considers that the retirement by rotation at each annual
general meeting in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company has
given the shareholders of the Company the right to approve continuation
of the service of the Directors.

The second part of Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Bye-Laws, at each annual general meeting one-third of
the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, the number nearest to one-third shall retire from
office notwithstanding anything herein, the Chairman of the Board and
the Managing Director shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject
to retirement by rotation. Therefore, Mr. GUO Wei, Chairman of the
Company, shall not be subject to retirement by rotation.

Independent non-executive directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed four Independent Non-executive Directors and one of
whom has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is of the view that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers that they are independent.
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Remuneration Committee

A Remuneration Committee was established on 31 August 2006 with
specific written terms of reference. As at 31 March 2008, the Remuneration
Committee was made up of four members, of which two are Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Andrew Y. YAN, the Chairman, and Mr.
LUO Hong, and two are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
WONG Man Chung, Francis and Mr. KWAN Ming Heung, Peter.

Code Provision B.1.1 stipulates that a majority of the members of the
Remuneration Committee should be Independent Non-executive Directors.
However, only half of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. Since each of the committee
members has extensive experience in setting up the remuneration policy
for the Directors and senior management, the Board considers that this
combination of the committee members mostly conform to the needs of
the Company and is best to the optimal efficiency for the operation of the
Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for, among others, determine
and agree with the Board the framework and policy, take into account all
factors which it deems necessary, for the remuneration of the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer, and the Executive Directors, determine the total
individual remuneration package of each Executive Director (including the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer) and other senior executives
including bonuses, incentive payments and share options or other share
awards within the terms of the agreed policy and in consultation with the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer as appropriate.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31 March
2008, where the members attended in person to review the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors. The individual attendance record of
each committee members at the Remuneration Committee meeting held
during the year ended 31 March 2008 is set out below:

Committee Members
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Number of meeting attended/
held during the tenure of
the respective committee members

BEEEMEN AR HE

ZEEHE ERNE ERBTRHY
Andrew Y.YAN (appointed as Chairman on 19 December 2007) BM(R=FEELF AT NAEZEREE) 0/0
LUO Hong (appointed on 19 January 2008) BE(R_FZ\F—HA+NHEZE) 0/0
WONG Man Chung, Francis BEXR 17
KWAN Ming Heung, Peter KWAN Ming Heung, Peter 11
ZENG Maochao (retired on 19 December 2007) BERBH(R=TELFF=AFLHRK) 1
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Remuneration Committee (cont'd)

Details of the Director's emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2008
are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

Prior to the change of Chairman of the Board from Mr. LI Qin to Mr.
GUO Wei on 19 December 2007, Mr. GUO has been the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since February 2001. Therefore, Mr. GUO took
up the dual role as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
upon the retirement of Mr. LI Qin. Mr. GUO has extensive experience in
business strategic development and management and is responsible for
overseeing the whole business, strategic development and management
of the Group. The Board believes that the dual role of Mr. GUO will benefit
the Group and the shareholders of the Company as a whole in consistent
the setting up and the implementation of the business strategy.

Audit Committee

All members of the Audit Committee are Independent Non-executive
Directors and one of whom has the appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Audit Committee is responsible for, among others, the integrity of
the financial statements of the Group, reviewing the effectiveness of the
Group's internal controls and risk management systems, reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function in the context of the
Group's overall risk management system and oversight of the relationship
with external Auditors.
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Audit Committee (cont'd)

The Audit Committee held four regular meetings during the year ended
31 March 2008 at approximately quarterly intervals where the members
attended either in person or by other means of electronic communication.
The individual attendance records of each committee members at the
Audit Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2008
are set out below:

Committee Members

u?)z j(%’j‘@' J_‘_ N EX,\%\/%
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FZA=1T—BLFERN EZBEXEREX
ZBEERZEALFEXREIIWT

Number of meetings attended/held

ZEEBHE R B
HU Zhao Guang (Chairman) HHRBE (£E) 4/4
WU Jinglian R 4/4
WONG Man Chung, Francis BHXR 4/4
KWAN Ming Heung, Peter KWAN Ming Heung, Peter 4/4

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the Audit Committee reviewed with
senior management and the Auditors of the Company their respective
audit findings, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, legal and regulatory compliance, and internal control, risk
management and financial reporting matters. The Board has, through the
Audit Committee, conducted regular reviews on the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group during the year ended 31 March
2008.

The Audit Committee has no disagreement with the Board on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the Auditors of the Company.

Remuneration of Auditors

For the year ended 31 March 2008, remuneration to Auditors of the
Company were approximately HK$4,270,000 for audit services and
HK$625,000 for non-audit services (in which agreed-upon procedures
on connected transactions was HK$75,000, agreed-upon procedures on
indebtedness review was HK$100,000 and agreed-upon procedures on
quarterly/interim results was HK$450,000).
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Internal Control and Risk Management
Principle

The Board should ensure that the internal control of the issuer is solid,
sound, effective, so as to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
issuer’s assets.

Internal Control and Risk Management

A well-designed internal control system is very important to the protection
of the Group’s assets, the reliability of its financial statements, and its
compliance with legislation and rules. As such, the Group is committed
to establishing and maintaining a sound internal control system to
provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against any serious
misrepresentation or loss, and to manage, though not eliminate, any risk
of serious mistakes regarding the operation system and the objectives
of the Group. The Board also perceives its overall responsibility for the
internal control, financial control and risk management of the Company,
and will review its effectiveness from time to time.

The Group has an Internal Audit Department, which is responsible for
the internal audit of the Group, independent assessment of risks, and
internal control procedures and system, and reports its findings, with
recommendations, to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

The Internal Audit Department will assess the risks to which the Company
is exposed, and formulate an audit plan on that basis annually, so as to
ensure that the internal audit covers all areas of high risks. The audit plan
will be submitted to the Audit Committee for approval. The scope of audit
review is determined based on the risk assessment results. Special reviews
will be conducted on matters which are of concern to the management
or the Audit Committee.

Monitoring Procedures

The Board establishes and maintains a good internal control system
through the following principal procedures:

(1) Establishing a reasonable and effective organization structure with
clear functions, responsibilities and authority;

(2) Laying down stringent procedures for budget preparation and
budget management; formulating business plans and financial
budgets annually; rationally adjusting the organization structure
based on business planning; ensuring the effective operation of the
organization; reviewing the implementation of budgets; and making
reasonable adjustment based on the latest conditions;
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Internal Control and Risk Management (cont'd)
Monitoring Procedures (cont’d)

(3) The Internal Audit Department — independently assessing the
comprehensibility and effectiveness of the monitoring of principal
business; reporting its principal findings, with recommendations, to
the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis; and

(4) The Auditors — making a “management proposal” in its audit of
annual results; recommending ways to address some internal
management areas which are correspondingly weak; the management
making serious reviews, and making and submitting improvement
proposals to the Audit Committee.

Assessment of Annual Internal Monitoring

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the Internal Audit Department
adopted a risk-based methodology to focus on and monitor principal
workflow, and reported the internal audit results to the Audit Committee
on a quarterly basis. Through the Audit Committee, the Board reviewed
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. The internal
control system covers all important matters to be monitored, including
finance, operation and compliance matters, as well as risk management
functions. The Board firmly believes that the Group was in full compliance
with the internal control provisions set out in the governance rules in the
2007/08 financial year.

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group on a going concern basis
in accordance with the statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards.

The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 54 to 55 of this annual report.

REREE1E I BB E IR ()

ELERRR ()

() MEFAE — BUNGETREBER T
BHERME  BFREABTRZESERTR
BHRMEE R

@) ZEE - EEFEREERTROIEEESR
£ SHHAMEEZAEESNRMARLET
BEEE BEESRERY  RHNERS
& YABEZZBGER -

FENRREERE
BE_TZN\F=A=+—HLLFE - AE:t
BEATEINTIEREREZENRAREET
% ABFEAEXZESERANMBETE
EE2 R RERZESRIAEEAMEERR
ZREE - AR AMREMAEAEZEER
BREME  £EREBTEREEUALRABREERDN
B UHREASER-_TTL/T/\FEEZA
BT ERRAIPTEA BN APEIE Z IR ©

ESRGBMRMERREARE 2SR

EERANSABERREETERERGE
A BSEREEERIAEAERATRRARAR
REBM AR Z NEBIAEHREK

RABZEM AL BT BIRERTIEZ ARE T
BN A FERFES4E FES5H 2 B X EED
RER o

NI IER AR AR F3R 07/08

41




)

42

Report of the Directors
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The directors of the Company have pleasure in submitting their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the

Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2008.

Principal Activities and Segment Information

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the sale and distribution of general information
technology and systems products and provision of systems integration.

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 March 2008 are
set out in note 20 to the financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for the year by business is
set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008 and the state
of affairs at that date of the Company and the Group are set out in the
financial statements on pages 56 to 161 of this annual report.

The directors of the Company recommend the payment of a final dividend
of 14.55 HK cents (2007: 8.28 HK cents) per share in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2008 to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 19 August 2008. This recommendation
has been incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of
retained profits within the equity section of the consolidated balance
sheet and the balance sheet of the Group and the Company respectively.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority interests
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 162 of this
annual report. The five year financial summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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Investment Properties

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements, together with the reasons therefor, in the share
capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 36 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity set out on pages 59 of
this annual report, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 March 2008, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted
to HK$954,147,000, of which HK$140,210,000 has been proposed as
a final dividend for the year. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of HK$620,567,000, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or the

laws of Bermuda although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws of Bermuda.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. GUO Wei
(Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

(appointed as Chairman on
19 December 2007 and
ceased to act as President on
1 April 2008)

Mr. LIN Yang (appointed as President with effect
(President) from 1 April 2008)
Mr. LI Qin (retired on 19 December 2007)

Mr. ZENG Maochao (retired on 19 December 2007)

Mr. HUA Zhinian (resigned on 19 December 2007)
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Directors (cont'd)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Andrew Y. YAN (appointed on 19 December 2007)

Mr. TANG Xudong (appointed on 19 December 2007)

Mr. CHEN Derek Zhiyong (appointed on 19 December 2007)

Mr. LUO Hong (appointed on 19 December 2007)

Mr. William O. GRABE (resigned on 17 December 2007)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. HU Zhao Guang

Professor WU Jinglian

Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis

Mr. KWAN Ming Heung, Peter

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr. LIN Yang
and Professor WU Jinglian will retire from office by rotation in accordance
with Bye-Law 99 of the Bye-Laws and Mr. Andrew Y. YAN, Mr. TANG
Xudong, Mr. CHEN Derek Zhiyong and Mr. LUO Hong will retire from
office in accordance with Bye-Law 102(B) of the Bye-Laws. Being eligible,
all of them will offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Agreements

Each of the executive directors of the Company entered into a service
agreement with the Company which shall continue in force unless and
until terminated by (i) either the Company or the director serving on the
other not less than three months’ notice, or (i) his retirement as a director
without being re-elected as a director by the shareholders in an annual
general meeting in accordance with the Bye-Laws, or (iii) in the event of
the director’s default under the terms of the service agreement.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
has a service agreement with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than the statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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Share Options

The Company has two share option schemes. The old share option scheme
(the 2001 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted on 14 May 2001 and
terminated on 18 July 2002. Despite termination and no further options
can be granted under the 2001 Share Option Scheme, the provisions of
the 2001 Share Option Scheme remain in full force and effect in all other
respects to govern all outstanding options granted prior to termination.
The existing share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted on 18 July 2002. At 31 March 2008, there were no outstanding
options under the 2001 Share Option Scheme and the 2002 Share Option
Scheme. Details of movements in the share options during the year are set
out in note 35 to the financial statements.

Directors’ and Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in
Shares

At 31 March 2008, the following persons had the following interests in
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Sections 352 and 336 of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or which were required to be notified
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to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code — &U#Z¥E<F RI([ZXE SR AN ) BAME AN A 7] KB EEF)'T
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model — ZAARIEHD#ER
Code"”) adopted by the Company:
Percentage
of aggregate
holding
Name Capacity Number of shares  in shares (%)
aiERE
=r 1 RHEE 2B (%)
(Note 1) (Note 11)
(Kiat1) (Bfa11)
Sparkling Investment (BVI) Beneficial owner/ 176,745,052/ 40.28
Limited (Note 2) (Ktzt2) Interests of parties to concert 388,128,995
group agreement (Note 10)
EnHEEAN
BFAR—BUTEVE B Ze s (a7 10)
SAIF Il GP Capital Ltd. (Note 2) (K1z%2) Interest of a controlled corporation/ 176,745,052/ 40.28

Interests of parties to concert
group agreement (Note 10)

Ry EE 2
EHR—BUTB S B EnER (f7:110)

388,128,995
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Directors’ and Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in

Shares (cont'd)

ESRIERREERMDE

= (48)

Percentage
of aggregate
holding
Name Capacity Number of shares in shares (%)
SHEBERE
=718 1 RPEE ZBEDH (%)
(Note 1) (Note 11)
(B1aE1) (KiaE11)
Andrew Y. YAN * (Note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation/ 176,745,052/ 40.28
Brkx (Hat2) Interests of parties to concert 388,128,995
group agreement (Note 10)
RPEEE 2 S
BEFR—BITBIE B R (M 10)
Charmway Trading Limited Beneficial owner/ 77,325,960/ 40.28
(Note 3) (Kt7£3) Interests of parties to concert 388,128,995
group agreement (Note 10)
EnEAANS
FAR—BUTE R E e (Mt 10)
Hony Capital Fund Ill, L.P. Interest of a controlled corporation/ 77,325,960/ 40.28
(Note 3) (Ft5#3) Interests of parties to concert 388,128,995
group agreement (Note 10)
RPEEE 2 S
AR —BUTEV B e (M1 10)
Hony Capital Fund Ill, G.P. L.P. Interest of a controlled corporation/ 77,325,960/ 40.28
(Note 3) (K1#£3) Interests of parties to concert 388,128,995
group agreement (Note 170)
RYEEE 2w
BEAR—BITEE B R (Mt 10)
Hony Capital Fund Ill, G.P. Interest of a controlled corporation/ 77,325,960/ 40.28
Limited (Note 3) (f1713) Interests of parties to concert 388,128,995
group agreement (Note 10)
RPEEE 2 s
FEAR—BUTEV B e (M2 10)
Hony Capital Management Il Limited Interest of a controlled corporation/ 77,325,960/ 40.28
(Note 3) (K17#£3) Interests of parties to concert 388,128,995

group agreement (Note 10)
RV E S
BERR—BETBEE RN ER (fE10)
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ESRIERREERMOES (&)

Shares (cont'd)

Percentage
of aggregate
holding
Name Capacity Number of shares  in shares (%)
aiERE
=L 1 RHEE ZBEDH (%)
(Note 1) (Note 11)
(Kiat1) (Bfa11)
John Huan ZHAO (Note 3) Interest of a controlled corporation/ 77,325,960/ 40.28
HOB (fY53) Interests of parties to concert 388,128,995
group agreement (Note 10)
SRPEEE 2 s
FAR—BUTE R E e (M5 10)
Fine Elite Management Limited Beneficial owner/ 33,139,697/ 40.28
(Note 4) (Ftzt4) Interests of parties to concert 388,128,995
group agreement (Note 10)
EnEEAN
EAR—BITBIE B AR (HE10)
IDG Technology Venture Investment Il Interest of a controlled corporation/ 33,139,697/ 40.28
LLC (Note 4) (Ktzt4) Interests of parties to concert 388,128,995
group agreement (Note 10)
RIEEE 2w
EAR—BITEE B B EA R (M 10)
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP Interest of a controlled corporation/ 33,139,697/ 40.28
Associates Ltd. (Note 4) (Kizt4) Interests of parties to concert 388,128,995
group agreement (Note 10)
RIEEEE 2
BN B TRV B B (HE10)
Patrick J. MCGOVERN Interest of a controlled corporation/ 33,139,697/ 40.28
(Note 4) (Ki:t4) Interests of parties to concert 388,128,995
group agreement (Note 10)
RYEEE
BTN —BITEVE B B E R (M 10)
Quan ZHOU (Note 4) Interest of a controlled corporation/ 33,139,697/ 40.28
Az (Kit4) Interests of parties to concert 388,128,995

group agreement (Note 10)
XA
BAR—BITE S B Ze R (fz710)

NI IER AR AR F3R 07/08
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Directors’ and Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in

Shares (cont'd)
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ESRIERREARMOER (8

Percentage
of aggregate
holding
Name Capacity Number of shares  in shares (%)
aiERE
=L g1 oS 2B (%)
(Note 1) (Note 11)
(HizE1) (Kta£11)
Kosalaki Investments Limited Beneficial owner/ 89,414,286/ 40.28
(Note 5) (Ktzt5) Interests of parties to concert 388,128,995
group agreement (Note 10)
EmEAAN
FEAR—BUTEV SR B e (M 10)
GUO Wei * (Note 5) Beneficial owner/ 11,504,000/ 40.30
m* (HzEs5) Interest of a controlled corporation/ 89,414,286/
Interests of parties to concert 388,303,997
group agreement (Note 10)
ExEAEAN
RIEAE 2
AR —BUTEV B e (M1 10)
Legend Holdings Limited (Notes 6 & 7) Beneficial owner/ 15,013,077/ 16.23
BRI AR AT (Mitek7) Interest of a controlled corporation 141,368,642
EnBEEA
R A E
Employees’ Shareholding Interest of controlled corporations 156,381,719 16.23
Society of Legend Holdings R EE s
Limited (Notes 6 & 8)
AR IRRR AR A RIB TSR (Afate k8)
Allianz SE (Note 9) (H17£9) Interest of controlled corporations 57,912,000 6.01
SN Ty
LIN Yang * Beneficial owner 56,000 0.006
i5* E=mEB A

Remark: * — Directors

fi - —E¥
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Report of the Directors EEERE

Directors’ and Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in BEERTERREEROER (&)
Shares (cont'd)
Notes:

All of the interests disclosed herein represent long position in the shares of the
Company.

1.

EXFRE R 2RAREIRND ZFE -

Sparkling Investment (BVI) Limited (“SIBL") is wholly-owned by SAIF Partners 2. Sparkling Investment (BVI) Limited ([SIBL])EASAIF
Il L.P.. SAIF Partners Il L.P. is controlled by SAIF Il GP, L.P. which is controlled Partners lll LP2&#A © SAIF Partners Ill L.P.E3SAIF
by Mr. Andrew Y. YAN through SAIF Ill GP Capital Ltd., therefore, Mr. Andrew Il GP, L.PET#EH] o SAIF IIl GP, LPEHB#TES R
Y. YAN was deemed to be interested in such shares in which SIBL was SAIF Il GP Capital Ltd.Frizeshl - Rt - Bot S
interested. BB Z 5 HSIBLATS A Z IR (D o
Charmway Trading Limited (“CTL"), is wholly-owned by Hony Capital Fund Ill, 3. Charmway Trading Limited ([CTL]) * EHony Capital
L.P.. Hony Capital Fund Ill, L.P. is controlled by Hony Capital Fund Ill, G.P. L.P, Fund Ill, LPZ2&¥%A ° Hony Capital Fund Ill, L.P.E
which is controlled by Hony Capital Fund Ill, G.P. Limited. Hony Capital Fund Hony Capital Fund Ill, G.P. L.PAT #% &l o MiHony
lll, G.P. Limited is wholly-owned by Hony Capital Management Il Limited. Capital Fund Ill, G.P. L.PAfEHony Capital Fund III,
Hony Capital Management Il Limited is owned as to 55% by Mr. John Huan G.P. Limitedff # #l ° Hony Capital Fund Il, G.P
ZHAO. LimiteddgHony Capital Management Ill Limited & &
A - WS EEAEBEAHony Capital Management Il
Limited 55% 2 ##s ©
Fine Elite Management Limited (“FEML"), is jointly-owned by IDG Technology 4. Fine Elite Management Limited ([FEMLJ) - H1IDG
Venture Investment Ill, L.P, IDG-Accel China Growth Fund L.P, IDG-Accel Technology Venture Investment Ill, L.P. ~ IDG-Accel
China Growth Fund-A L.P. and IDG-Accel China Investors L.P.. IDG Technology China Growth Fund L.P. * IDG-Accel China Growth
Venture Investment lll, L.P. is controlled by IDG Technology Venture Investment Fund-A L.P}IDG-Accel China Investors L.P.3t[RI#E
lll, LLC, which is in turn controlled by Mr. Quan ZHOU and Mr. Patrick J. A °IDG Technology Venture Investment I, L.P.&4
MCGOVERN. IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP Associates Ltd. is controlled IDG Technology Venture Investment Ill, LLC A2l °
by Mr. Quan ZHOU and Mr. Patrick J. MCGOVERN. Both IDG-Accel China IDG Technology Venture Investment Ill, LLCERJEZ
Growth Fund L.P. and IDG-Accel China Growth Fund-A L.P. are controlled by % & KPatrick J. MCGOVERNSE 4 AT 12 il © IDG-
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Associates L.P. which is controlled by IDG-Accel Accel China Growth Fund GP Associates Ltd.F /&
China Growth Fund GP Associates Ltd. and is in turn controlled by Mr. Quan % % 4 K Patrick J. MCGOVERNSE A4 A% il © IDG-
ZHOU and Mr. Patrick J. MCGOVERN. Accel China Growth Fund L.P.}IDG-Accel China
Growth Fund-A L.P.F5IDG-Accel China Growth Fund
Associates L.PAT 2 il © IDG-Accel China Growth
Fund Associates L.P.FHIDG-Accel China Growth
Fund GP Associates Ltd.Ff#% il © IDG-Accel China
Growth Fund GP Associates Ltd.Fi /& & %t & &
Patrick J. MCGOVERNZE &A%
Kosalaki Investments Limited (“KIL"), incorporated in the BVI with limited 5.  Kosalaki Investments Limited ([KIL|)EZFA%ESE
liability, is wholly-owned by Mr. GUO Wei. BHER -
The English names “Legend Holdings Limited” and “Employees’ Shareholding 6. HEXHME[Legend Holdings Limited | %[ Employees’
Society of Legend Holdings Limited” are direct transliterations of their Chinese Shareholding Society of Legend Holdings Limited |
registered names "B 183X AR A E]" and "B EIEIR AR A RIB TR S TR EZEEEEMER P AR AR
respectively. RAR | REEERERA B IERE |
141,368,642 shares were held by Right Lane Limited, a wholly-owned 7. 141,368,642k XD T EREFBIERER AT 2 2 E

subsidiary and a controlled corporation of Legend Holdings Limited, and
therefore Legend Holdings Limited was deemed to be interested in such
shares by virtue of the SFO.

BEMBRRRZEEEEHERARRE -
I - RIBE S R EE GG - BARERERARIRG
TEEEZERM 2= -
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Directors’ and Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in

Shares (cont'd)
Notes: (cont’d)

8. Employees’ Shareholding Society of Legend Holdings Limited was the controlling
shareholder of Legend Holdings Limited and was therefore deemed to be interested
in the 156,381,719 shares in which Legend Holdings Limited was interested.

9. 57,912,000 shares were beneficially held by RCM Asia Pacific Limited. RCM
Asia Pacific Limited was indirectly wholly-owned by Allianz SE.

10. A concert group agreement dated 1 August 2007 entered into among the
concert group, namely SIBL, CTL, FEML, KIL and Mr. GUO Wei.

11. The percentage of aggregate holding in shares was calculated on the basis of
963,619,581 shares of the Company in issue at 31 March 2008.

Save as disclosed herein, at 31 March 2008, none of the directors and
chief executives of the Company or their associates had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which the directors and chief
executives were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed herein, at 31 March 2008, no other interests or short
positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company were required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO.

Connected Transactions

During the year under review, the Group entered into the following
connected transactions which are of a regular and continuing nature
and in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group under the
Listing Rules:

1. (a) On 27 March 2006, the Company entered into a supplemental
master sales agreement with Lenovo Group Limited (“Lenovo”)
with a term of three years commencing on 9 June 2006
(“2006 Agreement”) for the purpose of regulating the Sales
Arrangements, being the sales of IT products and the provision of
services by the Group to Lenovo and/or its subsidiaries (“Lenovo
Group”). On 7 November 2007, the Company entered into a
master agreement with Lenovo (“2007 Master Agreement”)
with a term of three years commencing on 20 December 2007,
which superseded the 2006 Agreement, in relation to the Sales
Arrangements.
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Connected Transactions (cont'd)

(b) On 27 March 2006, the Company entered into a supplemental
master purchases agreement with Lenovo with a term of
three years commencing on 9 June 2006 for the purpose of
regulating (i) the Purchases Arrangements, being the purchases
by the Group from the Lenovo Group of computers and other
related IT products of certain Lenovo brands and the provision
of services by the Lenovo Group to the Group and (i) the IBM
Purchases Transactions, being the purchases of the IBM products
together with the warranty and post-warranty services and the
provision of services (including upgrade services) by the Group
from Lenovo Group.

Legend Holdings Limited (“Legend”) is a connected person of
the Company by virtue of being a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Lenovo is an associate of Legend by virtue of Legend
being its controlling shareholder, and therefore Lenovo and any of
its associates are regarded as connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. A former director of the Company was also
a director of Lenovo.

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the aggregate amount of the
sales by the Group to Lenovo Group was HK$107,227,000 and the
aggregate amount of the purchases by the Group from Lenovo Group
was HK$1,309,519,000.

DGT Information Systems Limited (“DGT"), a company owned as to
55% by the Company, 25% by GE Capital Mauritius Equity Investment
("GE") and 20% by TIS Inc. (“TIS"), entered into master agreements
with GE (“GE Agreement”) and TIS (“TIS Agreement”) respectively
both dated 31 December 2004 for the purpose of regulating the
transactions relating to the provision of software development,
applications outsourcing, IT support and other related professional
services by DGT and its subsidiaries to GE and/or its associates (“GE
Transactions”) and to TIS and/or its associates (“TIS Transactions”).

On 23 January 2007, the Company announced that DGT entered into
supplemental agreements with GE and TIS respectively both dated 22
January 2007 to extend the term of each of the GE Agreement and
the TIS Agreement for a period of three years from 1 April 2007 to
31 March 2010.
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Connected Transactions (cont'd)

As GE and TIS are each a substantial shareholder of DGT, GE, TIS and
their respective associates are regarded as connected persons of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the aggregate amount of the GE
Transactions was HK$10,684,000 and the aggregate amount of the
TIS Transactions was HK$33,337,000.

The above continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by
the directors of the Company (including the independent non-executive
directors). The independent non-executive directors have confirmed that
these continuing connected transactions have been entered into:

a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

C) inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have also confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions:

a) have received the approval of the board of directors of the
Company;

b) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

¢) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

d) have not exceeded their respective caps disclosed in the
announcements dated 27 March 2006, 23 January 2007 and 7
November 2007.

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2008 are disclosed in note 41 to the financial
statements.

Donations

During the year, no charitable and other donations were made by the
Group (2007: Nil).
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers was less than 30% (2007: less than 30%) of the Group’s
total turnover for the year.

The aggregate percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers was approximately 49% (2007: approximately 46 %) of the Group's total
purchases and the percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier was approximately 16% (2007: approximately 14%) for the year.

None of the directors, any of their associates or shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s major
customers or suppliers noted above.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities
During the year ended 31 March 2008, neither the Company nor any of

its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008
of the Group were audited by Messrs. Ernst and Young.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Messrs.
Ernst & Young will retire but, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
appointment, and accordingly a resolution will be proposed to re-appoint
Messrs. Ernst & Young as the auditors of the Company.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the directors confirm that the Company
has maintained the amount of public float as required under the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 March 2008.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
RREFS

Zf
GUO Wei 2%
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer F/E# B/E#HTE

Hong Kong, 25 June 2008
BE —ETN\FAA=ZTHH
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Independent Auditors’ Report
WA IS

=ll ERNST & YOUNG
% K & 3t B FE FOFF

To the shareholders of Digital China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Digital China Holdings
Limited set out on pages 56 to 161, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report &3 #Z (D

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2008 and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

RKETHERE ISR

Certified Public Accountants

EBED

18/F.,, Two International Finance Centre

8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong
BRETRERESHEESRA O+ /\E

25 June 2008
—ZEENFA=1+HH

B RMTIEF AR B AN REME SR
REBEEMNERRE - FIEENRFIUARZ
SUEM Y FI B - B4R R B EREF SR RR T A B
BHRRGAEERBERBAN R - EFEZER
RE - RZHUMEEEEZARRENEEMAA
HHIFHRM T MERABBORBES - ARFTEED
BIZIEF - B IFH R A AR IR0 B R 2
RER - BERNBRENBESMREANGFTRER
MEBEERIERONEFHAETNAENE - UEFFE
MIEmANERIHRARN -

HAIRE  BRAMERNEZERTE LEE
REMNEZE RIRHER -

=R

BMRS - ZEVWBHRRERIKEEVHTREE
ADEEMAARR EARR ERER-F
ENFZA=1T—"BOMBIRE BEXEHE
ZHEIEFEREMNMRSRE  YEK (FER
ARADZ BEREZZRE -

MM BISERBR AR FiR 07/08

=+
3F

R

55




Consolidated Income Statement #Z&UkE

Year ended 31 March 2008 EHE—_ZZN\F=ZA=+—HILFE
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Htat BET T BT
Revenue KA 5 35,243,773 25,418,398
Cost of sales SHERAR (32,732,995) (23,569,405)
Gross profit EF 2,510,778 1,848,993
Other income and gains H AU A R Uz 5 417,965 219,938
Selling and distribution costs SHE K9 SR A (1,548,118) (1,105,296)
Administrative expenses 1THE (394,624) (318,635)
Other operating expenses, net E s B A FE (335,350) (230,263)
Total operating expenses EiE B AEE 6 (2,278,092) (1,654,194)
Finance costs BhE A 8 (207,791) (146,406)
Share of profits and losses of: FEMRTAIRE 2 mA & EE
Jointly-controlled entities HENEGIDZE (880) (20,882)
Associates H”‘é.—fﬁ Al 11,052 (5,505)
Profit before tax BRB AR R 7 453,032 241,944
Tax I8 11 (52,152) (40,631)
Profit for the year R R A 400,880 201,313
Attributable to: FER
Equity holders of the parent [SYNEIEEY T 12 401,125 208,429
Minority interests DEIR R R (245) (7,116)
400,880 201,313
Dividends — Proposed final iR 2 — B AR A 13 140,210 72,370
Earnings per share BAREBERRR
attributable to ordinary EEERA2F
equity holders of the parent 14
Basic HK 43.72 HK centsi#& i 23.92 HK cents/ Il
Diluted e 42.91 HK centsi#fill 23.78 HK centsi# il
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Consolidated Balance Sheet &8 EEER

31 March 2008 —ZZN\F=A=+—H

2008 2007
SN —TEts
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HitaE BT T BETT
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE KR 15 401,124 337,621
Investment properties LB 16 234,212 208,226
Prepaid land premiums BT EE 17 14,765 13,547
Intangible assets BV EE 19 5,526 19,087
Interests in jointly-controlled entities ~ FA kR HI 2 2 28 22 7,894 3,644
Interests in associates REE AR 2R 23 35,612 22,970
Available-for-sale investments AIEHEZRE 24 31,611 31,611
Deferred tax assets RIETIEEE 25 19,480 25,038
Total non-current assets BIEMENVEE 750,224 661,744
Current assets REEE
Inventories =E 26 2,559,364 1,683,630
Trade and bills receivables FEWE SRR B R 28 3,772,820 2,852,404
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE - B Kk
other receivables H b U R IE 1,233,629 957,146
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTH 29 998,454 717,455
8,564,267 6,210,635
Non-current asset classified as BEFSZIERDEE
held for sale 30 - 12,681
Total current assets BRBEE 8,564,267 6,223,316
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and bills payables ERTE SRR EN Z R 31 3,334,519 2,667,444
Other payables and accruals HippE o iaRER 1,695,420 975,330
Tax payable FESAHIE 66,405 31,807
Interest-bearing bank borrowings WERITER 32 400,066 633,536
Total current liabilities BREaE 5,496,410 4,308,117
Net current assets RBEEFE 3,067,857 1,915,199
Total assets less current BEERRBERS
liabilities 3,818,081 2,576,943
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Consolidated Balance Sheet &8 EEER

31 March 2008 —ZZN\F=A=+—H
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HiaF BT BT
Non-current liabilities FRBAR
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M BERTTE R 32 952,803 603,697
Bond payable ErES 33 221,582 =
Total non-current liabilities BIETEAE 1,174,385 603,697
Net assets EEFE 2,643,696 1,973,246
Equity s
Equity attributable to FRARRREGER
equity holders of the parent
Issued capital BEITRA 34 96,362 87,404
Reserves i 36(a) 2,389,347 1,801,579
Proposed final dividend ¥k AR EIRY B 13 140,210 72,370
2,625,919 1,961,353
Minority interests DYIRRER 17,777 11,893
Total equity RSB 2,643,696 1,973,246

S
Ef % A
GUO Wei 2% LIN Yang ##

Chairman /& Director £
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity HREEZE XK

Year ended 31 March 2008 HEZ=ZTZT N\F=-A=-+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

FRARRER
Employee
Share share-based Exchange Proposed
Issued premium Capital compensation Reserve  fluctuation Retained final Minority Total
capital account reserve reserve funds reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
MRHX
2&f Bt fHEEZ EXKE Bk HY
B& RER ERRE ek REEE e REER KERS @zt BRER EREH
Notes HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Hi# BETT BETT AETT BT Vit A BT BETT BETT AR AR BYFT
(note 36(a))
(Hiz#36(2)
At 1 April 2006
mA-H 86,693 305,334 625,334 50,458 53,762 6,434 572,151 86,693 1,786,859 19,009 1,805,868
Exchange realignmentand ~ AEEER AR
net gain recognised directly  EERERER
in equity for the year 2z - - - - - 31,998 - - 31,998 = 31,998
Profit for the year REEEF - - - - = = 208,429 = 208,429 (7,116) 201,313
Total income and expense REFHEPA
for the year kA% = = = = = 31,998 208,429 - 240,427 (7,116) 233311
Exercise of share options IfEEERE 34 m 14,238 - (498) = = = = 14,451 = 14,451
Equity-settled share option ~ BABAZ 2
arrangements “%ME;ZH 35 - - - 6,309 - - - - 6,309 - 6,309
Final 2006 dividend
- - - - - - - (86,693) (86,693) - (86,693)
Proposed final 2007 dividend
KRS 13 - - - - - - (12,370) 72370 - - -
Transfer to reserve funds BRERHELS - - - - 10,240 - (10,240) - - - -
At 31 March 2007 RoZELE
=R=1-H 87,404 319,572% 625,334* 56,269* 64,002* 38,432% 697,970% 72,310 1,961,353 11,893 1,973,246
At 1 April 2007 RZZ2tE
mA-H 87,404 319,572 625,334 56,269 64,002 38,432 697,970 72,310 1,961,353 11,893 1,973,246
Exchange realignmentand A% ﬁmﬂ%&
net gain recognised directly B3
in equity for the year W - - - - - 77,088 - - 77,088 - 77,088
Profit for the year REEET - - - - - - 401,125 - 401,125 (245) 400,880
Total income and expense REFHEPA
for the year REx - - - - - 77,088 401,125 - 478,213 (245) 471,968
Exercise of share options frfeRE 34 8,958 300,995 - (52,806) - - - - 257,147 - 257,147
Release upon lapse of vested B SFR@HERIE
share options KpEEL - - - (5,039) - - 5,039 = = = =
Equity-settled share option ~ WAIRIA 2
arrangements BRERH 35 - - - 1,576 - - - - 1,576 - 1,576
Capital injection from minority  —FHBAE
shareholders of a subsidiary 2 BREZ
TEER = - - - - - - - - 6,457 6,457
Acquisition of minority interests 88D SRR £ - - - - - - = = = (328) (328)
Final 2007 dividend TTtE
KRS - - - - - - - (72,310) (72,370) - (72,310)
Proposed final 2008 dividend %
RERE 13 - - - - - - (1402100 140,210 - - -
Transfer to reserve funds EREREES - - - - 17328 - (17,328) - - - -
At 31 March 2008
96,362 620,567* 625,334*% -* 81,330% 115,520* 946,596* 140,210 2,625,919 17,7711 2,643,696

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately —* ZERHHFEREXNGEEEEBERTZEA R
HK$2,389,347,000 (2007: HK$1,801,579,000) in the consolidated balance & %) 75 #2,389,347,000t( —_ T E L+ F: E ¥
sheet. 1,801,579,0007T)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement #REBERER

Year ended 31 March 2008 HEZZTZT N\F=A=+—HIEFE

60

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
KiaE BT T BT T
Cash flows from operating REEBFABRERE
activities
Profit before tax FREE RT3 A 453,032 241,944
Adjustments for: AT BIEEZ A%
Finance costs BhE A 8 207,791 146,406
Share of profits and losses of FEAR 2RI 25 K
jointly-controlled entities and B ARz m | R &R
associates (10,172) 26,387
Interest income FEUA 5 (10,124) (7,035)
Loss on disposal of items of property,  H&EWE - BE M &S
plant and equipment Z BB 7 3,482 4,142
Gain on disposal of non-current HERFBFE ZIERD
asset classified as held for sale BiE 2 WEs 5 (2,495) (21,500)
Changes in fair value of investment REMEZ NTHEEE
properties 51 (1,108) (1,456)
Depreciation e 7,1 70,839 64,197
Amortisation of prepaid land TEAS -4 7H 5 2 8
premiums 7, 17 376 352
Impairment of goodwill EERE 7, 18 - 28,566
Amortisation of intangible assets & EEE S 7,19 4,786 5,019
Impairment of intangible assets M EERE 7,19 16,731 16,259
Impairment of available-for-sale AIHHE 2 RERE
investments 7 - 2,425
Equity-settled share option expenses VARR 9 S -1 2 BB AR i R =2 7 1,576 6,309
734,714 512,015
Increase in inventories FEE (875,734) (116,603)
Increase in trade and bills receivables JE UK E 5 TR N B U Z2 4 11 (920,416) (267,731)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and  FEIFUA « &2 & KA MEIR
other receivables FRIEHE N (276,483) (389,858)
Increase in trade and bills payables FERTE SRR R IE R R IRIE AN 667,075 611,687
Increase in other payables and accruals E@Vﬁi Iﬁﬁfﬁkéﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬂ 720,090 233,767
Effect of foreign exchange rate BH) o BFE
changes, net 31,014 557
Cash generated from operations KEME2HE 80,260 583,834
Interest received BYFIE 10,124 7,035
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEAEBNIEH (2,228) -
The People’s Republic of China B E ARAMBEME
corporate income tax paid FrfS®t (11,021) (20,306)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 4% 25 FT{SIR & /558 77,135 570,563
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement %4

IE%/)ILE'!EE

Year ended 31 March 2008 HZ=—ZZN\F=A=+—HILFE

2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Miat BT T BT
Net cash inflow from operating activities A& /E8NFT{5IR & /558 77,135 570,563
Cash flows from investing RETHFRBRERE
activities
Purchases of items of property, plant BAME - BE KR
and equipment (97,535) (81,111)
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEWE -« BB REE
property, plant and equipment ZFTS5IE 1,525 440
Proceeds from disposal of non-current  HE&RFBEHFEZIERBEE
asset classified as held for sale ZFTiSE0E 16,412 112,841
Investments in jointly-controlled entities 7 £ [F1#2 ST RE (5,130) -
Investments in associates REE N T 214 (1,590) (4,703)
Purchases of available-for-sale BARHEE ZIRE
investments - (1,067)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from ®EEBE (FTHE)
investing activities BeFRE (86,318) 26,400
Cash flows from financing RETEHMEBRERE
activities
Proceeds from issue of shares BTN 2 5 50E 34 257,147 14,451
New bank loans FILIRITE R 7,772,284 7,880,917
Repayment of bank and other loans EBERTREMER (7,767,685) (7,854,988)
Proceeds from issue of a bond BITES 2 TS 0E 213,288 =
Interest paid BFE (207,791) (146,406)
Dividends paid BT E (72,370) (86,693)
Acquisition of minority interests B DB R R 2 (330) -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BEEBAE (FIFE) REFHE
financing activities 194,543 (192,719)
Net increase in cash and cash HEeRRSEEYIEMFR
equivalents 185,360 404,244
Cash and cash equivalents at FNzReRRSEEY
beginning of year 717,455 297,768
Effect of foreign exchange rate HEH s BFE
changes, net 95,639 15,443
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZEERELEEY
of year 998,454 717,455
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH BHEeRBESEEY2EBRDN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e MIRITHE 29 998,454 717,455
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Balance Sheet

31 March 2008 —ZZN\F=A=+—H

EEREX

2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HiaF BT T BT
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KRB 15 257 479
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZI%E 20 750,390 749,166
Total non-current assets BIERENEE 750,647 749,645
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TANFIE - B REM
other receivables e F IR 2,647 1,737
Due from subsidiaries FEUHI B A BI5RIA 21 1,347,257 1,017,794
Cash and bank balances B& MBI 29 1,327 913
Total current assets BB A E 1,351,231 1,020,444
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals H RO RTERE A 30,200 7,138
Due to subsidiaries BB A RFIA 21 400,602 430,153
Total current liabilities FENE M= 430,802 437,291
Net current assets REBEEEE 920,429 583,153
Net assets EEFE 1,671,076 1,332,798
Equity =
Issued capital BT 34 96,362 87,404
Reserves E 36(b) 1,434,504 1,173,024
Proposed final dividend R AR HIR B 13 140,210 72,370
Total equity RSB 1,671,076 1,332,798
ng
GUO Wei 5 LIN Yang ##5
Chairman /& Director %
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Notes to Financial Statements BffR&EMIzE

31 March 2008 —ZZN\F=A=+—H

1. Corporate Information

Digital China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The head office and principal place
of business of the Company is located at Suite 2008, 20/F., Devon House,
Taikoo Place, 979 King's Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

e sale and distribution of general information technology (“IT")
products

e sale and distribution of systems products and provision of related value-
added services

e provision of systems integration, application software development,
consultancy and training, etc.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, which have been measured at fair value,
and a non-current asset held for sale, which has been stated at the lower
of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell as further explained
in note 2.4. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2008. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which
the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All significant intercompany transactions and
balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders not held
by the Group in the results and net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.
An acquisition of minority interests is accounted for using the entity
concept method whereby the difference between the consideration and
the book value of the share of net assets acquired is recognised as an
equity transaction.
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Notes to Financial Statements BffR&xMIzE

31 March 2008 —ZZN\F=A=+—H

64

2.2 Impact of New and Revised HKFRSs

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements. Except for in certain
cases, giving rise to new and revised accounting policies and additional
disclosures, the adoption of these new and revised standards and
interpretations has had no material effect on these financial statements.

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as
follows:

(@) HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This standard requires disclosures that enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the significance of the Group’s financial
instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising from those financial
instruments. The new disclosures are included throughout the financial
statements. While there has been no effect on the financial position or
results of operations of the Group, comparative information has been
included/revised where appropriate.

(b) Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Capital Disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make disclosures that enable users
of the financial statements to evaluate the Group’s objectives, policies and
processes for managing capital. These new disclosures are shown in note
43 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements BffR&EMIzE

31 March 2008 —ZZN\F=A=+—H

2.2 Impact of New and Revised HKFRSs (cont'd)

(c) HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HFKRS 2

This interpretation requires HKFRS 2 to be applied to any arrangement in
which the Group cannot identify specifically some or all of the goods or
services received, for which equity instruments are granted or liabilities
(based on a value of the Group’s equity instruments) are incurred by the
Group for a consideration, and which appears to be less than the fair
value of the equity instruments granted or liabilities incurred. As the
Company has only issued equity instruments to the Group’s employees in
accordance with the Company’s share option schemes, the interpretation
has had no effect on these financial statements.

(d) HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

This interpretation requires that the date to assess whether an embedded
derivative is required to be separated from the host contract and accounted
for as a derivative is the date that the Group first becomes a party to
the contract, with reassessment only if there is a change to the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows. As the Group has no embedded
derivative requiring separation from the host contract, the interpretation
has had no effect on these financial statements.

(e) HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 April 2007, which
requires that an impairment loss recognised in a previous interim period
in respect of goodwill or an investment in either an equity instrument
classified as available-for-sale or a financial asset carried at cost is not
subsequently reversed. As the Group had no impairment losses previously
reversed in respect of such asset, the interpretation has had no impact on
the financial position or results of operations of the Group.

2.2 MEMREBT 2B RMBREER
BB

e
(0 BE(ERMBHERERES®) —2EESHR

BB IR & R E 255 A9 #EE
ZRBRET MBS ERIE 2R AERNER
TOMEM L : ARERZF RO BEAAER
B EERBIE MR B - BAKE
SRAEZE LA BREROBRATARE
HREERFEERATAZEBE)ERRE
3% & 2 HE PR B B W R 7% P R B EE R PR
HEATASMELAREIATFER - AREAR
AERBADA 2 BREASRNASRE 2 RE S
TRATR  #ZRBEY AR EMHREEL

S/ 48
= °

d) BEERMBHEZREZER) —2EESR
BRAPTET AR ER

ZREBRE  EAKRBERAKNREHN—HZA
B RFERARTETARGAZEIAY
DRAMER/ITETRIIRZ BH - WEEALQH
BRBERREREZ BB T ETEMR - A
RAEEYBERARTETREAZERT SN
- MR BY AR SUEREELTE -

() BEBRFBEHRERBEZES) —2REF0R
o BRRY B ER & AR (E
AEEER _ZETLFEUA - AERAZ2E
i 5% a2 FE AR E 0 A — fElh B pl i B RERR 2 BB &S
BROBAIHEEZRE T ARRAANESE
ZERMEBECREBAZBERRE  EHEETE
oo ARAEERNBEL ERZSEER LR
BEER  SNZRBEYREAEE 2P BERAIE

NI IER AR AR F3R 07/08

65




Notes to Financial Statements BffR&xMIzE

31 March 2008 —ZZN\F=A=+—H

66

2.2 Impact of New and Revised HKFRSs (cont'd)

(f)  HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

This interpretation requires arrangements whereby an employee is
granted rights to the Group’s equity instruments to be accounted for as
an equity-settled scheme, even if the Group acquires instruments from
another party, or the shareholders provide the equity instruments needed.
This interpretation also addresses the accounting for share-based payment
transactions involving two or more entities within the Group. As the Group
currently has no such transactions, the interpretation is unlikely to have
any financial impact on the Group.

2.3 Impact of Issued but not yet Effective HKFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 2 Amendments  Share-based Payment

— Vesting Conditions and Cancellations’
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?
HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)

Operating Segments’
Presentation of Financial Statements’
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HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Borrowing Costs'

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements?

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation’

Service Concession Arrangements’

Customer Loyalty Programmes*

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction’

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on of after 1 January 2008

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on of after 1 July 2008
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2.3 Impact of Issued but not yet Effective HKFRSs
(cont'd)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 clarifies the definition of “vesting conditions” and
specifies the accounting treatment of “cancellation” by the counterparty
to a share-based arrangement. Vesting conditions are service conditions
which require the counterparty to complete a specified period of service
and performance conditions which require a specified period of service
and specified performance targets to be met. Other features of a share-
based payment are not vesting conditions. All non-vesting conditions and
vesting conditions that are market conditions shall be taken into account
when estimating the fair value of the equity instruments granted. The
cancellation is accounted for as an acceleration of the vesting and the
amount that would otherwise have been recognised over the remainder
of the vesting period is recognised immediately. Any payment made to the
employee on cancellation shall be accounted for as the repurchase of an
equity interest, with excess over fair value of equity instruments granted
recognised as an expense. If the share-based arrangement included liability
components, the liability should be measured/stated at fair value at the
date of cancellation and any payment made to settle the liability shall be
accounted for as an extinguishment of the liability. The Group expects to
adopt this amendment from 1 April 2009.

HKFRS 3 has been revised to introduce a number of changes in the
accounting for business combinations that will impact the amount of
goodwill recognised, the reported results in the period that an acquisition
occurs, and future reported results. HKAS 27 has been revised to require
that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary is accounted for
as an equity transaction. Therefore, such a change will have no impact on
goodwill, nor will it give raise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the amended
standard changes the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as
well as the loss of control of a subsidiary. The changes introduced by HKFRS
3 (Revised) and HKAS 27 (Revised) must be applied prospectively and will
affect future acquisitions and transactions with minority interests.

HKFRS 8, which will replace HKAS 14 Segment Reporting, specifies how
an entity should report information about its operating segments, based
on information about the components of the entity that is available to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating resources to
the segments and assessing their performance. The standard also requires
the disclosure of information about the products and services provided by
the segments, the geographical areas in which the Group operates, and
revenue from the Group’s major customers. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 8 from 1 April 2009.
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2.3 Impact of Issued but not yet Effective HKFRSs
(cont'd)

HKAS 1 has been revised to require all owner changes in equity to be
presented in a statement of changes in equity. All comprehensive income is
presented in one statement of comprehensive income or in two statements
(a separate income statement and a statement of comprehensive income).
It requires presenting a statement of financial position as at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period in a complete set of financial statements
when there are retrospective adjustments or reclassification adjustments.
However, it does not change the recognition, measurement or disclosure
of specific transactions and other events required by other HKFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt HKAS 1 (Revised) from 1 April 2009.

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation of borrowing costs
when such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset. As the Group’s current policy for
borrowing costs aligns with the requirements of the revised standard, the
revised standard is unlikely to have any financial impact on the Group. In
accordance with the transitional provisions in the revised standard, the
Group shall apply the revised standard on a prospective basis to borrowing
costs relating to qualifying assets for which the commencement date for
capitalisation is on or after 1 April 2009.

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments have been revised to require puttable
financial instruments and instruments or components of instruments that
impose on the entity an obligation to deliver to another party a pro rata
rate of the share of the net assets of the entity only on liquidation to be
classified as equity. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments from 1 April 2009.
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2.3 Impact of Issued but not yet Effective HKFRSs
(cont'd)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 requires an operator under public-to-private service
concession arrangements to recognise the consideration received or
receivable in exchange for the construction services as a financial asset
and/or an intangible asset, based on the terms of the contractual
arrangements. HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 also addresses how an operator shall
apply existing HKFRSs to account for the obligations and the rights arising
from service concession arrangements by which a government or a public
sector entity grants a contract for the construction of infrastructure used
to provide public services and/or for the supply of public services. As the
Group currently has no such arrangements, the interpretation is unlikely
to have any financial impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires that loyalty award credits granted to customers
as part of a sales transaction are accounted for as a separate component of
the sales transaction. The consideration received in the sales transaction is
allocated between the loyalty award credits and the other components of
the sale. The amount allocated to the loyalty award credits is determined by
reference to their fair value and is deferred until the awards are redeemed
or the liability is otherwise extinguished.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit under HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits on the amount of a refund or a reduction in future contributions
in relation to a defined benefit scheme that can be recognised as an asset,
in particular, when a minimum funding requirement exists.

As the Group currently has no customer loyalty award credits and defined
benefit scheme, HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 are not applicable
to the Group and therefore are unlikely to have any financial impact on
the Group.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income statement
to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement, whereby
the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity. The joint
venture operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the other
parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the capital
contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration of the joint venture
and the basis on which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution. The
profits and losses from the joint venture’s operations and any distributions
of surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their
respective capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the
joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly or indirectly,
over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have unilateral
control, but has joint control, directly or indirectly, over the joint
venture;

() anassociate, if the Group does not have unilateral or joint control, but
holds, directly or indirectly, generally not less than 20% of the joint
venture’s registered capital and is in a position to exercise significant
influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39,
if the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20% of the joint
venture’s registered capital and has neither joint control of, nor is in a
position to exercise significant influence over, the joint venture.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to joint control,
resulting in none of the participating parties having unilateral control over
the economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s interests in jointly-controlled entities are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results and reserves of jointly-controlled entities is
included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly-controlled entities are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interests in the jointly-controlled entities, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled
entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of generally not less
than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence.

The Group's interests in associates are stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of
the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet as an asset, initially measured at cost and subsequently at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Goodwiill (cont'd)

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss
on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is
measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax assets,
financial assets, investment properties, goodwill and a non-current asset
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill (cont’d)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment
loss is credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, (i)
controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Group;
(ii) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence over
the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;
(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to
in (a) or (d);

(f) the partyis an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by or for which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or
(e); or

(g9) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as held for
sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as
further explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and
disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and
where the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Over the lease terms or 2% to 5%,
whichever is shorter

Over the lease terms or 20% to 33%,
whichever is shorter

10% to 20%

10% to 20%

Leasehold land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

Office equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 07/08

24 FESHBEMEH)

W R RRERITE

EREIRUINZE - BE REAE TR A ER
T E READRERBEGIR - MYE - BER
BESEARESERBROBARARES ZH
AR —EH - AR TINE - WIREEENB
REERIEOGET R RE - HIERNEH
BAEENERDEERNSMEN |2 SHEE -1
¥ BERRBIRABOEABEBERELE
BUE ek A I BER e BB AN 2 E B
KA - % BERRBRAEBEEFEECE
Al ERGRERE) —RERELHEANER
Wk R - ML ERBEREBE AR ERIET
FRBERYE  BE RSEE 2R REE =
hn - B BERRE KA ESE
AEMERSEAIERZEEZ BINKARIE
RS o

REDNERERSANE - BERRE 2B
A RFME KA EEERSREETE <

RAZEENEFRNAT ¢

HE L RET ERAHAM 2% E5%
(ARG EBE)

HEEE 1R A 520% £33%
(&G E BLE)

/NS 10%%E20%

B 10%%E=20%

W% - BERREREZBHZAERFHRE
PR - BERE 2RAERSHMOBERES
fid - MBADEOHRNE -

FIREE  TERFARFETRBEL B -
WHEEEERRTAE(MES) -

ME -~ BERRENHERINEERK T E
NEEERKEEM S R LR o MR IERER
BEZEFNERRABRALEXREZEFNAE
DHEMSFRFEEGHEERAE L ZRE -



Notes to Financial Statements BffR&EMIzE

31 March 2008 —ZZN\F=A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (cont'd)

Construction in progress represents buildings and other fixed assets under
construction or installation, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and testing during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment or investment properties when completed and ready for
use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the
leasehold interest under an operating lease for property which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which they
arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property
are recognised in the income statement in the year of the retirement or
disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any difference at
that date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is accounted for as a revaluation recognised in the income statement.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset
or disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for the sale
of such assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment properties,
deferred tax assets and financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each balance sheet date.

Patents and licences

Purchased patents and licences are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of five years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised and
deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised using the unit-of-sale method, commencing from the
date when the products are put into commercial production, over an
amortisation period not exceeding two years.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. When the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are initially stated at cost
and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an embedded derivative
when the Group first becomes a party to it and assesses whether an
embedded derivative is required to be separated from the host contract
when the analysis shows that the economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of the host contract.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
under the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets after
initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such
assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction
costs. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the
loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Investments and other financial assets (cont’d)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets in
unlisted equity securities that are designated as available for sale or are
not classified as loans and receivables. After initial recognition, available-
for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value, with gains or losses
recognised as a separate component of equity until the investment is
derecognised or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is
included in the income statement. Interest earned is reported as interest
income and is recognised in the income statement as “Other income” in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
Losses arising from the impairment of such investments are recognised
in the income statement as “Impairment of available-for-sales financial
assets”.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Fair value

For investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined
using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash
flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of
the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)
Assets carried at amortised cost (cont’d)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement, to the extent
that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at
the reversal date.

In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for impairment
is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and significant
changes in the technological, market economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor) that the Group will not be able
to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of an invoice.
The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on
an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its
fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation)
and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the income statement, is transferred from equity to the income
statement. A provision for impairment is made for available-for-sale equity
investments when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment
exists. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In additional, the Group evaluates other factors, such as the
share price volatility. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through the income statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the asset, but
has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to
a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or
purchased option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on
the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase,
except in the case of a written put option (including a cash-settled option
or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, where the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair
value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-bearing loans and
borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade payables other payables and accruals,
interest-bearing loans and borrowings and bond payable are initially stated
at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. The related interest expense is recognised within “finance costs”
in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS 39 are accounted for
as financial liabilities. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial guarantee contract, except when such
contract is recognised at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contract
at the higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (i) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the weighted average basis. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Contract accounting

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amounts and appropriate
amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive payments. Contract
costs incurred comprise equipment and material costs, subcontracting
costs, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed
overheads.

Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised on the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the proportion of work
completed to date to the estimated total work of the relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated by
management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as an
amount due from contract customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due to contract customers.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have
a short maturity of generally within three months, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and bank balances comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in
the income statement, or in equity if it relates to items that are recognised
in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are

measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Income tax (cont’d)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Income tax (cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item,
it is recognised as income over the periods necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b) contract revenue, on the percentage of completion basis, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Contract accounting”
above;

() rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms; and
(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future cash

receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Employee benefits
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model, further
details of which are given in note 35 to the financial statements. In valuing
equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any performance
conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the
Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the
relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”).
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
income statement for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except
for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an
expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification, which increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested
on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the
award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted
for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

24 FESTHHRERBE®)

EEW=H
KRN 5

ARBAHTRAHAREEBZBINMELERZ A
B2 EE R IR & [ i 2 B A AT & -
FEERES(BHEES) URNNRH 2T
B - miERARHREERERTAZRE
(TABEMH AR5 ]) -

B R BETIABRM XN R 5 Z KA T2 R #% 18
MIAERAZAVEENE - ZAFEETIES
BLEMRA -—AAEEETE - BRE—FHS
B TS R T FE35 o FERT AR D X132 5
B - AEE RERMKRBRGSE - EEARTRNE
RABRE 2 R (TS G D) (WRE R BRI -

AR AN X B 2 A E RN 2 iR IS R 2%
BRB R/ RRB G BEAER - EEHHE
BEZZ2ZFAZHMZB((HEBR DAL - A%
RERBEERERARARN IR ZHERZ Rt
AxRREBEAERSZEE  ARAKERE
T RAKSRE 2 R TALE - AN KE
RINBR AT AU E R 2 3] B 270 B9 K B R e o2
Z R 2 E8 -

RETERBZHM TN SERHAX - EREERT
moRmEERSIN - AR EE N m TR G
ERIERE  fIEEMAERMRBRIRFHAZE
B o

fis & BRUA RS A7) S A 2 B2 B 2 165K+ PR RERR R X &
D782 B A BAE BARTRZ K © BEoh - 3R
KEMFE - ERAERERNERARN N2
R Z R HEEBESEN  SAREMT AL RS
B RIStEABREERRERR o

i AR A ST 2 SRR R A3 - RIRAR A R AL
2 HRE - 07 AVHERR % SRR (R R TR (E (T B
X o R BEROFHRBEIRA D 2 KE
W E B E AR K EER - R pr -
Bt RATR 2 BRI R R B 2R 2 g0k -

MMBISERBR AR FiR 07/08

85




Notes to Financial Statements BffR&xMIzE

31 March 2008 —ZEZENF=A=+—H

86

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Employee benefits (cont'd)
Share-based payment transactions (cont’d)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in respect
of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled
awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not vested by 1 April
2005 and to those granted on or after 1 April 2005.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions,
which are partially refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the Mainland
of the People’s Republic of China (“Mainland China”) are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
participating employees’ salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the balance
sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the shareholders
and declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded using the
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date. All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, jointly-controlled
entities and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars.
As at the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date, and their income statements are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are included in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred
cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

3. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates
(cont'd)
Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has
made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has determined that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties which are
leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determined whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement. Investment
property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease),
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates
(cont'd)

Estimation uncertainty (cont'd)

Impairment assessment for trade receivables

The policy for impairment assessment for trade receivables of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analyses of trade
receivables and on the judgement of management. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the
Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional impairment may be required.

Provision for obsolete inventories

Management reviews the aging analyses of inventories of the Group at
each balance sheet date, and makes provision for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified to be no longer suitable for sale.
Management estimates the net realisable value for such inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The
Group carries out an inventory review at each balance sheet date and
makes provision for obsolete items.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

As disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements, investment properties
are revalued at the balance sheet date on an open market, existing use
basis by independent professional valuers. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making the judgement, information about
the current prices in an active market for similar properties is considered,
and assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at
the balance sheet date are used.

Impairment of intangible assets — deferred development costs

The Group determines whether an intangible asset is impaired where an
indication of impairment exists. This requires an estimation of the value in
use of the intangible asset. Estimating the value in use requires the Group
to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the intangible
assets and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates
(cont'd)

Estimation uncertainty (cont'd)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the
deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The Group’s management determines the deferred tax assets based on the
enacted or substantially enacted tax rates and laws and its best knowledge
of profit projections of the Group for the coming years during which the
deferred tax assets are expected to be utilised. Management reviews the
assumptions and profit projections at each balance sheet date.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various regions. As a result of
the fact that certain matters relating to the income taxes have not been
confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimates and judgements
based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other related polices
are required in determining the provision of corporate income taxes. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters are different from the amounts
originally recorded, the differences will impact the corporate income tax
and tax provisions in the period in which the differences realise.
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4. Segment Information

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s primary segment
reporting basis, by business segment. In determining the Group’s
geographical segments, revenues are attributed to the segments based on
the location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the segments
based on the location of the assets. No geographical segment information
is presented as over 90% of the Group’s customers and operations are
located in Mainland China.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed separately
according to the nature of their operations and the products and services
they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of the other business segments.
Summary details of the business segments are as follows:

(@) the “Distribution” segment engages in the sale and distribution of
general IT products which consist of notebook computers, desktop
computers, PC servers, data projectors, peripherals, accessories and
consumer IT products;

(b) the "Systems” segment engages in the sale and distribution of
systems products which consist of Unix servers, networking products,
storage products and packaged software, as well as the provision of
related value-added services; and

(c) the “Services” segment engages in the provision of systems
integration, application software development, consultancy and
training, etc..

4.

31 March 2008 —ZEZEN\F=A=+—H
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4. Segment Information (cont'd)

Business segments

The following tables present revenue, profit and certain asset, liability and
expenditure information for the Group’s business segments for the years

ended 31 March 2008 and 2007.

4, DEER(4
E3 Sarl

=)

3
3 )

TREJIAEEBRE_ZTTNFR_
A=1T—HIFEEBIERZHEA -

BE - RERRAER -

THF=
/ﬁn%'J&%:‘:

Group rEE
Distribution Systems Services Consolidated
ik #5 R oy
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EEN\E —ZTLF ZEEN\F —ST5F "BENE —TTLF ZZE\F _TTLF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
BEFT BT  BMTh B Fr  BMTn BETr B¥Fr BT
Segment revenue: AHWA
Sales to external customers HEETHINEE 20,889,194 14,727,993 9,731,836 7,351,562 4,622,743 3,338,843 35,243,773 25,418,398
Segment gross profit DEEF 966,820 705,974 906,268 698,968 637,690 444,051 2,510,778 1,848,993
Segment results PREE 297,656 267,785 250,910 207,614 47,135 (24415 595701 450,984
Interest income, unallocated ~ FIBMA « KH%E
revenue and gains WA B dzs 357,830 187358
Unallocated expenses AABRAY (302,880)  (223,605)
Finance costs BEKA (207,791)  (146,406)
Share of profits and EIETIRRZ
losses of: Z}TWJ&E‘]'TE :
Jointly-controlled entities RSN - - - - (880)  (20,882) (880)  (20,882)
Associates Bana - - - - 11,052 (5,505) 11,052 (5,505)
Profit before tax BRBE AT 453032 241,944
Tax HE (52,152)  (40,631)
Profit for the year KEERF 400,880 201,313
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4. Segment Information (cont'd) 4. pEERE)
Business segments (cont'd) D Eb (&)
Group KEF
Distribution Systems Services Consolidated
Vix - EY PR &E
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“BEN\FE —ET+F ZBENE —TTLHF ZEEINE —ITTHF ZBENE —TTLF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BEFrT BT E¥TT  BEFrT  EETr  BEFm  EETr
Assets and liabilities BEREMR
Segment assets NHEE 2,922,407 2,163,771 2,416,237 1,717,675 1,658,528 1,394,486 6,997,172 5,275,932
Interests in jointly-controlled  REREHEEZ
entities tEz= - - - - 7,894 3,644 7,89 3,644
Interests in associates REE AR 2R - - - = 35,612 22,970 35,612 22,970
Non-current asset classified REFEZ
as held for sale EnBEE - - - - - 12,681 - 12,681
Unallocated assets ADEEE 2,273,813 1,569,833
Total assets BEE 9,314,491 6,885,060
Segment liabilities AHEE 2,063,907 1,672,058 1,520,579 1,006,394 1,201,812 798,247 4,786,298 3,476,699
Unallocated liabilities AOEER 1,884,497 1,435,115
Total liabilities BEE 6,670,795 4,911,814
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4. Segment Information (cont'd) 4. HHERE)
Business segments (cont'd) EoE (&)
Group rEH
Distribution Systems Services Consolidated
Vix - #5 FR5 &a
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE ZTTHF CBENE ZTTLE ZBEN\F —TTtHF -“FENF ZTTtE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
BETT BEFrT BT E¥TT  BEFm  EETT BEFm  EETr
Other segment information: ~ HA15 & :
Depreciation of property, VER T E
plant and equipment ik 10,806 7,293 8,975 8,114 21,291 14,504 41,072 29,911
Unallocated amounts *nlEeE 29,767 34,286
70,839 64,197
Amortisation of intangible BV EEEH
assets - - 1,670 4,481 3,116 538 4,786 5,019
Amortisation of prepaid land TR it H £ i
premiums
~ Unallocated B VoE 376 352
Capital expenditure BRRY 23,122 11,985 10,925 6,602 26,831 43,640 60,878 62,227
Unallocated amounts ADBELHE 36,657 18,884
97,535 81,111
Impairment of BB S50
trade receivables pE] 34,875 10,492 51,677 26,802 66,388 27,316 152,940 64,610
Provision for and write-off of ~ REGERE
obsolete inventories RtisH 3,038 2,310 8,401 16,848 1,892 9,072 13,331 28,230
Impairment of intangible assets &/ EERE - - 7,170 3,510 9,561 12,749 16,731 16,259
Impairment of goodwil HERE - - - - - 28,566 - 28,566
Impairment of available-for-sale A HE 2
investments RERME - - - - - 2,425 - 2,425
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the invoiced value
of goods sold and services rendered to customers, net of business tax,
value-added tax and government surcharges, and after allowances for

goods returned and trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

5. WA~ Bl AR W
WATTRARBZ X8 BRAEFPHEERR
RERB2BREFIREER - BERRBUTE
& UNMREEESFH) o

WA~ ARSI

Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat BT T BT
Revenue WA 35,243,773 25,418,398
Other income Hug A
Government grants (note) BT HERL (fYat) 64,454 36,830
Bank interest income SRITHBUA 10,124 7,035
Gross rental income @A 29,393 34,431
Others Hip 7.341 9,205
111,312 87,501
Gains Wz
Changes in fair value of investment REMEZ
properties N EEEZE 16 1,108 1,456
Gain on disposal of non-current HEFAEHFEZ
asset classified as held for sale IERBEE 2 W 30, 15 2,495 21,500
Foreign exchange differences, net HNEFZERE 7 293,812 109,481
Others Hib 9,238 =
306,653 132,437
417,965 219,938

Note: Various government grants have been received for the sale of self-developed
software products approved by the tax authority in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"), the development of software products in Mainland China,
and the investments in specific provinces in Mainland China. The government
grants received for the investments in specific provinces in Mainland China
were recognised upon the receipt of the grants, whereas those received for
the sale of self-developed software products approved by the tax authority in
the PRC and the development of software products in Mainland China were
recognised upon the sale of the approved self-developed software products
and the completion of the development of related software, respectively.
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.

Krat - AREERFEEPEARLME([HE BB
FIRA 2 BTRERN  RPBEAEREENK
AR B BE R E & 1 1T IR E M R EUE T BUF
Bh o EREAERPBREREEMETREZ
B # B0 B NI ERZ S B A FERR - ERBESHE
REBIS AP R A 2 BT R BEE M R Bk
FREEE M M ARE 2 B HERE - B RIS E R
A2 BITREEN R ERFEARR R HER -
ZEMBERER G RHAREIR -
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6. Total Operating Expenses

An analysis of total operating expenses by nature is as follows:

6. EEBRAMN

BRENES D 2 EEBREESTWT

2008 2007
—EEN\F T F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T B FT
Selling expenses HEER 199,503 140,205
Promotion and advertising expenses & & E &8 H 224,053 149,810
Staff costs included in operating PN EEER < B T
expenses (including directors’ (BIEEEM®(H:79))
remuneration (note 9)) 1,044,619 742,162
Other expenses HtEA 809,917 622,017
2,278,092 1,654,194
7. Profit Before Tax 7. BEBIADEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBEZBRBATHEFELMER(GEA):
2008 2007
—se)\5 Tt
Notes HK$000 HK$°000
HtaE BT T BT
Cost of inventories sold BEHEERR 32,062,729 23,058,332
Depreciation e 15 70,839 64,197
Amortisation of prepaid land premiums FEA<t £ it FH & §4 17 376 352
Impairment of goodwill* BN 18 = 28,566
Research and development costs 75 SR R EE R AR 131,362 74,135
Amortisation of intangible assets** T B B 19 4,786 5,019
Impairment of intangible assets* A E R E 19 16,731 16,259
Impairment of available-for-sale AHEE 2 RERE*
investments* - 2,425
Minimum lease payments under THIRIEF 2
operating leases in respect of BELEHERS
land and buildings 72,391 60,131
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN & 4,270 3,710
Employee benefits expense EERAIFX
(including directors’ (BREES=HS
remuneration (note 9)); (Btz#9) )
Wages and salaries TERF® 1,012,274 719,730
Equity-settled share option expenses***  SAB {7 S 1 2 BERRAERT S *** 35 1,576 6,309
Pension scheme contributions™**** RIRBET B TR > > 54,106 44,136
Other benefits H 137,525 107,882
1,205,481 878,057
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7. Profit Before Tax (cont'd)

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
(cont'd)

7. BRBUADEFI (41)
AEE 2 BB AN B LM, GEA): ()

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
HtaE BEFT JEMTF T
Provision for and write-off of PR E 17 & Bt S s
obsolete inventories* 13,331 28,230
Write-off of other receivables* H fib i U RN IE i8R * 1,770 4,667
Impairment of trade receivables* JEUE 5 iR FURE > 28 152,940 64,610
Loss on disposal of items of property,  HE¥WE  BEMREZ
plant and equipment &8 3,482 4,142
Direct operating expenses (including ~ ABRIES 218 EME
repairs and maintenance) arising on CEELEER
rental-earning investment properties (B IEEEMFRE) 7,761 6,749
Net rental income HEFKA (21,632) (27,682)
Foreign exchange differences, net INE F =5 (293,812) (109,481)

*  The impairment of goodwill, the impairment of intangible assets, the
impairment of available-for-sale investments, the provision for and write-off
of obsolete inventories, the write-off of other receivables and the impairment
of trade receivables are included in “Other operating expenses, net” on the
face of the consolidated income statement.

**  The amortisation of intangible assets is included in “Cost of sales” on the face
of the consolidated income statement.

*** No share options were granted to the employees and directors during the
year in respect of their services to the Group under the share option schemes
of the Company. The employee share option benefits represent the fair value
at the grant date of share options in previous years amortised to the income
statement during the year, disregarding if there was a grant of share options
during the year.

**** At 31 March 2008, the Group had no material forfeited contributions
available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future years

* HERE BVEERE - AIHBEIRERE -
BREFERHE MY - HoAh R U I & R B
SIRFOBEC T AGFRRERFZ[EMEEER
FRIA -

= EZAEBEDASRARERP Z[HEKAE]
A o

o KREFRN - KEEERERRRANEEREREM
BEEARNABIRER S T 2 BAE - (R BREAE
BAHEENEFEBRENELE A2 A FEER
RERZ WS RAEH - TinERBRERTNA
FENEH -

ox MCBBNF=Z[=+—0  FEELEEAAH
HRARRFE RS BIH R Z O R (=

(2007: Nil). TELE ).
8. Finance Costs 8. HBERA

Group

AEE
2008 2007
—ZEN\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BMTF T BT T
Interest on bank and other borrowings 877 & Efh B FF| 5 127,272 100,819
Interest on bond payable JERHES TS 3,637 =
Interest on discounted bills EEREEFR A 76,882 45,587
207,791 146,406
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9. Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

9. EEMS
BEESHARIMERARES LA £
AR D RBEBRENEHIF1611EHBE2AFEE
EiemT -

Group
REE
2008 2007
—ZZTN\F —EELHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Fees wE 637 508
Other emoluments: Hibfie
Salaries, allowances and e R EYEH
benefits in kind 9,267 10,493
Performance related bonuses R IFENME Z TEAT 8,427 9,166
Employee share option benefits (note)  1& B %t F] (HfaE) 427 1,424
Pension scheme contributions BIREETEIHR 62 57
18,183 21,140
18,820 21,648

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year
were as follows:

() BILFHITES
REER  BEXNFEILIFRTEZT 2R ET
W

2008 2007
—EBN\F —TELHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BETT
Mr. Hu Zhao Guang HARBE LA 150 150
Professor Wu Jinglian RABEH I 150 150
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis' B REAE 150 91
Mr. Kwan Ming Heung, Peter! Kwan Ming Heung, Peter4t 4! 187 54
Mr. Leung Pak To, Francis? RIHEE S A2 = 63
637 508

T Appointed on 23 August 2006 g REZTAFNAZT=AEERE

2 Resigned on 23 August 2006 2 RIZZERFENAZT=HEHE

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non- — AEERAREE AN EAEZIERNITE S E

executive directors during the year (2007: Nil).
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9. Directors’ Remuneration (cont'd) 9. EEME(®)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BITEZENRIERITES
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Employee Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
Fees inkind bonuses benefits  contributions  remuneration
i B3] =]
2ET 14 BRE  EKe B
e BUEA 24 A R am
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000
BEFT BEFT BETT BETT BEFT BEFT
(note)
(frz2)
2008 b= J¢:3
Executive directors: HTEE
Mr. Guo Wei BrEE - 4,111 4,527 133 bE] 8,794
Mr. Lin Yang WEEE - 2,009 730 53 3 2815
Mr. Li Qin' HiL - 2,359 2,870 199 - 5,428
Mr. Zeng Maochao' B - - 300 - = 300
Mr. Hua Zhinian? EUER A - 788 - Y] 16 846
- 9,267 8,427 427 62 18,183
Non-executive directors: FHfEE:
Mr. Andrew Y. Yan? afrgt - - - - - -
Mr. Tang Xudong?® BIRREE - - - - - -
Mr. Chen Derek Zhiyong® Chen Derek Zhiyong 724 - - - - - -
Mr. Luo Hong? BREE - - - - - -
Mr. William O. Grabe* William O. Grabesz 44 - - - - - -
- 9,267 8,427 427 62 18,183
2007 I o2
Executive directors: HITEE
M. Li Qin TELAE - 2,992 2,870 360 - 6,222
Mr. Guo Wei SAELE - 3,873 4,319 560 19 8,771
Mr. Zeng Maochao BRALE - 697 300 - - 997
Mr. Lin Yang WEEE - 1,890 1,555 280 19 3,744
Mr. Hua Zhinian ENELE = 1,041 122 224 19 1,406
- 10,493 9,166 1424 57 21,140
Non-executive director; FHITEE
Mr. William 0. Grabe William 0. Grabest 4 - - - - - -
- 10,493 9,166 1,424 57 21,140

Retired on 19 December 2007

Resigned on 19 December 2007
Appointed on 19 December 2007
Resigned on 17 December 2007

A w o oN -
2w oN -

TELF+Z A+t HEHME
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9. Directors’ Remuneration (cont'd)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (cont’d)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year.

Note: No share options were granted to the directors during the year in respect of
their services to the Group under the share option schemes of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 35 to the financial statements. The
employee share option benefits represent the fair value at the grant date of
share options in previous years amortised to the income statement during the
year, disregarding if there was a grant of share options during the year.

10. Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2007:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2007: two) non-
director, highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

9. EEMe®)

b) BITEERIFNTES(E)

BB m AN S N E] S B SR ) B (A
ST RHE-

Hret - AFERN  RAEEZERAEBRRERGMER
ARARIBEAER IR T 2 BERE - E—FFHEHE
RRULEA TS HRR M 3135 - R B BRUER ARG
FEBRERRHE B2 ATEBEREFEZIR
BmRAEN - THRERBRERESRAFEAR
& o

10. AV R EEFHMES
AEEZANSSFMEERE=2("22¢
F:ZR)BE BEZME BN XXM
Ne b TME(ZEE+F : WB)IFEF 25D
HHESANEE S sEEtmT

Group

REE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETF
HK$000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #& - 328k R E Y& 1,830 1,740
Performance related bonuses ERZRIR N 2 TEAT 2,680 2,530
Employee share option benefits (note) 12 B8R #ERF (Afat) 49 242
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT BN 44 38
4,603 4,550

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration
fell within the following bands is as follows:

MENFTIHBEZZSHFHFESRE Z2HE
LUNNE

Number of employees

EBEAE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,500,001 702 7% %2,000,0007T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 752,000,001 70 % /5%£2,500,0007T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2 500,0017T 275 #£3,000,0007T 1 1

2 2

Note: No share options were granted to the employees during the year in respect of
their services to the Group under the share option schemes of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.
The employee share option benefits represent the fair value at the grant date
of share options in previous years amortised to the income statement during
the year, disregarding if there was a grant of share options during the year.
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11. Tax 11. BiE
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFIT BT

Group: REE

Current — Hong Kong KEE-BD 2,661 1,447
Current — PRC REE —HE 41,632 32,119
Deferred (note 25) RIE (H/7E25) 7,859 7,065
Total tax charge for the year AEEHBEL HAGT 52,152 40,631

(@) PRC corporate income tax represents the tax charged on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Mainland China. Pursuant
to the PRC corporate income tax law passed by the 10th National
People’s Congress on 16 March 2007, the new corporate income
taxes for domestic and foreign enterprises are unified at 25%, which
is effective from 1 January 2008. As a result, the corporate income
tax rate of PRC subsidiaries of the Group has changed from 33%
to 25% with effect from 1 January 2008, except for certain PRC
subsidiaries which are entitled to tax holidays and preferential tax
rates.

(b) During the year, Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 17.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong.

(c) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the jointly-
controlled entities and associates as the jointly-controlled entities and
associates had no estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for
the years ended 31 March 2007 and 2008. PRC corporate income tax
has been provided at the applicable rates on the estimated assessable
profits of the jointly-controlled entities and associates for the years
ended 31 March 2007 and 2008. The share of tax charge attributable
to the jointly-controlled entities of approximately HK$Nil (2007: share
of tax credit of approximately HK$32,000) and the share of tax charge
attributable to the associates of approximately HK$679,000 (2007:
share of tax credit of approximately HK$317,000) are included in
“Share of profits and losses of jointly-controlled entities” and “Share
of profits and losses of associates” respectively on the face of the
consolidated income statement.

(a)

(b)

(0

PRCEMEHIEETRARELS Z BETE
et A T B - RIBR_FFLF
ZATRAETEEEARRRAREEBS
B (b PRISTUA - A3 RO IMTE B E R
EEMBUBES—R25% TR _TF
NE—A—BREIET - Bt - AEEF B
BARIMEEMSHREA _TTNE—A
—H#H33%#E E25% » FRE T B E
RAIZARBEARBBEREIN -

AEERN BENGHRIREEREELZ
fhEF ERTURFIR175% (Z BT F -
17.5%) 2 B EFHE -

HAREREGICERBERTREEZT
+tEREENF=ZA=+—HILFEHE
FERBEEGFERTEH - AW E AL
A2 ) b % I Bt 8 R RIh B B RIS B H 88
B FRCEMSRIOBEEEE ST+
EN—EENE=A=+—HIFERHLR
PR3 R B A B2 (G R FE R a R
B EEL B - BIRERNEHIME 2 FiIE
THAOBETTT(ZETEF - RERRSY
75 #32,00070 ) KBt A QR 2 A B 478
#679,0007C( =TT F : HIIER = KB
317,00070) * B BlEF ARG E KSR F 2
[ e R I3 25 F R &8 | R [ G
ENRZmF R EE A -
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11. Tax (cont'd)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to the profit before tax using
the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective
tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax

1. BEE)
BEARNTRABHEMNB AT FEREERZ
EEBRAERBATERN B - EIRER
BRAE 2 BB HER - AREARE(BDEE
Bk ) TR KGR T

rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

Group AEE
2008 2007
—BEN\E —ETLF
HK$'000 % HK$°000 %
BT T B BT Bt

Profit before tax B %2 B S A 453,032 241,944
Tax at the applicable tax rate ~ IRERAR K& 2 Fi1E 149,501 33.0 79,841 33.0
Effect on change in applicable EAXRE8 2

tax rate FE (9,061) (2.0) = =
Lower tax rates for specific FERE & D3 7

provinces or local authority BIRFE =R (155,958) (34.4) (140,435) (58.1)
Effect on opening deferred T RIE INE F AR

tax of increase in rates HIB 2 (8,174) (1.8) = =
Profits and losses attributable [R5 K B &

to jointly—controlled entities AR A

and associates N &8 (2,534) (0.6) 9,660 4.0
Tax effect of unused tax losses  ARIERZ RENFHFEIA

not recognised B R 2 14,110 3.1 14,768 6.1
Income not subject to tax RARBLZ A (9,560) 2.1) (5,815) (2.9)
Expenses not deductible for tax A% 2 FIsZ 102,992 22.8 90,431 37.4
Profit not subject to tax BRI g 1) (17,071) (3.8) (7,249) (3.0)
Tax losses utilised from previous F|f@EHIE <

periods FEEsE (12,093) 2.7) (570) (0.2)
Tax charge at the Group’s BRAREBEERB =R

effective rate FTEZBHIA 52,152 11.5 40,631 16.8

12. Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the parent for the
year ended 31 March 2008 includes a profit of HK$151,925,000 (2007:
HK$88,323,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company (note 36(b)).
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Notes to Financial Statements Bff&R&EMIzE

31 March 2008 —ZZEZN\F=A=1+—H

13. Dividends 13. BRE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT JEMTF T
Proposed final dividend — BRARIRE — SR SRR
14.55 HK cents 1455741l
(2007: 8.28 HK cents) (ZZZAF ¢ 8.281Il)
per ordinary share 140,210 72,370

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

14. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary Equity
Holders of the Parent

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
of approximately HK$401,125,000 (2007: HK$208,429,000), and the
weighted average of 917,512,860 (2007: 871,479,182) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
of approximately HK$401,125,000 (2007: HK$208,429,000) and
934,702,820 (2007: 876,317,035) ordinary shares, which represent the
weighted average of 917,512,860 (2007: 871,479,182) ordinary shares
in issue during the year and the weighted average of 17,189,960 (2007:
4,837,853) ordinary shares deemed to have beenissued at no consideration
on the deemed exercise of all the outstanding share options during the year.

REZAFRAR BB S BREARRRBRAEN K
T BRERFE RS LHE -

14. BRAREERRRELGERER

ERGRAFIEAFEE 2 & QR EBRARE
55% K 4978 401,125,000 ( ZBZ+4F : B
208,429,0007T) * ARAARFEAN 2 EHEITL R
A% 2 hn#E F 15 917,512,860/ ( — T Z 4 ¢
871,479,182% )5t -

BHEEIRBANTREAFE 2B AT EBRKRE
JIE 15 %5 F| #4978 #401,125,00070( — T Z 4 ¢
75 #5208,429,0007T ) %934,702,820/%( — & =
+ 4 : 876,317,035/ ) T EARETE - WRMHH
BERAFEARNZBHTEBKRZ NEF
917,512,8600%( — =T £ 4 : 871,479,1825% ) -
A RBRERAFE N2 A i ARITE 2 B
RARTELWAR D EEHITEBRR 2 INEF
¥9%017,189,9600% (= FZ 4 : 4,837,853/%) 2
KA o

M ISR B R AR FH 07/08 1 03




15. Property, Plant and Equipment

Notes to Financial Statements Bff&R&xMIzE

31 March 2008 —ZZEN\F=A=+—H

15. Y% - MERZRE

Group rEHR
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Office Motor  Construction
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
HELH HE WAZ 'E
RETF #15 B RE g -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETR BETR BETT BETT
31 March 2008 ZBE\F=A=1-H
At 31 March 2007 and R-ZEE+E=A=+-H
1 April 2007: EZZTHFNA-R:
Cost FXAME 151,097 66,403 330,386 26,370 58 574,314
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (5,855) (24,753) (185,899) (20,186) - (236,693)
Net carrying amount REEE 145,242 41,650 144,487 6,184 58 337,621
At 1 April 2007, net of NZ_EE+FWNA—-R "
accumulated depreciation MR Z5HTE 145,242 41,650 144,487 6,184 58 337,621
Additions NE 1,804 5,877 72,683 3,235 13,936 97,535
Disposals e - @ (4,426) (579) - (5,007)
Transfers from construction in ERATRIR
progress - 781 8,297 - (9,078) -
Depreciation provided during REERE
the year (4,669) (13,677) (50,629) (1,864) - (70,839)
Exchange realignment [ o AR 18,147 3,365 18,444 793 1,065 41,814
At 31 March 2008, net of RZZE\F=A=+-R"
accumulated depreciation MR Z5riTE 160,524 37,994 188,856 7,769 5,981 401,124
At 31 March 2008: R=ZEN\E=R=1-R:
Cost KAE 171,085 78,573 425,504 27,541 5,981 708,684
Accumulated depreciation 2itE (10,561) (40,579) (236,648) (19,772) - (307,560)
Net carrying amount REFE 160,524 37,994 188,856 7,769 5,981 401,124
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Notes to Financial Statements Bff&R&EMIzE

31 March 2008 —ZZEZN\F=A=1+—H

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (cont'd) 15. ¥1%¥ - BMEREE (&)
Group REE
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Office Motor Construction
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
HELH il PAR is=3
REF B # A8 I b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
31 March 2007 ZEEtE=A=t-H
At 1 April 2006: RZZTRENA-A:
Cost KA 258,162 64,741 294,167 24927 126 642,123
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (12,266) (26,349) (164,529) (18,812) = (221,955)
Net carrying amount REEE 245,896 38,393 129,638 6,115 126 420,168
At 1 April 2006, net of RZZTRENA-RA
accumulated depreciation MR Z5rirE 245,89 38393 129,638 6,115 126 420,168
Additions e - 6,965 56,913 2,269 14,964 81,111
Disposals = (753) - (3,646) (183) - (4,582)
Disposal of non-current asset HEREREL
classified as held for sale FREEE (85,631) (3,293) 2.417) = - (91,341)
Transfers from construction in ERETRETE
progress - 10,630 4,592 - (15,222) -
Transfer to investment properties  EEEZHRAYE
(note 16) (Hiz#16) (16,754) = = = = (16,754)
Depreciation provided during REEHE
the year (5,061) (12,129) (44,805) (2,02) - (64,197)
Exchange realignment R 7,545 1,084 4212 185 190 13,216
At 31 March 2007, net of R-ZE+F=A=1+-R"
accumulated depreciation MR Z5rirE 145,242 41,650 144,487 6,184 58 337,621
At 31 March 2007: RZZE+F=A=1+-R:
Cost XAME 151,097 66,403 330,386 26,370 58 574,314
Accumulated depreciation 2itE (5,855) (24,753) (185,899) (20,186) - (236,693)
Net carrying amount IREFE 145,242 41,650 144,487 6,184 58 337,621

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings included above are held under — #H EXX 2 A& EFH & + 3 RAEF 97 BIK
medium term leases in Mainland China. B - DAFRERREAYHSA o

During the year ended 31 March 2007, one of the Group’s leasehold land ~RBZ_ZTZT+F=A=1+T—HILFERN ' £&
and buildings and prepaid land premiums situated in Mainland China  E#§E AR —IEAI A A B RE © IREDVFELRFEL S
with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately HK$91,341,000  #91,341,0007T 2 18 & + 3t N 8 F LA [ Fa A5 £ 3h
was transferred to non-current asset classified as held for sale, and was &€ @ BEEHFEFEZIERDEE - BERH
then disposed of resulting in a net gain on disposal of approximately <% » 3 2 4 H & F U & 498 #21,500,0007T
HK$21,500,000 (note 5). (P&E5) -
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Notes to Financial Statements Bff& Rz MIzE

31 March 2008 —ZEZN\F=A=+—H

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (cont'd)

15. Y% - BMERKREE)

Company E SN
Leasehold Office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HELE WAZRE RE @zt
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BETT
31 March 2008 “B¥/\§=A=1-H
At 31 March 2007 and R_ZZ+F=A=1—H
1 April 2007: KZZZLFNA—AR:
Cost PANME 2,847 1,666 985 5,498
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (2,696) (1,338) (985) (5,019)
Net carrying amount IREFE 151 328 = 479
At 1 April 2007, net of RZZZLFMA—R -
accumulated depreciation MR RFHE 151 328 = 479
Additions NE - 36 - 36
Depreciation provided TEEHE
during the year (133) (125) - (258)
At 31 March 2008, net of RZZEZN\F=A=+—H"
accumulated depreciation Nk 2EHTE 18 239 = 257
At 31 March 2008: RZFEN\F=A=+—R:
Cost AME 2,847 1,665 985 5,497
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (2,829) (1,426) (985) (5,240)
Net carrying amount IREFE 18 239 = 257
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31 March 2008 —ZEZEN\F=A=+—H

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (cont'd) 15. ¥1%¥ - BMEREE (&)
Company AAFE
Leasehold Office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEEE WRERE AE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT BT BETFT
31 March 2007 —EE+E=-H=1-H
At 1 April 2006: RZZET ENA—H:
Cost D#NE] 2,831 1,606 985 5,422
Accumulated depreciation REtiTE (2,344) (1,170) (788) (4,302)
Net carrying amount IR E(E 487 436 197 1,120
At 1 April 2006, net of RZZEZEFNA—H -
accumulated depreciation MR RETHTE 487 436 197 1,120
Additions NE 16 88 - 104
Disposals e - M = M
Depreciation provided AEEME
during the year (352) (195) (197) (744)
At 31 March 2007, net of R-ZZ+E=A=+—H"
accumulated depreciation Mk 25T E 151 328 - 479
At 31 March 2007: R-ZZEZ+E=A=+—H:
Cost D#NE| 2,847 1,666 985 5,498
Accumulated depreciation ZEiE (2,696) (1,338) (985) (5,019)
Net carrying amount IREE(E 151 328 - 479
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31 March 2008 —ZEZN\F=A=+—H

PR R I RE

16. Investment Properties 16. REW=
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Carrying amount at 1 April AU A—BZREE 208,226 184,293
Transfer from leasehold land and EBREEETHRET
buildings (note 15) (Btat15) = 16,754
Net profit from a fair value adjustment &2 F{EEFE 2 FEF)
(note 5) (K15t5) 1,108 1,456
Exchange realignment TE H A% 24,878 5,723
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—BZIKEAE 234,212 208,226

The Group's investment properties are situated in Mainland China and are
held under medium term leases.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 March 2008
by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers, at approximately HK$234,212,000 on an open market,
existing use basis. The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 39(a) to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2008, one of the Group’s investment properties situated in
Mainland China with a fair value of approximately HK$19,278,000 (2007:
HK$16,231,000) was pledged to secure certain bank loans granted to the
Group (note 32).
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Notes to Financial Statements Bff& k&= MIzE

31 March 2008 —ZEZEN\F=A=+—H

16. Investment Properties (cont'd) 16. BEWME (&)
Further particulars of the Group's investment properties are as follows: REBEEMEZE—HFBEHIIAT :
Attributable
interest of
Location Use Tenure the Group
rEH
it B JizkeS FH EihRER
Digital Technology Plaza, Office building Medium 100%
No. 9 Shangdijiu Street, term lease
Haidian District,
Beijing,
The PRC
R E L R TR PARE R HAFRAY
R BRI
SR B
No. 6 Zhongguancun, Office building Medium 100%
Nandai Street, term lease
Haidian District,
Beijing,
The PRC
F B L R T e R PARE R HAFRAY
R B R 658
17. Prepaid Land Premiums 17. EfL#AS
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENE —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT BT
Carrying amount at 1 April R A—HZIREE 13,904 13,832
Amortisation during the year REZ 7 #iH (376) (352)
Exchange realignment HE 34 8 B 1,637 424
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—HBZIKAE 15,165 13,904
Current portion included in prepayments, B1E0 (5 B IEETBAFUE
deposits and other receivables e N E b e ERIE (400) (357)
Non-current portion e ENELD 14,765 13,547

The Group’s leasehold land is held under a medium term lease and is N[ Z & + 3039 5O BIARE - LA EAFE
situated in Mainland China. LA -
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Notes to Financial Statements Bff& Rz MIzE

31 March 2008 —ZEZN\F=A=+—H

18. Goodwill 18. BE
The amount of goodwill capitalised as an asset arising from the acquisiton ~ EWEHBARELMEAMLABEEZBHESHE
of subsidiaries, was as follows: U
Group ArEE
HK$'000
BT T

At 1 April 2006: RZZERFWMA—H -

Cost AE 45,671

Accumulated impairment RETRE (17,406)

Net carrying amount MREFE 28,265
Cost at 1 April 2006, net of RZZZRFMA—HZKAE -

accumulated impairment ks BEHRE 28,265
Impairment during the year REFEERE (28,566)
Exchange realignment T 5 FH 301
At 31 March 2007 RZZEZT+FE=A=+—H =
At 31 March 2007: R-ZEZ+F=A=+—8:

Cost RAE 46,158

Accumulated impairment 2:HRE (46,158)

Net carrying amount MR EDFHE -
Cost and carrying amount at 1 April 2007 R=ZZ+FMA—HK

and 31 March 2008, net of TEENE=A=+—HZKANE

accumulated impairment RIREE - MR 2EHRE =
At 31 March 2008: RZZEZTNF=A=+—8:

Cost AE 46,158

Accumulated impairment 2FHRE (46,158)

Net carrying amount IREDNFE -
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31 March 2008 —ZEZEN\F=A=+—H

19. Intangible Assets 19. B EE
Group rEEH
Deferred
Patents development
and licences costs Total
HRER B
AR %N st
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT BT
31 March 2008 —ZEENF=A=1+—H
At 1 April 2007: RZEZELFMA—A -
Cost RANME - 80,072 80,072
Accumulated amortisation REEEORE
and impairment - (60,985) (60,985)
Net carrying amount IREHE - 19,087 19,087
Cost at 1 April 2007, RZZZLFMA—HZKAE -
net of accumulated R R ET SR RORE
amortisation and impairment - 19,087 19,087
Additions NE 6,457 - 6,457
Amortisation provided ANFEHETH
during the year (1,317) (3,469) (4,786)
Impairment during the year KEZRIE - (16,731) (16,731)
Exchange realignment PE W = 386 1,113 1,499
At 31 March 2008 R-BEEZN\F=A=+—H 5,526 - 5,526
At 31 March 2008: R-ZEZEN\F=A=+—8:
Cost BANE 6,457 90,062 96,519
Accumulated amortisation R IERRE
and impairment (931) (90,062) (90,993)
Net carrying amount MR EHE 5,526 - 5,526
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31 March 2008 —ZZEN\F=A=+—H
19. Intangible assets (cont'd) 19. BEEE(E)
Group rEHR
Deferred
Patents development
and licences costs Total
BRI K PRI
BRI B F B A 485
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT BT T BT T
At 31 March 2007 R-BEEtE=A=+—H
At 1 April 2006: RZZEZRFWOA—H
Cost BANE - 77,616 77,616
Accumulated amortisation R ERORE
and impairment - (38,292) (38,292)
Net carrying amount MR EFHE — 39,324 39,324
Cost at 1 April 2006, R-EEXRFMA—BZRAE
net of accumulated R R AT SE RORE
amortisation and impairment - 39,324 39,324
Amortisation provided ANEEHEE
during the year - (5,019) (5,019)
Impairment during the year NEERE - (16,259) (16,259)
Exchange realignment P W SR — 1,041 1,041
At 31 March 2007 RZEZEt+tF=A=+—H - 19,087 19,087
At 31 March 2007: R-ZEE+F=A=+—8:
Cost KAME - 80,072 80,072
Accumulated amortisation ZET B NORE
and impairment - (60,985) (60,985)
Net carrying amount MREFE - 19,087 19,087

During the year, in view of the change in market demand, the directors ~ RAFER - AR TIHERBANE - EFLE
considered that the carrying values of certain deferred development costs ~ EfAEF R E - RBAMEKEE TR E
are irrecoverable after taking into consideration the estimated future — FXZARZIREE @ FUt#RLE%16,731,0007T(=
revenue. Impairment losses of approximately HK$16,731,000 (2007: T+ : £%16,259,0007T) 2 M EEE -
HK$16,259,000) were recognised accordingly.
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31 March 2008 —ZZEZN\F=A=1+—H

20. Investments in Subsidiaries 20. RMB AT Z2®RE

Company
NN

2008 2007

—EEN\F —ETEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Unlisted shares, at cost JE LT © HRAA 699,407 699,407
Capital contribution in respect of LAt Z BB 2

employee share-based MeEARHE
compensation 50,983 49,759
750,390 749,166

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBARFBNT
Nominal value
of issued and Percentage
Place of fully paid of equity
incorporation/ share/ attributable to
registration registered the Company
Name and operations capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
ERITR AR
FMEL BEREZ EZADL
£ BRREELE HE ZRER B i3 FEXK
Digital China (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares 100 = Investment holding
EBERRAS US$5,125 REEAR
TR
5,125%7T
Alternate Agents Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary share - 100 Provision of
Mainland China US$1 supporting services
REBERRHE B Tefit12 B SR IR TS
B A RE (ES
Digital China Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares = 100 Investment holding
BN BB R AR BB HK$2 REER
AR
BEE27T
Digital China (China) Limited* Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration

MM EI(PE)ER AR

CaEPN

HK$1,000,000,000
EfER
7%1,000,000,0007T

and distribution of
IT products
REAENK R HITE M
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31 March 2008 —ZZEN\F=A=+—H

20. Investments in Subsidiaries (cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont'd)

Nominal value

20. AMB AR Z2&RE (&)
TEWBARFEBNT : (&)

of issued and Percentage
Place of fully paid of equity
incorporation/ share/ attributable to
registration registered the Company
Name and operations capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
ERTR A BB
ML BEREZ EREDL
=L BRREEME EE ERER B R FEER
Chengdu Digital China Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration
Limited+* )TN HK$5,000,000 and distribution of
FKER BN TS B R A R FMER IT products
7&#5,000,0007T REER R HEITE m
Shenyang Digital China Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration
Limited*# FR B K B HK$5,000,000 and distribution of
B RMNEAE B R AR EER =N IT products
7&#5,000,0007T FTERR N 3 $HITEE oo
Shanghai Digital China Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration
Limited+* a)ETpN S HK$10,000,000 and distribution of
EarINEIS AR AR AR IT products
7510,000,0007T REER N HEITEm
Digital China (Shenzhen) Mainland China Registered capital = 100 Systems integration
Limited*# FR B K B HK$12,000,000 and distribution of
BN R B BR A A S EA IT products
#5%12,000,0007T FATERR N 3 HHITEE fm
Xian Digital China Limited**  Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration
AL M EIS AR A )Y B K e HK$5,000,000 and distribution of
& IT products
515,000,0007T R $HITE M
Wuhan Digital China Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration

Limited**

REWNEIE AR AR

B ARE

HK$5,000,000
RN
78 #5,000,0007C

and distribution of
IT products
RFEK KD HITE R
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31 March 2008 —ZZEZN\F=A=1+—H

20. RIBRARZRE(®)
TEMBRRFBENT (&)

20. Investments in Subsidiaries (cont'd)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont'd)

Nominal value

of issued and Percentage
Place of fully paid of equity
incorporation/ share/ attributable to
registration registered the Company
Name and operations capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
ERITR AR EG
AR, BEREZ EREDL
8 BRREEMR EEERER HiE i3 FEER
Nanjing Digital China Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration
Limited+* )TN HK$3,000,000 and distribution of
AN SIS AR A T FfER IT products
75 #3,000,0007C REER N HEITE m
Guangzhou Digital China Mainland China Registered capital = 100 Systems integration
Limited* FR B K B HK$12,000,000 and distribution of
RSN A N ERES A5 BR A A S EA IT products
751#12,000,0007T R HHITE &
Jinan Digital China Limited** Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration
BRI EIS AR A A B A e HK$2,000,000 and distribution of
FER IT products
7512,000,0007T FREEA N HEITE m
Digital China Marketing British Virgin Islands Ordinary share = 100 Investment holding
& Services Ltd. EBERRAS Us$1 REAR
TR
(E
Digital China Technology Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares - 100 Distribution of
Limited Mainland China HK$1,000,000 IT products
HMNEEERHL ERE B8,/ E B 2 EHITE @
BRAQF] GilE N 75#1,000,0007C
Digital China Advanced Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares - 100 Systems integration
Systems Limited Mainland China HK$50,000,000 and distribution of
TN RS = AR R BB,/ gl IT products
BERRA] Gl N 75 #£50,000,0007T R HEITE
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31 March 2008 —ZZEN\F=A=+—H

20. AMB AR Z2&RE (&)
TEWBARFEBNT : (&)

20. Investments in Subsidiaries (cont'd)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont'd)

Nominal value

of issued and Percentage
Place of fully paid of equity
incorporation/ share/ attributable to
registration registered the Company
Name and operations capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
ERTR AR EMG
ML BEREZ EREDL
=L BRREEME EE ERER B R FEXK
Digital China (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100 Distribution of
N EFS(E )R A B HK$10,000 IT products
gl DIHITER
75 #10,0007T
E-Olympic International British Virgin Islands Ordinary share - 100 Holding of
Limited RBEERRES US$1 trademarks
E R FARIZ
B
Digital China Networks, Ltd. British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares - 100 Investment holding
BN EIERERRAR" HEER RS US$10,000,000 REZE
&t
10,000,000% 7T
Digital China Networks Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares = 100 Distribution of
(HK) Limited Mainland China HK$2 networking products
NS () B/ E R D IR Em
BRAT R B KR 27T
Digital China (Shanghai) Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Development
Networks Limited*# ey HK$3,000,000 and distribution of
Mg (B8) FAER networking products
WEAR LA 75%3,000,0007T FE RN EBEER
Digital China Networks Mainland China Registered capital = 100 Development
(Beijing) Limited** el N7 HK$3,000,000 and distribution of
MBS () FEAIE=PN networking products
BRAFN ##3,000,0007C % R HBRER
Grace Glory Enterprises British Virgin Islands Ordinary share - 100 Investment holding
Limited HEER RS US$1 REZR
BECEFRAF Eimht
B
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31 March 2008 —ZZEZN\F=A=1+—H

20. RIBRARZRE(®)
TEMBRRFBENT (&)

20. Investments in Subsidiaries (cont'd)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont'd)

Nominal value

of issued and Percentage
Place of fully paid of equity
incorporation/ share/ attributable to
registration registered the Company
Name and operations capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
ERITR AR EG
AR, BEREZ EREDL
8 BRREEMR EEERER HiE i3 FEER
Digital China Software British Virgin Islands Ordinary share - 100 Investment holding
(BVI) Limited REEARES Us$1 BEER
N EEEE A (BVI) AR
BRAR 12£7T
Digital China Sinoray Mainland China Registered capital = 100 Consultancy,
Technology Limited* FR B K B US$5,000,000 design, development,
fEN B B it E A integration,
BRAR]" 5,000,000 7T application and
maintenance
of electronic
financial systems
SRMEFLRES
BRER  BRET
B~ SR
FER RIRE
Beijing Digital China Limited* Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration
RN EAE G R A ) B K B RMB1,500,000,000 and distribution of
&R IT products
AR#1,500,000,0007T R HHITE &
Beijing Digital China SicTech  Mainland China Registered capital - 82 Application software
Co., Ltd.* FR 3 K RMB20,965,000 development,
bR M SRS E(E FfER systems integration
EERMBRAR AR#20,965,0007T and IT consultancy
services
JERB4FIE - B4t
R TR AARTS
Beijing Instant Technology Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Provision of
Logistics Co., Ltd.* EeEipNE RMB 10,000,000 logistic services
L REHEMR R ER A A &R AR IR
AR #10,000,0007T

wnEnRERAT Fmoms 117




Notes to Financial Statements Bff& Rz MIzE

31 March 2008 —ZEZN\F=A=+—H

20. AMB AR Z&RE (&)
TEWBARFEBNT : (&)

20. Investments in Subsidiaries (cont'd)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont'd)

Nominal value

of issued and Percentage
Place of fully paid of equity
incorporation/ share/ attributable to
registration registered the Company
Name and operations capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
ERTR AR EG
HEMEL BEREZ EREDL
=L BRREEME EE ERER B R FEER
Shenzhen Instant Logistics Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Provision of
Co., Ltd.* HR [ K B RMB5,000,000 logistic services
HRYIRHER AR A A M E AR R RS
AR#5,000,0007T
Digital China (Zhengzhou) Mainland China Registered capital - 90 Systems integration
Limited* SETpN 7 RMB5, 100,000 and distribution of
1R B (ZBIN) BIRAF] A AR IT products
AR#¥5,100,0007T R R 5 HHITEm
Talent Gain Developments British Virgin Islands Ordinary share - 100 Investment holding
Limited EEERREHS UsS$1 FE AR
AR
12575
DGT Information Systems Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 55 Investment holding
Limited (“"DGT") B UsS$3,000,000 REZAR
mNEESEAERE AR AR Preference shares
( [HpeaSmmEt] ) Us$1,000,000
TR
3,000,000% 7T
BRI
1,000,000% 7T
DGT Information Systems Mainland China Registered capital - 55 Software

(Shanghai) Limited**

B ARE

US$1,500,000

development

TN B B R A A and maintenance
(B8 BRAREN 1,500,000 7T services
R RRERE
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20. RBRARZRE(®)
TEMBRRFBENT (&)

20. Investments in Subsidiaries (cont'd)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

Nominal value

of issued and Percentage
Place of fully paid of equity
incorporation/ share/ attributable to
registration registered the Company
Name and operations capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
ERITR AR EAG
a1 BEREZ ERBEIL
=L BEREEE HE ZRER B 4 FTEEK
DGT Information Systems Mainland China Registered capital - 55 Software
(Beijing) Limited** ESEipN US$1,100,000 development
1N B B A A EAR and maintenance
(b)) BRAAEN 1,100,000%7T services
BB RRE RS
Power Gateway Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares - 100 Investment holding
EEEB RS us$100 FE AR
gl
[ E
Beijing Si-Tech Information Mainland China Registered capital - 81.18 Research and
Technology Co., Ltd.* EeEipNE RMB43,715,000 development,
LR BEEE R R ER application and
R BRAE AR#43,715,0007T maintenance of
software products
BHEMZ
R ke
AR AR e R
RIRERS
Hangzhou Digital China Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration
Limited** FR B K B HK$3,000,000 and distribution of
e N EAS AR A R S EA IT products
75153,000,0007T RREK KD HEITER
Digital China Software Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Software
Limited** ElEIpN 3 US$6,000,000 development
BN EEEE AR A A FEfEA and maintenance
6,000,000 7T services
AR 3 MR B RS
Digital China Macao Macau Registered capital - 100 Distribution of
Commercial Offshore JRFY MOP1,000,000 IT products
Limited FME AR D EEITE @

B SRAE R P B i O 2R AR
BRAF]

SEF9#51,000,0007C
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20. Investments in Subsidiaries (cont'd)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont'd)

+ The English names of these companies are direct transliterations of
their Chinese registered names.

#  Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law.
~  Registered as Sino-foreign joint ventures under the PRC law.

A The Chinese names are the trade names but not the official names of
these companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

21. Due from/(to) Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2008, the amounts due from/(to) the subsidiaries are
unsecured and interest-free, and have no fixed terms of repayment.
As at 31 March 2007, the amounts due from/(to) the subsidiaries were
unsecured and interest-bearing, and had no fixed terms of repayment.
The carrying amounts of these amounts due from/(to) the subsidiaries
approximate to their fair values.
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22. Interests in Jointly-controlled Entities 22. REEHIEHE 2R

Group
AEH
2008 2007
—EEN\F ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Share of net assets IR EEFE 7,894 3,644

The Group’s trade receivable and payable balances due from/(to) the
jointly-controlled entities are disclosed in notes 28 and 31 to the financial

statements.

Particulars of the principal jointly-controlled entities are as follows:

AEEEY (B ZEARZEH R BKE
IR R IEN B 5 IR BRI B IO UL I 75 R

FE28%31 °

TEHREHCEZFHBNT

Percentage of

ownership
Place of Particular of issued interest
incorporation/ shares held/ attributable Principal
Name registration registered capital to the Group activities
Ak, BFEEBITRG, REBRISAE
=L Bich By A EAEEE DB FTEEK
Digital China System Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 55 Investment
Access Holding BB US$1,000 each holding
Limited BRMEE1,0003% T BB
PN RIS B S5 45 AR B PR A A 2 EBR
Beijing Digital China System Mainland China Registered 55 Provision of
Access Software IR fE capital core banking
Limited* US$2,000,000 operation systems
Jb e N BRAS B s B 1 T E R REZOIRTT
BRRF] 2,000,000 7T ESV S0
Carrick Technology British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares of 45 Investment
Limited HKEARRHS US$1 each holding
BREEIET BB
2 EBAR
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22. Interests in jointly-controlled entities (cont'd) 22. AHEREEFTECERSE)
Particulars of the principal jointly-controlled entities are as follows: — EEHAFEHIEEZFELT (&)
(cont'd)
Percentage of
ownership
Place of Particular of issued interest
incorporation/ shares held/ attributable Principal
Name registration registered capital to the Group activities
ML BEEBITRG REBELE
=g B i B EMEARFE EERBE L FEEK
Digital China BB Mainland China Registered capital 45 Sales of software
Limited** elEip N US$1,460,000 and maintenance
b AR MBS AR FEREA services
BRAR* 1,460,0003 7T S RIRE
Suzhou Digital China JieTong ~ Mainland China Registered 49 Sales of software
Technology Co., Ltd.* R B K B capital and maintenance
RN 19N SIS HE R RMB 1,000,000 services
BRI ARAT & B HE RIRE
AR#1,000,0007T
*  Newly established during the year * RRARITIRANEE RFKAL
+  The English names of these companies are direct transliteration of their + RERRZRNEBDEZEAEMELZ 2T XS
Chinese registered names. 1 e

The Group’s shareholdings in the jointly-controlled entities are held — ZR&EERHLFEIEHID 3 2 RETFEBARE 2 M
through the subsidiaries of the Company. BARFRA ©

The above table lists the jointly-controlled entities of the Group which, in ~ E == /& Faltpr#l 2 A& B LR HI R ZE AR E
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the yearor ~ EARFEZ ¥ EREEAXEIE RN KB EEFE
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details ~ Z EAR#H - EFR R H E Ab [R5 6] 2
of other jointly-controlled entities would, in the opinion of the directors, — E#} - BERERBRITE

result in particulars of excessive length.

All the above jointly-controlled entities have been accounted for using the it FT A 2k [F 12 i (b 3 15 B 10 22 A 5 UL B 15 3R
equity method in these financial statements. RIIE o
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22. Interests in Jointly-controlled Entities (cont'd) 22. REREFTECERSE)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the ~ TRIIRAEE RS 32 B ERTE

Group's jointly-controlled entities:

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
B FIT BT T
Share of the jointly-controlled entities’ & FLEI#2 (b %
assets and liabilities: BEERBE:
Current assets BB E 11,555 5,617
Non-current assets JEMENEE 1,160 1,397
Current liabilities nEAE (4,821) (3,370)
Net assets BEFE 7,894 3,644
Share of the jointly-controlled FE(R S EEHI B3
entities’ results: ES
Total revenues U A 18,336 8,304
Total expenses PN (19,216) (29,186)
Loss 518 (880) (20,882)
23. Interests in Associates 23. REtE DT 2
Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENE “ETLF
HK$°000 HK$°000
B FT BT
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 35,612 22,970

The Group’s trade receivable and payable balances due from/(to) the — AEEEU (FER)Z M S QA2 EKE Sk
associates are disclosed in notes 28 and 31 to the financial statements. KR E B ZIR NSRRI B R KM 728
K31 -
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23. Interests in Associates (cont'd)

At 31 March 2008, the amounts due from the associates included in the
Group's prepayments, deposits and other receivables were approximately
HK$2,984,000 (2007: HK$7,523,000).

The amounts due from the associates are unsecured and interest-free,
and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of these
amounts due from the associates approximate to their fair values.

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

23. REtENT 2R (E)
R-ZBZNFE=ZA=+—H  BRELEQFIHE
BREEAEEZBMNTIE - B Rk E Rk
18 - ©EEAB2,984,000( —EELF : B
7,523,0007T) °

FEUEE & R R RIRTEER - B REREERE
Hi o FEURERE N RIFRIB Z IRE(E R E N FEER
g

TRBERBZFBID

Percentage of

ownership

Place of Particular of issued interest
incorporation/ shares held/ attributable Principal
Name registration registered capital to the Group activities

sz, BFEERITRG, REBEMGFTE
=L B2 HEMEAFE EERBDL FEXE
Digital China British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares of 40 Investment
Management RBERRES US$1 each holding
Systems (BVI) BREEI1ZET TE R

Limited s il

Digital China Mainland China Registered capital 40 Provision of
Management PR R B US$8,200,000 enterprise
Systems Limited* EERlif= N resources
MBS EE RS AR AT 8,200,00035 7T planning

software and
related services
RIELEER
REREF R
BER
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23. Interests in Associates (cont'd)
Particulars of the principal associates are as follows: (cont’d)

Notes to Fi

nancial Statements Bff&RFTMIE
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23. REtENT 2R (E)
TEMERRZEHBOT (F)

Percentage of

ownership
Place of Particular of issued interest
incorporation/ shares held/ attributable Principal
Name registration registered capital to the Group activities
Az, BEEBITRG, REBEERE
=L B R HEMEARFE EEmEDL FEEK
Beijing Mainland China Registered capital 40 Provision of
Digital China FR B KBz US$200,000 enterprise
Management M EA resources
Systems Limited* 200,000% 7T planning
Jb e N ERS B 32 R4 software and
BIRAA] related services
RELEERR
ES AL
B RS
Guangzhou Mainland China Registered capital 40 Provision of
Digital China Hh B A e US$200,000 enterprise
Management EfE A resources
Systems Limited* 200,000% 7T planning

BN N B B IR R4
BRRF]

software and
related services
RIELEER
RFEBHE R

B AR

+  The English names these companies are direct transliteration of their Chinese

registered names.

The Group’s shareholding in the associates is held through the subsidiaries

of the Company.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

All the above associates have been accounted for using the equity method
in these financial statements.

+ BELRZEXEBNAZEEMBRZHRXA

AEBNBLERR 2 BETERARAR ZHER
AEA -

EERRLERABIAKEBE AR AEEAR
FERXEREAFEIEARBEEFEZEX
By  EFRRMEI L EMBEARER - #5E
RIRBIRITE -

bt R R RS B AR RE R U ISR
e o

eNmEERERAR 50708 12D
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23. Interests in Associates (cont'd)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the

23. REFE DT 2R ()

TRINTAEERE R E 2 HHEREE (FHE

Group’s associates extracted from their financial statements: HUHE):
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT BT
Assets BE 182,140 161,850
Liabilities =L (71,787) (42,654)
Revenues WA 306,141 270,345
Profit/(Loss) wAL (E51E) 28,387 (14,475)
24. Available-for-sale Investments 24, AIHEEZRE
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EEN\F T LF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT BT
Unlisted equity investments, at cost I EmiEREE - KA 34,036 34,036
Less: Accumulated impairment loss W BRETRERE (2,425) (2,425)
31,611 31,611

The above investments consist of investments in equity securities which
were designated as available-for-sale financial assets, and have no fixed
maturity date or coupon rate.

The Group’s unlisted equity investments are measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Their fair values cannot be measured
reliably because the probabilities of various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair values.
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25. Deferred Tax 25. EREFIE

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are ~ BEEHBAEERBEFRZLEMT
as follows:

Group rEH
Deferred tax assets BIETRIEEE
2008
—EENEF
Losses
available for
offset against
future taxable Asset
profit  provisions Others Total
A AR 85
iy ol =] EERE Hith st

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT T

At 1 April 2007 RZZEZ+FWMA—H 21,565 10,055 10,642 42,262
Deferred tax credited/(charged) REFEWZERPETA

to the income statement ($0B%) 2 EIEFRIE

during the year (14,168) 11,382 13,791 11,005
Exchange realignment bE 5 AR 1,352 1,403 1,713 4,468
Gross deferred tax assets R-EZEN\F=A=+—H

at 31 March 2008 ZIEERIAE EBRE 8,749 22,840 26,146 57,735
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25. Deferred Tax (cont'd) 25. IERERIE (&)
Group rEH
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFRIEAE
2008
—Z2ENF
Unrealised losses Revaluation
from intragroup of
transactions  properties Others Total
EBRARS
EEZR
BREE YIFEEM Hth @BET

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BETT BETFIT

At 1 April 2007 R-ZEZLFMA—H 9,946 1,436 5,842 17,224
Deferred tax charged to RNEFEEWR R IR

the income statement ZIEFERL IR

during the year 12,684 977 5,203 18,864
Exchange realignment Rk 1,252 267 648 2,167
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZZEZENF=A=+—H

at 31 March 2008 ZIEERIA S EERE 23,882 2,680 11,693 38,255
Net deferred tax charged to RNEEEW R P HGR 2 RIE

the income statement during MIEFEE (F5E11)

the year (note 11) 7,859

Net deferred tax assets recognised HKR-ZZNF=HA=+—H
in the consolidated balance sheet #E4RABEBEBEXRPHER
at 31 March 2008 REF IR B E)FRE 19,480
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25. Deferred Tax (cont'd) 25. IERERIIE (&)
Group AEE
Deferred tax assets BIETRIEEE
2007
—ET+F
Losses
available for
offset against
future taxable Asset
profit provisions Others Total
AR
RIRFERTL
w2 E1E BERE Hi st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3$'000
BETT BT BETFIT BT
At 1 April 2006 RZTZRFEA—R 10,523 15,270 15,914 41,707

Deferred tax credited/(charged) REZEN ?%EP sTAS

to the income statement (Hkr) ZIEEFIA

during the year 10,590 (5,565) (5,666) (641)
Exchange realignment BEE 34, e B 452 350 394 1,196
Gross deferred tax assets RZZEZtF=A=+—H

at 31 March 2007 ZIRETIAE EBRE 21,565 10,055 10,642 42,262
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25. Deferred Tax (cont'd) 25. JEFERIE (48)
Group REH
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEA &
2007
—ZTTLF
Unrealised losses  Revaluation
from intragroup of
transactions properties Others Total
EEANRS
EEZR
EHER E 0 Hth a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JBIEFoT BEFT BT B FoT
At 1 April 2006 REZZZRFEMA—H 5,411 1,105 4,041 10,557
Deferred tax charged to RERFEWESFRF R
the income statement during ZIRERIA
the year 4,479 297 1,648 6,424
Exchange realignment ME AR 56 34 153 243
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZEETLF=A=+—H
at 31 March 2007 ZIREBIRE EEE 9,946 1,436 5,842 17,224
Net deferred tax charged to AEBERZERFRZ
the income statement RETIRERE (Mfat11)
during the year (note 11) 7,065

Net deferred tax assets recognised RZTZE+F=H=+—H
in the consolidated balance sheet  fEirAEEBBERTHERZ
at 31 March 2007 BT IR EE 5 25,038

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of approximately A& B R 8 B K& 2§18 B B L 8 %
HK$131,289,000 (2007: HK$170,521,000) which are due to expire within 131,289,0007Cc( — T+ 4 : & #170,521,000
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits of the subsidiariesin ~ 7T) * F] FARE SHE 4 B518 2 M8 2 5] 2 AR RFER
which the losses arose. These tax losses and certain deductible temporary — B Al - ERREFREm - BRI FHIAEE
differences of approximately HK$73,415,000 (2007: HK$46,790,000) K& T Al HURE B 14 = 584088 73,415,0007T (=
have not been recognised as deferred tax assets since they have arisen in 2=+ 4 : #%46,790,0007T ) /52K B E £ E 18
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time. —BRKEZRBAR - W RERRELERIEE
= o
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25. Deferred Tax (cont'd)

At 31 March 2008, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
liability (2007: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities
or associates, as the Group has no liability to additional tax should such
amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

25. EIEBIIE (&)
RZZEZENF=ZA=1+—H BB TAEENESB
AR EREEHICEKBENR 2 RELAF
MR ZERIBE LR - ANEEWE S EAEEIN
FIE - M EARRC EAREREERIERE(Z
TTLFE) o

ARARABRRINZERE  TEHRBREHRRE
2o

26. Inventories 26. B
Group
EE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
B FIT BT T
Trading stock ZEo91FE 2,559,364 1,683,630
27. Due from/(to) Contract Customers 27. W () EHNEFEZRE
Group
REE
2008 2007
—EZEN\F —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFIT BT T
Gross amount due from BEFAHMERGRIA 2
contract customers WA HNRF 2 BB
included in other receivables 36,309 32,313
Gross amount due to BEFAHAMEKIEZ
contract customers AR 2 RIEERE
included in other payables (13,999) (14,391)
22,310 17,922
Contract costs incurred plus recognised ZAZHRIEAZ AL
profits less recognised losses to date AN FE20 KR 2 e 2 18 414,077 264,027
Less: Progress billings B SRR (391,767) (246,105)
22,310 17,922
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28. Trade and Bills Receivables

ARSI RE

28. B E SRR BKREE

Group
AEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BT
Trade and bills receivables FEUE 5 0R 3 M B U 22k 4,108,624 3,028,859
Impairment B (335,804) (176,455)
3,772,820 2,852,404

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, except
for new customers, where payment in advance is normally required. The
credit period is generally for a period of 30 days to 180 days. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by management. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the balance sheet
date and net of impairment is as follows:

AEBEEZUEENABETFIIEE S GR
HE—REZRHEFEANIE - FEH—RA30
RE180K ° AR EHH R B E WA E hkE
ZEE - WRAEEEERM - BREEERR
WERE - EEES TR AHRE - BKRE
SRR B

REER - HIRREER 2 BKRE SRR ERE
BZREBEOMTFHBNT

Group

REE
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETHF
HK$000 HK$°000
BT T BETT
Within 30 days 3084 1,846,435 1,445,863
31 to 60 days 31RE60XR 467,480 327,043
61 to 90 days 61RE90X 438,626 277,791
91 to 180 days 91RE180K 601,101 447,396
Over 180 days HiE180K 419,178 354,311
3,772,820 2,852,404
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28. Trade and Bills Receivables (cont'd)

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as
follows:

28. BEWE ZIRMRREWRERE (&)
FERE SRR ZRERE 2 EBHBENT -

Group

REE
2008 2007
—EENE T LF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BYETFT JEMTF T
At 1 April REA—H 176,455 123,400
Amount written off as uncollectible ARz #isE &5 (20,067) (16,390)
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) RBEEIE (B:t7) 152,940 64,610
Exchange realignment PE W SR 26,476 4,835
335,804 176,455

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables is a
provision for individually impaired trade receivables of HK$90,715,000
(2007: HK$41,140,000) with a carrying amount of HK$90,715,000 (2007:
HK$41,140,000). The individually impaired trade receivables related to
customers that were in financial difficulties and the full amount of the
receivables is expected to be irrecoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are not considered
to be impaired is as follows:

LA_EFREi e B 5 IR SRORUE B 1R A E BB E /Y FE
B F IR AE B 1590,715,0007T( — T4 ¢
75#£41,140,0007T ) + WREE AE¥90,715,0007T
BT+ F : B¥41,140,0007T) o ERIRER
FEWE ZFIRFRTBEREF HRCE B - )
2D FEWIR AT UG o RE B R Z S E AT
BEHEF MK EEE MR SR o

TEHEREZEKE SRR MERRER kRS
WrEBET

Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Neither past due nor impaired REE B ARRE 3,102,040 2,252,115
Less than 30 days past due BHIDR30K 259,795 201,711
3,361,835 2,453,826
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28. Trade and Bills Receivables (cont'd)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of there balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables approximate to
their fair values.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables are amounts due from
the associates of the Company’s substantial/controlling shareholder of
approximately HK$1,881,000 (2007: HK$543,000).

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables are amounts due from
the related companies of a subsidiary of the Group, namely, DGT, the
jointly-controlled entities of the Group and the associates of the Group
of approximately HK$4,587,000 (2007: HK$5,040,000), HK$1,609,000
(2007: Nil) and HK$123,000 (2007: HK$200,000), respectively.

The above balances are repayable on similar credit terms to those offered
to the major customers of the Group.

29. Cash and Bank Balances

28. BEWE SRR R EWRE (&)

REHBERBEZREER VRSB ETEFA
B - RSN B R RIA 2 FO sk o

B (HE I R (B 2 MR KT RS TR
FER ZEEFPEASBEARBRIEMELAR
%o REBERR  ARRAESAREMRETHE
BRI ERZEHRERE  SEAREEPZ2EE
HEVESANEEMBERBR/EATADE
e o AEBARMZEEHHAEMNEARLE
HEEL b INSR (S B I o

FEYE H iR R R R 2 REERE QN FEE
HE

AEBERERKESERNERZESHEERER
RNRBEE IR 2 B & QR FRIBL B
1,881,00070( —ZZ+4F : ##543,0007T) °

AEE 2 BUIE SRR BN EE S5 BB R R
SEZMBAR - MBI RAESMGZ ZHEE
AE > AEBZZEARZEHCERAEE 2
FEIHE & A ) 2 SR D Bl #9785 #4,587,00070 ( —FF
4 : #%5,040,0000T) © B %1,609,0007T(=F
T ) RBEH123,000( Z B LE - B
200,0007T,) ©

L ESDRBRETAKREIERP 2BUE
ERRER -

29. RERBITLEER

Group Company
AEE AR
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF ZZTHF ZEBEN\F ZIZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT BT T
Cash and bank balances e MIRI TR 998,454 717,455 1,327 913

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to approximately
HK$707,411,000 (2007: HK$652,150,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and bank
balances approximate to their fair values.
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30. Non-current Asset Classified as Held for Sale

In January 2007, the Group has entered into a share transfer agreement
with a third party to dispose of its entire interest in an associate, Nanjing
Mercuries DC Financial Systems Ltd. The disposal was completed in
August 2007 and resulting in a net gain of approximately HK$2,495,000
(note 5).

31. Trade and Bills Payables

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the balance sheet
date is as follows:

30. FEGEZHERBEE
REZTZ+LE—F  AEEEFE=FFT 7RG
HERE DE—MBEQARERENBIE =G
EERARBEERARZELEES N_TT+
FNA WHEEREK  WEAFRSOHE
2,495,000t (ff7E5) °

31. ENEZRRARENRE
REER - BESERRREARE 2 R AT
BT

Group

#AEE
2008 2007
—BEBN\F —ZTTAF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
Within 30 days 30K 1,596,040 1,400,964
31 to 60 days 31RE60K 986,495 876,647
61 to 90 days 61KE90K 552,703 212,180
Over 90 days HBBI0K 199,281 177,653
3,334,519 2,667,444

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled for a
period of 30 days to 180 days.

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables approximate to their
fair values.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills payables are amounts due to
the associates of the Company’s substantial/controlling shareholder of
approximately HK$47,166,000 (2007: HK$112,398,000).

Included in the Group’s trade and bills payables are amounts due to an
associate of the Group and a jointly-controlled entity of the Group of
approximately HK$Nil (2007: HK$4,039,000) and HK$342,000 (2007:
HK$NIl), respectively.

The above balances are repayable on similar credit terms to those obtained
from the major suppliers of the Group.

BN E ZIRARABTHE - W—RIN30KE180K
BB E -

BNEZEAREBNERZREEREAFEE
GEE=I

AEBEENESEALRENZESHBOER
NARBEE ERBREZBE QA NEE
47,166,0007C( = ZZ 4 : 5% 112,398,0007T)

AEEENEFRFARENEBESEREEAA
SBE—HBERARRASEE 2 —BHERIZES
PEZREDHNOBEET(ZEZTLF : B
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32. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings

32. MERITER

2008 2007
“EEN\E i
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
L vilES B H =
(Bat) ZHA BEFT (BSt) gal)i) BEFT
Current e
Bank loans, unsecured ROER - EER 5.37-5.66  2008-2009 311,433 4.37-6.08 2007 599,887
Bank loans, secured BTER . BEA 6.39-8.02  2008-2009 33,237 5.85-6.12  2007-2008 33,649
Current portion of long RBBITERZ
terms bank loans REEH
— unsecured — R 7.2 2008 55,396 = = =
400,066 633,536
Non-current Ei)
Bank loans, unsecured RITET - EEA 7.2 2009-2014 952,803 6.39  2008-2012 603,697
1,352,869 1,237,233
Group
AEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BT
Analysed into: DI
Bank loans repayable: EERRITER
Within one year or on demand —FRsIREBAN 400,066 633,536
In the second year RE-FR 55,396 247,417
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=FEZFENF (PHEEERTE) 343,452 148,450
Beyond five years hFE 553,955 207,830
1,352,869 1,237,233
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32. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings (cont'd)

Notes:

(@ The Company guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank loans of approximately
HK$1,319,632,000 (2007: HK$1,164,684,000) at the balance sheet date.

(b) Certain of the Group’s bank loans of approximately HK$33,237,000 (2007:
HK$33,649,000) extended by financial institutions to a subsidiary of the
Group, Beijing Si-Tech Information Technology Co., Ltd. (“STQ"), were
secured by the Group's property situated in Mainland China with a fair value of
approximately HK$19,278,000 (2007: HK$16,231,000) at the balance sheet
date and 14,061,976 issued shares of STQ in favour of Beijing Zhongguancun
Sci-Tech Guaranty Co. Ltd. (the “Pledgee”), an independent third party, for
securing a guarantee issued by such Pledgee on behalf of STQ at the balance
sheet date.

(c) Except for bank borrowings of approximately HK$311,433,000 (2007:
HK$599,887,000) which are denominated in United States dollars (“US$"),
all bank borrowings are denominated in RMB.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate to their fair
values which are calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
at the prevailing interest rates.

33. Bond Payable

During the year, Digital China (China) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and three independent third parties entered into an
agreement with the underwriters to issue a bond to institutional and
public investors in Mainland China with an aggregate principal amount
of RMB305 million. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group issued a
RMB200 million (equivalent to approximately HK$222 million) bond (the
“Bond"”) for financing the development of IT services business. The Bond
carries interest at a rate of 6.68% per annum, which is payable semi-
annually and will mature in December 2010. For the purpose of the Bond,
Beijing Zhongguancun Sci-tech Guaranty Co., Ltd. (“ZGC Guaranty”), an
independent third party, has unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken
joint and several guarantee liabilities in full (the “Guarantee Liabilities”)
in favour of Digital China (China) Limited. Concurrently, the China
Development Bank has authorised its business department to undertake
general guarantee liability in respect of the Guarantee Liabilities of ZGC
Guaranty, and Digital China Software Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has undertaken joint and several liabilities in respect of
the Guarantee Liabilities of ZGC Guaranty.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bond payable approximate to its fair
values.

32. HESRITERE)
st -
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34. Share Capital 34. R
Shares Az 1n
2008 2007
—BEBNF —ETAF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Authorised: SEE
2,000,000,000 (2007: 2,000,000,000)  2,000,000,0008% (—ZZ+4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 2,000,000,000/%) FAXEEAEE0.1T
(2007: HK$0.1) each (Z2Z+F - BE0T) cERR 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BRBEITRABRK
963,619,581 (2007: 874,039,081) 963,619,581% (ZZZH4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 874,039,0811%) EAXHEEEH¥0.17T
(2007: HK$0.1) each ZETLF BKT) 2EER 96,362 87,404

During the year, the subscription rights attaching to 89,580,500 (2007:
7,105,000) share options were exercised at subscription prices ranging
from HK$1.976 to HK$3.604 (2007: HK$1.976 and HK$2.75) per share
(note 35), resulting in the issue of 89,580,500 (2007: 7,105,000) ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
approximately HK$257,147,000 (2007: HK$14,451,000).

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the share options
issued under the schemes are included in note 35 to the financial
statements.
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35. Share Option Schemes
2001 Share Option Scheme

The old share option scheme of the Company was adopted on 14 May
2001 (the “2001 Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to which the board of
directors of the Company may, at its discretion, grant options to full-time
employees (including executive directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries (the “Employee(s)”) to subscribe for shares of the Company.
The purpose of the 2001 Share Option Scheme is to provide the Employees
with an opportunity to obtain equity interests in the Company and to
reward them for contributing to the long term success of the Group.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted under the 2001 Share Option Scheme had not exceeded
10% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The
maximum entitlement of any Employee thereunder had not exceeded
25% of the aggregate number of shares subject to the 2001 Share Option
Scheme. A consideration of HK$1.00 was received on acceptance of each
grant. A detailed summary of the 2001 Share Option Scheme had been
disclosed in the 2001/02 annual report of the Company.

Due to the amendment of the requirements for share option schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, some of the provisions of the 2001
Share Option Scheme are no longer applicable.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 July 2002,
the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) (details of which are
set out below) and the termination of the operation of the 2001 Share
Option Scheme. Despite the fact that no further options shall be granted
under the 2001 Share Option Scheme, the provisions of the 2001 Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects to
govern all outstanding options granted prior to termination.

35. fBRAERTE
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35. Share Option Schemes (cont'd)
2001 Share Option Scheme (cont'd)
The following table shows the movements in the share options under the

2001 Share Option Scheme during the year and the options outstanding
at the beginning and end of the year:

35. MR HERT &I (E)

— T FREREEI(A)
TREINE_FT—FREETE TRERERA
FEAZEY  URRFORFREARTEZE
Pk -

Number of share options
BRESE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Subscription
as at during during during asat price per Date of Exercisable
Grantee 1/4/2007 the year the year the year 31/3/2008 share grant period
RoBRLE REBENE
mA—-A REE REE REE =B=1+-H Bk
ERA HRTHRE WER TR REH H AT ABE Rt A8 yid
(HKS)
(B%7)

(note iii) (note if) (note i)

(i) (Hztii) (Hizti)
Directors
B2
GUO Wei 2,800,000 - (2,800,000) - - 3.180 12/07/2001 12/07/2002-11/07/2009
#5H 2,800,000 - (2,800,000) - - 1.976 31/08/2001 31/08/2002-30/08/2009
LIN Yang 1,500,000 - (1,500,000) - - 3.180 12/07/2001 12/07/2002-11/07/2009
5 1,500,000 = (1,500,000) = = 1.976 31/08/2001 31/08/2002-30/08/2009
HUA Zhinian (Note v) 1,100,000 - (1,100,000) - - 3.180 12/07/2001 12/07/2002-11/07/2009
EME (W) 500,000 - (500,000) - - 1.976 31/08/2001 31/08/2002-30/08/2009
Other employees 22,275,000 - (20,367,000) (1,908,000) - 3.604 08/06/2001 08/06/2002-19/06/2009
HitEE 4,599,500 - (4,514,500) (85,000) - 1.976 31/08/2001 31/08/2002-30/08/2009

In aggregate 37,074,500

At

(35,081,500) (1,993,000) =
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35. Share Option Schemes (cont'd)
2001 Share Option Scheme (cont'd)

Notes:

(i)  All options granted are subject to a vesting period of four years with 25%
becoming exercisable on the first anniversary, 25% on the second anniversary,
25% on the third anniversary and 25% on the fourth anniversary of the
respective dates of grant.

(i)  The subscription price of the options is subject to adjustment in the case
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

(i) The weighted average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares
immediately preceding and at the dates of the exercise of options were
approximately HK$4.40 per share and HK$4.51 per share, respectively.

(iv) No options were cancelled under the 2001 Share Option Scheme during the
year.

(v)  Mr. HUA Zhinian resigned as Director on 19 December 2007.

2002 Share Option Scheme

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was adopted on 18 July 2002 and its
principal terms are as follows:

(@) Purpose

The 2002 Share Option Scheme seeks to recognise and acknowledge
the contributions or potential contributions made or to be made by
the qualified persons (as defined below) to the Group, to motivate the
qualified persons to optimise their performance and efficiency for the
benefit of the Group, and to maintain or attract business relationship with
the qualified persons whose contributions are or may be beneficial to the
growth of the Group.

(b) Qualified persons

Any part-time or full-time employee or officer or director (including
executive, non-executive or independent non-executive directors) of any
member of the Group or of any associated company, or any supplier, agent,
customer, joint venture partner, strategic alliance partner, distributor,
professional adviser of, or consultant or contractor to, any member of the
Group, or the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the board of directors
of the Company, the beneficiary (or in the case of discretionary trust,
the discretionary objects) of which include any of the above-mentioned
persons.
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35. Share Option Schemes (cont'd)
2002 Share Option Scheme (cont'd)

(©)  Maximum number of shares

At 31 March 2008, the maximum number of shares available for issue
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme was 86,303,308, which represents
approximately 8.96% of the share capital of the Company in issue as at
the date of these financial statements.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each qualified person

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company to each qualified person (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting of the Company.

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company or any of their respective associates must be approved by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company (except when
the independent non-executive director is the grantee of such options).

Any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company or any of their respective associates
must, in addition to obtaining the approval of the independent non-
executive directors of the Company, be approved by the shareholders
of the Company in a general meeting if such proposed grant of share
options, when aggregated with all options (whether exercised, cancelled
or outstanding) already granted to such substantial shareholder or
independent non-executive director during the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant of options, would (i) entitle that
relevant person to receive more than 0.1% of the total issued share capital
of the Company for the time being; and (ii) represent an aggregate value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 based on the closing price of the shares of
the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) at the date of such grant.

(e) Timing for exercise of options

The period during which an option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the 2002 Share Option Scheme shall be the period set out in
the relevant offer letter, provided that such period must expire on the date
falling on the tenth anniversary of the offer date.

(f)  Acceptance of offers

An offer of the grant of an option shall be accepted by the grantee on or
before the last date for acceptance of such offer as set out in the offer
letter, which must not be more than 28 business days from the relevant
offer date. A consideration of HK$1.00 shall be received by the Company
on acceptance of each offer.
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35. Share Option Schemes (cont'd) 35. R RESTE(®)

2002 Share Option Scheme (cont'd) —ET  FERETEI(E)

() Basis for determination of the subscription price Q) RBEZETEE

The subscription price shall be the highest of (a) the closing price of the REEBBEATIT ZESE  QRHNEL B

shares on the offer date; (b) the average of the closing prices of the shares ZUWTHE OO RBEEL BT RES S
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer date; or (c) the B2 FHKME ; k(iR H 2 HE -
nominal value of a share.

(h) Life of the 2002 Share Option Scheme (h) =T -FEREE N

The 2002 Share Option Scheme shall remain valid and effective for a  — == - EpREstaR -—E= -+ 7+ H
period of ten years commencing from 18 July 2002, the date on which (BNt 2RI B 8 A B My B ) iBst >
such scheme is deemed to take effect in accordance with its terms. +4F BARS P 4 4 g Rk K A VEFR o

The following table shows the movements in the share options under the [ #7/ — T — SR IREL 2 TREIRERE
2002 Share Option Scheme during the year and the options outstanding EERT B LA RREY R ER YR ITE T B

at the beginning and end of the year: ek
Number of share options
BREA
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Subscription
as at during during during asat price per Date of Exercisable
Grantee 1/4/2007 the year the year the year 31/3/2008 share grant period
REZELE REZENE
mA—-A REE KEE KEE =B=1-H =1
ERA HAITE WER RiTE PSd HAITE HEE RitiAH fiies
(HKS)
(F#7)

(note iii) (note if) (note i)

(Hiatii) (Hystii) i)
Directors
Bz
LI Qin (Note v) 2,500,000 - (2,500,000) - - 2.068 24/06/2004  24/06/2005-23/06/2012
=8(fiftv)
GUO Wei 5,000,000 = (5,000,000) = = 2.750 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
#5
LIN Yang 2,500,000 - (2,500,000) - - 2.750 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
5
HUA Zhinian (Note v) 2,000,000 — (2,000,000) = - 2.750 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
EF (i)
Other employees 42,873,000 - (42,499,000) (374,000) - 2.750 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
HitfEE

In aggregate 54,873,000

att

(54,499,000) (374,000) =
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35. Share Option Schemes (cont'd)
2002 Share Option Scheme (cont'd)

Notes:

(i)  All options granted are subject to a vesting period of four years with 25%
becoming exercisable on the first anniversary, 25% on the second anniversary,
25% on the third anniversary and 25% on the fourth anniversary of the
respective date of grant.

(i)  The subscription price of the options is subject to adjustment in the case
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

(i) The weighted average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares
immediately preceding and at the dates of the exercise of options were
approximately HK$4.42 per share and HK$4.52 per share, respectively.

(iv)  No options were cancelled under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the
year.

(v)  Mr. LI Qin retired and Mr. HUA Zhinian resigned as Directors on 19 December
2007.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote
at general meetings.

The fair values of equity-settled share options granted were estimated as at
the respective dates of grant, using a binomial model, taking into account
of the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%)

Expected volatility (%)
Historical volatility (%) 48 per annum
Risk-free interest rate (%) 3.53 and 4.11 per annum
Expected life of option (year) 8
Weighted average share price (HK$) 2.72

2.75 per annum
45 per annum

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the
past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

During the year, HK$1,576,000 (2007: HK$6,309,000) of equity-settled
share option expenses was recognised in the income statement in respect
of the share options granted in previous years.
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35. IBRAESTEI(®)
— R EI(E)

—'?!:‘r:!:‘
==

() FAERDZBERESZFINARNENEEBS -
5% 7] &% H B B 5w — ﬂizaﬁﬁézéﬁ
£+ 25% A R imMEE 2 BRIRTTE © 25% A R
W= AF 2 BFABITE - R25%AIRNREEF 2 H
FRITE ©

(i) FERRERRIBERAR AR SR EFA AR KRR
A EA RS A] TE -

@iy  AREPRD R B B ETE R RITER 200
TR MED BIA BB A.427T R ABEA527T -

(iv) RAFEAREBIERE_TT_FHERETS
HWEUH

v) FHEER-ZEELF+-ATABERRKRREULF

FERFRBHERES -
BRETEETHEAZTEREIRBERAE £
REREHER -

PR s B B 2 R FEETIRERR H

ERAFAZEARAGE R EE REREZ
BEAER R - TREIIRAER ZHIEE
=

REXR(EDL) FE2.75E
TEERR (B D) FF458
BEEE(ED L) FEARE
EmRRANE(EDL) BF353EM411E
RENHE 2 TEAT FHA(4F) 8
INFEFERRE (B T) 2.72

BRE A FRIRBBEE=F 2 BEERE
B RUORBRATEHR 2TERIER - FHKER
ES&‘UE’*”EfEI“LE/BZVPaaT%a/T\ﬂEXi*“ 4153
RIAR B E R R o

RAFERN ERRERARNEFEREZE
H%féﬁﬁu LAH%%S'ZHZ%H&TEF#ES‘Z%ﬁM 576,000
TT(ZZZ 4 : ##6,309,0007T) °



36. Reserves
(@) Group

Notes to Financial Statements BffR&EMIzE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 59 of the financial statements.

Reserve funds

Reserve funds are reserves set aside in accordance with the relevant PRC
regulations applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China.
These reserve funds can be used to offset accumulated losses but are not
be distributable in the form of cash dividends.

31 March 2008 —ZZN\F=A=+—H

36. f#fE

(a) AEE
FEERNEERAGEE 2 EEREREHS
2PN B RREOE Y A ERNEHE
ﬁq °

REESA/AEENPBEAREZHEARZTH
BROEARBE 2 fE - 2FREES T AAEH
ZEtEE - BETREAREMRBZITADIK °

(b) Company b) AAF
Employee
Share share-based
premium  Contributed compensation Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
DR A
L@ EEZ
RER BB HefE REBEF st
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
st BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2006 RZTZRFMA—H 305,334 623,689 50,458 157,541 1,137,022
Exercise of share options 1Tl AR A 14,238 - (498) = 13,740
Equity-settled share MRS A2
option arrangements BRELHE 35 - - 6,309 = 6,309
Profit for the year AEE R - - - 88,323 88,323
Proposed final 2007 BR-TTLE
dividend REERE 13 - - - (72,370) (72,370)
At 31 March 2007 RZZEZTtF=A=+—H 319,572 623,689 56,269 173,494 1,173,024
Exercise of share options 1Tl R 300,995 = (52,806) = 248,189
Equity-settled share MIRAS A2
option arrangements R 35 - - 1,576 - 1,576
Release upon lapse of REBBRERE
vested share options KA = = (5,039) 5,039 -
Profit for the year AEEGRF - - - 151,925 151,925
Proposed final 2008 BE—TT)\F
dividend RERE 13 - - - (140,210) (140,210)
At 31 March 2008 RZEENF=ZA=1—H 620,567 623,689 - 190,248 1,434,504
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36. Reserves (cont'd)
(b) Company (cont'd)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the fair
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a corporate
reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the Companies
Act of Bermuda (as amended) and the Bye-laws of the Company, the
contributed surplus can be distributed to the shareholders, provided
that the Company will be able to pay its liabilities as they fall due, and
subsequent to the distribution, the aggregate amount of its total liabilities
as well as the issued share capital and premium is less than the realisable
value of its assets.

The employee share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair value
of share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained
in the accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in note
2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either be transferred to
the share premium account when the related options are exercised, or
be transferred to retained profits should the related options expire or be
forfeited.

37. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the non-cash capital contribution
made by the minority shareholders into a subsidiary of the Group was in
the form of an intangible asset valued at approximately HK$6 million.

38. Contingent Liabilities

At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided for in the
financial statements were as follows:

36. f#fE(E)

(b) ARFE(E)
ARBZBABHRIERESEHEAR QR LB
R ER LT mETTZ — IR A R E A KR
RAZBHERATFEESRAR BRI
TZBEOHEEZER REAREQRRE(LE
) RARRZABAA - BABSRE DK TR
R EARRMAFENEEDNR2ES - ME
AN KK ARE 2 BEBARDBITERAR
HETDEREEENATERE

U tEEZMEREERERT - WARTTE
MBI 2 N EEBK - FBEN TP BHRE
BiFE2 AE BN BREN SN R 2 T BORAERE
HEABRETER - ZFEFBTHEESEE ALK
AR - HEABBRED MR EER  BA
REEAM °

37. RERERERMEE

TEFRERS
REBE-ZTZN\F=R=1T—HIEFEAN  IH
BRERAEBOR A BTNE EEFERNER
—RBRRZIBREEALE -

38. WAREE
REZER  TARLIBBRRBEBZ SREED
T

Group Company
rEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —ZETtHF ZEBFN\F —IFTTLHF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BEEF T BT T BETT BT
Guarantees given for banking ABARBEAZRIT
facilities utilised by subsidiaries BB M 2 ER - - 1,947,790 2,225,645
Guarantees given to suppliers BB A ERE T HERS
for subsidiaries ZYER - - 815,807 419,088
- - 2,763,597 2,644,733
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39. Operating Lease Arrangements
(@) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one
to three years. The terms of the leases generally also require the tenant to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according
to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 March 2008, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenant falling due as

9. KEMERH
<a) TEREHEA
AEERBEEHELHHBEREY R (HE
16) * FAREENHERAT —FE=F1F - HY
1I7%¥KL% EXHLXMFRER - UHIASRIE
BTN EHABEE -

RIZBBNF=ZA=+—H REFEEEALH
FEITZ AR 2 L8 - AEEZIHEK

follows: Bz RRGAREER AT
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEF T BT T
Within one year —FR 24,684 21,030
In the second to fifth years, inclusive “EEZENF (PEEEMT) 18,236 3,289
42,920 24,319

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and warehouses under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from six months to ten years.

At 31 March 2008, the Group and the Company had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:

(b) PEAEFEA

$‘$lﬂ?&%%«‘é%ﬁ%fﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁa%ﬂ#"*%%
c FIREYMERORARMAFNEAZE+
¢ :

RZFBZNF=ZA=1—0 REFFTTAIHH
ZEERY  REBERADR B HALNN ZARK
REEENKAT :

Group Company
AEE ¥ /N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF ZETTLF BTN\F TTLHF
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BEFT BT B F T
Within one year —FR 95,097 40,238 2,809 1,712
In the second to fifth —FEFRF
years, inclusive (BIEEEMTE) 96,364 47,035 9,569 1,141
After five years RFE 5,961 8,595 = =
197,422 95,868 12,378 2,853
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40. Commitments 40. EIE

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 39(b) M EXMFE39(0)FF B LHE LI - NWEE
above, the Group and the Company had the following capital commitments ~ BfEXRA + ARERAREEL A TEAHGE
at the balance sheet date:

Group Company
REE AR
2008 2007 2008 2007

ZEENFE —TELHF ZEBENF —TTLHF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T BT T

Contracted, but not provided for: B I #1BREHE -

Capital contributions in: FERATARIEE :
Associates /N - 990 - -
Jointly-controlled entities HEHEHI B - 5,130 = =

— 6,120 = =
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41. Related Party Transactions
(I)  Transactions with related parties:

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material transactions
with related parties during the year:

31 March 2008 —ZEZEN\F=A=+—H

41. BEALRS

() HEFEALZZS

MV EREREMIBHOMEYN ZZER D REH
O REBRAEEAEUTEAZEBEALR
% g

Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETHF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Kzt EBETT BT
Lenovo Group Limited and its ERAEE TERBREZ
subsidiaries, the associates of the Bt A F]  BAREE AR AR
Company’s substantial/controlling REMBAF :
shareholder:
Sale of goods by the Group REBEE 2 EY 0] 107,227 44,822
Purchases of goods by the Group AEEBEEZEY (ii) 1,309,519 1,142,083
Right Lane Limited, a wholly- ARAEE TERIREZ
owned subsidiary of the Company’s 2EHEBMBAT -
substantial/controlling shareholder: FRABRAR
Rental expenses paid by the Group REBZH2HEE (iif) 270 360
GE Capital Mauritius Equity BN BAE s EERR -
Investment, a substantial shareholder GE Capital Mauritius Equity
of DGT, and its subsidiaries: Investment & E B A 7] :
Provision of IT services by the Group AEEREITARTS (iv) 10,684 10,723
TIS Inc., a substantial shareholder of DGT, 18N 28%:m A E+ 2 = 2R -
and its subsidiaries: TIS Inc. R EHTB AR :
Provision of IT services by the Group AN B EITARTS (iv) 33,337 33,438
Digital China Management Systems REE 7B A 7] - Digital China
(BVI) Limited and its subsidiaries, Management Systems (BVI)
associates of the Group: Limited & E B QA -
Sale of goods and provision of REBHEEZEWR
IT services by the Group RITAR S 0),(iv) 3,254 595
Purchases of goods by the Group REEBEZ2EMR
and provision of IT services to A S ERHITARTS
the Group (i), (iv) 2,939 3,627
Nanjing Mercuries DC Financial Systems — ZNS[@ 7 Bt & AR + B
Ltd., an associate of the Group: I =AM ARRREBEER AR ¢
Purchases of goods by the Group rEEBEZEY (i) 1,545 17,012
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41. Related Party Transactions (cont'd)
()  Transactions with related parties: (cont'd)

41. BEALR S (®)
() HERBEALTZZH ()

Group
AEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ETAHF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Kzt BT T BT T
KingNote Digital (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., ~ AEEZEEAR] @ ©HE
an associate of the Group: CRINBRAT :
Sale of goods by the Group AEBEEZEY () 1,140 =
PinHu Digital China BoHal Science REBZEERT - Tt
& Technology Co., Ltd.*, HIIEEREARAT :
an associate of the Group:
Sale of goods by the Group REEEEZEY 0) 1,050 -
LiaoNing ZhongTian Digital China REB A AT - EERR
Technology Co., Ltd.*, BRI BR AT
an associate of the Group:
Sales of goods by the Group REBHEZEY (i) 2,841 -
Beijing Digital China System Access REE 2 LREHIRZE - bR
Software Limited, a jointly-controlled M SIS SRR AR AT ¢
entity of the Group:
Purchases of goods by the Group REEBEE 2EY R M
and provision of IT services to RN EREITRS
the Group (i), (iv) 13,650 4,740
Digital China BB Limited, RNEE z EREEHIRZE - bR
a jointly-controlled entity of the Group:  f#MEIEEREEERAE] -
Sale of goods by the Group REEHEZEY () 4,316 =
Purchases of goods by the Group AEERBEZEY (i) 2,772 =
+  The English names of these companies are direct transliteration of their Chinese ~ +  ZEFRAFZENEWIIEREBME L2 XA

registered names
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41. Related Party Transactions (cont'd)
(I)  Transactions with related parties: (cont'd)
Notes:

(i)  The sales were made with reference to the listed prices and conditions offered
to the major customers of the Group.

(i)  The purchases were made at prices mutually agreed between the Group and
the corresponding related parties with reference to the pricing policies of the
Group.

(i)  The rental expenses were determined at rates mutually agreed between the
Group and the corresponding related party with reference to the prevailing
market reference.

(iv)  The prices for the provision of IT services were determined at rates mutually
agreed between the Group and the corresponding related parties.

The related party transactions with the associates of the Company’s
substantial/controlling shareholder and the minority shareholders of the
Group's subsidiary also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(I Outstanding balances with related parties:

(a) Details of the Group’s trade balances with the associates of the
Company’s substantial/controlling shareholder, jointly-controlled
entities, associates and related companies of a subsidiary as at the
balance sheet date are included in notes 28 and 31 to the financial
statements.

(b) As at the balance sheet date, the amounts due from the associates
of the Company’s substantial/controlling shareholder included in
the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables were
approximately HK$46,215,000 (2007: HK$28,278,000).

(c) Details of the Group’s amounts due from the associates as at
the balance sheet date are included in note 23 to the financial
statements.

31 March 2008 —ZZN\F=A=+—H

.BEEALRS )
<I> HHEfBA T 2R S (E)

et

() ZEHEDREASEMETIBREFPRHZTER
RAF AT

(i) ZEBEDRBAKEZEERR - UAKEEN
FARREA LB IT e 2 (BARH#ETT

(i) MEDHREASEEABBEALRERTERAR
i R & 7 e 2 MME -

(iv) $RETIRIE 2 ERTIIRIBA S B EERREA LS
77 E MEETE °

ARBEE A ARRIR 2 B &N R R AN E B
REZVBRRZBEALZ G IHER ETRA
FTHABER CERXFUFEMERS

(I EEEEEH 2 ERERE

(@) B’\ R - $E@£ﬁi$®7£x/% el

zaﬁ%@ HEEHID - B A R R

TZ%EL RlZ B S FBER I
Eﬂ%i&ﬂﬁ‘ﬂs&m o

(b) EA“E"EI B AR EE PERRAR R 2 B
BRNRZREBEEBENZEA  RE R EM
FEWFRIE - £58497%5%46,215,000T( =2
+ 4 ¢ #%028,278,0007T) °

( RHEER AEBERKEERRFIEZFE
BN SRR EE23 o
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41. Related Party Transactions (cont'd)
(Il Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

41. BEAELR B (&)
(I AEBRIHEEIEAEB ZIRM

2008 2007

—EENE —ETLF

HK$°000 HK$°000

BEFT BT T

Short term employee benefits HHERERF 24,337 22,171

Post-employment benefits EfFEET 149 96

Share-based payments ERREN S 529 1,815
Total compensation paid to key XTI EIEAR

management personnel 2 TRENARET 25,015 24,082

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to the

financial statements.

42. Financial Instruments by Category
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as

at the balance sheet date are as follows:

EREEME & — T IBHEN UM BRI

9o

42. ERHEs2EMIA

REER - SR TERERZREERNT -

2008 —EENF
Financial assets TRIEE
Group
REE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
BNk AHEEZ
k1B SREE et
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT
Available-for-sale investments A E 2 RE = 31,611 31,611
Trade and bills receivables FEUN B 55 R 51 M PR U SR 4% 3,772,820 - 3,772,820
Financial assets included in BERTENHIEA « e REA
prepayments, deposits and RGP 2 SR E E
other receivables 212,643 - 212,643
Cash and bank balances e MIRITAE R 998,454 - 998,454
4,983,917 31,611 5,015,528
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42. Financial Instruments by Category (cont'd) 42. BERE S 2@ T A
2008 —EEN\F
Financial liabilities CEAE
Group
AEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
bi73: £Z)P %N
TEzEREeE
HK$°000
BT T
Trade and bills payables FERE SRR RN =IE 3,334,519
Financial liabilities included in other B&RHEMENFKIBRIBRE R+
payables and accruals ZEmas 692,539
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ER1TE K 1,352,869
Bond payable JEfHES 221,582
5,601,509
2007 —ETLF
Financial assets TRIEE
Group
REE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
Bk AfHEZ
FEUERIR SREE HEET

HK$°000 HK3$'000 HK3$'000
BETT BETT BT

Available-for-sale investments A EZIRE - 31,611 31,611
Trade and bills receivables FEUE Z IR RIEWRIR 2,852,404 - 2,852,404
Financial assets included in BERENFIE - e REM
prepayments, deposits and EWHIER 2 e MEE
other receivables 126,341 - 126,341
Cash and bank balances He RIRI TR 717,455 - 717,455
3,696,200 31,611 3,727,811
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42. Financial Instruments by Category (cont'd)

2007
Financial liabilities

42. RERHEDZ2EMITA(E)

Group

REE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R SHR AR
AHEZeHMAR
HK$'000
BT T

Trade and bills payables FERTE SRR R BN IR

Financial liabilities included in BEREMENFTIERIERER
other payables and accruals ZEHAE

Interest-bearing bank borrowings Mt SERTTEK

2,667,444

443,552
1,237,233

4,348,229

Financial assets TREE
Company
AT
Loans and receivables
MR EWFRIE
2008 2007
—EENE ZETF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BT
Financial assets included in prepayments, B &R BENFIE « e R E R
deposits and other receivables FEF 2 EREE 2,498 1,554
Due from subsidiaries FEURBT B A RIFRIE 1,347,257 1,017,794
Cash and bank balances R& RIRITEERR 1,327 913
1,351,082 1,020,261
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42. Financial Instruments by Category (cont'd)
Financial liabilities

42. RERESZ2EMIA(E)
TRIBE
Company
b /N
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

REBERATEz2ESREE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT

Financial liabilities included in BEREMEMNRERERER

other payables and accruals FremaE 30,200 7,138
Due to subsidiaries FERH B A RZIE 400,602 430,153
430,802 437,291

43. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank borrowings, bond payable and cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
capital expenditure and operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables and trade and bills
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group
has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its interest rate risk.

At 31 March 2008, approximately HK$311,433,000 (2007: HK$599,887,000)
of the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings bore interest at floating rates.

43. BHEBEEEFEREE
AEBZIEZSRTABEMSRITER - BN

BEFRBRESMREEEY - EZ:%EQIEE’JEE
RERRARBZEAHAXREEEEES A

SEEERREGEREERAE  fIMEER
RPERES ZEKRE SRR ERERIARE
BECLZVEANES &

ARESRIAMELEZ TERRAFIRRER -
SNERRR - FERBREABERR - EFE R
LFEZEEZERAR CHE - BRBRHEN
o

IESN
AEEFERZDSHNREBAREERAEE
I BRI ERAM - AR EFRE
A2 B A E FIR R -

R-ZEENFZA=Z+—H A&EEBZKHEE
XA & #311,433,000c( — 2T+ F: B
599,887,0007T ) Jh¥)Z BYF KA &,

N EERRERAR F8 o708 19D
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43. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies  43. M EREE B ERBER (&)

(cont'd)

Interest rate risk (cont'd)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible

) 2 e ()

TRETAEFEE(MEMEBRETE) Y

changeininterestrates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s ~ AEERATE A BB TR RER 2 F L)
profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings). RREZ o
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax
22 BADER
E# m,
(PRAEC) (R2)
HK$°000
BT
2008 —EEN\F
US$ borrowings EILEXK 100 (847)
US$ borrowings ETLER (100) 847
2007 —TELF
US$ borrowings ETLER 100 (1,079)
US$ borrowings ELEXR (100) 1,079
Foreign currency risk SN [ B

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures mainly
arise from purchases by operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currency. Approximately 21% (2007: 21%) of the Group's
purchases are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the operating units making the purchase. The Group has not
used any forward currency contracts to eliminate the foreign currency
exposures.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the balance sheet date
to a reasonably possible change in the RMB and US$ exchange rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).
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43. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(cont'd)

Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

43. AR EEEEREE (&)

SN Ve (48)

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
RMB rate before tax
AREER BRI
R i,
(FZ1K) Omi2)
% HK$°000
(BZLE) BB FT
2008 —ETN\F
If RMB weakens against US$ EARBREETER (1) (32,502)
If RMB strengthens against US$ HARBEE TR 1 32,502
2007 —ETLEF
If RMB weakens against US$ HARBHEEETTEN (1) (16,761)
If RMB strengthens against US$ EAREEEETERE 1 16,761

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It
is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms
are subject to credit verification procedures.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise cash and
cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial assets and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments. The Company is also exposed
to credit risk through the granting of financial guarantees, further details
of which are disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Over 90% of the Group’s
customers and operations are located in Mainland China. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by industry sector and customer.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed in note 28 to the
financial statements.

EE R
AEEERERARGEBE LR =ZTETR
5 AEEZBRREBREMBEEERERRSZE
FETERZERER -

AEEEMEHEE(RERRERASEFEY - A
HEESREEREBRKIRR) ZERERRTIH
RRSEFROMY - MAAAE &R RR SR
HERZETAZIREE - AAR RERMME
ERMHEEEERR - FESN UM B RERME
38

MR AREERERT RERBE L E=HET
25« HUEBRIUER - AR EBIBI0% 2 B
R p ek BARE o (38 5o A T8
BREFER -

Hib BRAA K B mE L i B E 5 ik R B RE
EENEERR z BB UM B RRME
28 °

pERRERAR F5o70s 197
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43. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(cont'd)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring

liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial

instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank borrowings,
and other available sources of finances. In addition, banking facilities have
been put in place for contingency purposes.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the balance
sheet date, based on the contracted undiscounted payments, was as

43. KRR EEEERBER(E)

MBI R
AEERAEREEUERDESTETAERZESR
TRROER ZTAZERESRERTARS
BEE(WERKRE SRR EERER) ZFHA A
RRAEEER  AHEERERE

AEE 2z BRRAEBERMSRITERAREM
TRBZESRR #FESTAMETEEY
Fig o A AEBRERSRITEEABESZ
=)

ATEHFIIAEEREER 22 ER B (RE
ERTHHERRE IR SRR H ) :

follows:
Group 2008
K58 “ZTN\F
Less than 3to
3 months or less than 1to5 Over
ondemand 12 months years 5 years Total
Z@AUT S
FEH TZEAR —Z5f EBRF At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BEF T BEFT BETTT BEFT BETTT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ESR{TER 32,884 450,906 632,021 579,614 1,695,425
Bond payable ERES 3,700 11,101 251,967 - 266,768
Trade and bills payables BB SRS R ENER 3,331,096 3,423 - - 3,334,519
Other payables and accruals HibENFERTERE R 465,093 227,446 - = 692,539
3,832,773 692,876 883,988 579,614 5,989,251
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43. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies  43. M RBRER B R RBOR (4)

(cont'd)
Liquidity risk (cont'd) BN (&)
Group 2007
L] —TTE
Less than 3to
3 months or less than 1to5 QOver
ondemand 12 months years 5 years Total
=AU ==
FHE @A —ZhF ik ks Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT JBEMFT BEFT JBEFT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ Kf 8B TEH 601,783 77,506 474,135 215,519 1,368,943
Trade and bills payables B E SIRT R ENERE 2,654,458 12,986 = - 2,667,444
Other payables and accruals EfENFUBNTERER 271,189 172,363 = = 443,552
3,527,430 262,855 474,135 215,519 4,479,939
Company 2008
LN “EENE
Less than 3to
3 months or less than 1t05 Over
ondemand 12 months years 5 years Total
=Z@ANT S&
EH  T=EAR —Zhf HBRF a5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYF T BEFT BYT T BEFT BETTT
Due to subsidiaries BB A RIFUR 400,602 - - = 400,602
Other payables and accruals Hip BB RTBIRE R 30,171 21 8 = 30,200
430,773 21 8 - 430,802
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43. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(cont'd)
Liquidity risk (cont’d)

43. MEREREBERBEE)

B IR ()

Company 2007
KNS 2T tHE
Less than 3to
3 months or less than 1t05 Over
ondemand 12 months years 5 years Total
=@EANUT =z
g  T=@AR —EhEF HBAAF Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT JBEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Due to subsidiaries JERH B ARFUE 430,153 = = = 430,153
Other payables and accruals HEENFERERER 7,068 13 57 = 7,138
437,221 13 57 - 437,291
Capital management BERERE

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in
light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31
March 2008 and 31 March 2007.
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43. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies  43. M RBRERE B HERBOR (4)

(cont'd)

Capital management (cont'd) BEAREIR(4E)

rEBEREERARBRLXERER  EEREW
FRABEFERACHEE R EB EFE MG
B AEENBRREAZERRHEEARLE
HRTEEKT - BEEFEBENSRITER &
HES  BNESERRRENRE - EMAEMAK
BERFEREABRREEMREEEY  EABER
NRABRREGER - REERZEERBL RN

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided
by the total capital plus net debt. The Group’s policy is to maintain the
gearing ratio as low as possible. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank
borrowings, bond payable, trade and bills payables, other payables and
accruals, less cash and bank balances. Capital includes equity attributable
to equity holders of the parent. The gearing ratios as at balance sheet
dates were as follows:

I

Group

AEH
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M B ERITE R 1,352,869 1,237,233
Bond payable eI &S 221,582 -
Trade and bills payables FERHE SRR BN =K 3,334,519 2,667,444
Other payables and accruals E e A KRR E 1,695,420 975,330
Less: Cash and bank balances B IReRIReEEY (998,454) (717,455)
Net debt BEFEE 5,605,936 4,162,552

Equity attributable to equity holders &R R R E(L#EZS

of the parent 2,625,919 1,961,353
Total capital FEE= N 2,625,919 1,961,353
Capital and net debt BEARNMBEFRE 8,231,855 6,123,905
Gearing ratio BAERELEX 68% 68%

44. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

board of directors on 25 June 2008.

44. ABHRER 2%
AHMBHRREN-"TE/\FAA-TAAKES
S IR -

wnmEmnERAn 25008 101




Five Year Financial Summary AEKREE

31 March 2008 —ZZN\F=A=+—H

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority — AEEBEREMKFEERHEE 2 AMMEEZE
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from — BE&ER - UREBFHHEREI < ¥4E BE - A
the published audited financial information and restated/reclassified as BRIV EIRFERBEELNT -

appropriate, is set out below.

Results E4
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t—-HLEFE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
“EEN\F CZITTLF CZTTF —TTHFE —TINF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JBIF T BEFIT BFT BFT BETFor

REVENUE WA 35,243,773 25,418,398 19,864,897 15,456,902 14,277,308
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BT A& 7 453,032 241,944 269,581 175,904 10,575
Tax FiI8 (52,152) (40,631) (20,970) 6,062 2,441
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR NEE 5 400,880 201,313 248,611 181,966 13,016
Attributable to: BB
Equity holders of the parent FRRREE 401,125 208,429 251,917 186,236 20,404
Minority interests VYRR (245) (7,116) (3,306) (4,270) (7,388)
400,880 201,313 248,611 181,966 13,016
Assets, Liabilities and Minority Interests EE - AEEIBRERES
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

—EENE —TTLF —ITTXF CTTHF —TITWEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BEFT BEFT BT BT

TOTAL ASSETS R 9,314,491 6,885,060 5,827,364 4,887,373 4,038,216
TOTAL LIABILITIES FEN=NE (6,670,795) (4,911,814) (4,021,496) (3,298,869) (2,662,576)
MINORITY INTERESTS DY REERS (17,777) (11,893) (19,009) (9,972) (10,459)

2,625,919 1,961,353 1,786,859 1,578,532 1,365,181
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Stepping forward to attain our goals
BEma o ZHERERAEZ

We believe that solidifying our leading position in the market and
further building on our strategic transformation will be essential for
adding value to our clients, shareholders and employees.

BAEE  eNBBHETHZEEATSALHA  TEREENER B FES
VEREANEF - RRNZEES  BERESARSHNEE-



www.digitalchina.com.hk
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